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454 2.23
143 0.70
112 0.55
110 0.54
91 0.45
88 0.43
87 0.43
83 0.41
81 0.40
80 0.39
37 0.18
7,064 34.73

87/404



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
OOoOoooooooooooooodd

) )

2,833 13.93
690 3.39
375 1.84
302 1.48

4,200 20.65
112 0.55

78 0.38
77 0.38
65 0.32
30 0.15
29 0.14
391 1.92
84 0.41
23 0.11
15 0.07
12 0.06
7 0.03

5 0.02

5 0.02

1 0.00

1 0.00
153 0.75
499 2.45

1,026 5.04

219 1.08
-320 -1.57
21,894 107.66
-1,557 -7.66
20,337 100.00
( 2,827 )

(

)

88/404



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
(2022 )
() C > C |,
Spain Government Bond 0.000 | 2025 31 |[1,587,650 | 1,600,000 1,544,859 | 7.60
Stadshypotek AB 2.000 | 2028 919,423 | 9,000,000 814,900 | 4.01
Nykredit Realkredit A/S 1.000 2050 10 1,004,887 | 7,597,676 808,790 | 3.98
Spain Government Bond 1.250 [2030 10 31 879,494 825,000 779,375 | 3.83
Italy Buoni Poliennali
del Tesoro 1.850 | 2025 699,877 680,000 681,194 | 3.35
Treasury Inflation
Protectod Securities 0.125 | 2031 15 527,417 536,345 499,208 | 2.45
Slovenia Government 0.000 | 2031 12 424,244 420,000 353,564 | 1.74
International Bond
France Government Bond 0.750 | 2052 25 472,380 450,000 310,003 | 1.52
gKg Bank Hipoteczny 0.750 | 2024 24 301,441 300,000 298,553 | 1.47
10 gg”r‘[')t"mo Witsui Banking 0.400 [2029 11 309,595 300,000 269,357 | 1.32
11 |Fannie Mae, TBA 3.000 | 2052 269,871 300,000 266,277 | 1.31
1p |Kreditanstalt fuer 0.000 | 2031 15 | 301,480 300,000 258,462 | 1.27
Wiederaufbau
Anheuser-Busch InBev
13 (g 2.000 | 2028 17 264,980 250,000 246,331 | 1.21
14 | France Government Bond 0.100 | 2031 25 239,139 206,568 227,459 1.12
15 ?ﬁﬁg;‘v'ew Home: Loan 1.506 [2036 10 25 193,381 232,254 209,178 | 1.03
16 |Bank of America Corp. 0.513 | 2026 22 203,360 200,000 200,553 | 0.99
17 fg:dman Sachs Group, 0.506 [ 2027 23 203,496 200,000 199,198 | 0.98
Towd Point Mortgage
18 | Fonding Auburn 14 pLC 1.840 | 2045 20 188,159 169,366 198,852 | 0.98
19 |JAB Holdings BV 1.750 | 2026 25 207,400 200,000 194,049 | 0.95
20 |Hawksmoor Mortgages 1.703 | 2053 25 189,925 162,461 191,101 0.94
21 |UBS AG 5.125 | 2024 15 176,652 200,000 189,830 | 0.93
2 |Nationwide Building 1.375 | 2032 29 229,204 200,000 189,326 | 0.93
Society
23 | Fannie Mae, TBA 4.000 | 2052 188,668 200,000 186,190 | 0.92
Residential Mortgage
24 | gooirition 2 PG 1.997 | 2070 20 172,271 154,890 182,324 | 0.90
25 | European Union 0.000 | 2029 199,731 200,000 180,501 | 0.89
26 |Mortimer BTL PLC 1.597 | 2051 20 171,907 146,765 172,936 | 0.85
Towd Point Mortgage
27 | eonding Granited PLC 1.605 [2051 10 20 164,862 147,128 172,738 | 0.85
28 | European Union 0.000 | 2031 198,443 200,000 172,175 | 0.85
29 | spain Government Bond 1.900 [2052 10 31 199,866 200,000 158,489 | 0.78
30 |Kingdom of Belgiun 1.400 | 2053 22 190,924 190,000 151,672 | 0.75
Government Bond
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(2022 )
(€))

2022
11 35,089,794 4,878,534,060 9.80 1,362
12 35,246,796 4,900,362,048 10.25 1,425
13 32,440,928 4,510,262,220 10.42 1,449
14 26,939,009 3,745,330,421 10.38 1,443
15 27,093,279 3,766,778,579 10.50 1,460
16 25,757,362 3,581,046,039 10.40 1,446
17 25,111,840 3,491,299,115 10.71 1,489
18 25,733,017 3,577,661,354 10.93 1,520
19 24,868,903 3,457,523,584 11.20 1,557
20 20,336,862 2,827,433,988 9.82 1,365
2021 24,305,174 3,379,148,341 11.14 1,549
10 23,998,687 3,336,537, 454 11.08 1,540
11 24,183,490 3,362,230,615 11.18 1,554
12 23,720,631 3,297,879,328 11.11 1,545
2022 23,255,726 3,233,243,586 10.91 1,517
22,876,135 3,180,469,049 10.61 1,475
22,400,819 3,114,385,866 10.39 1,445
21,443,012 2,981,221,958 10.03 1,394
20,577,244 2,860,854,233 9.82 1,365
19,593,459 2,724,078,605 9.46 1,315
20,441,588 2,841,993,980 9.89 1,375
19,273,072 2,679,535,200 9.33 1,297

)

90/404



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11 0.198548392 27.604
12 0.123166264 17.124
13 0.765302711 106.400
14 0.091291480 12.692
15 0.070361437 9.782
16 0.087322777 12.140
17 0.126751009 17.622
18 0.046122730 6.412
19 0.004475116 0.622
20 0.039226883 5.454
2022 0.010055351 1.398

0.005403582 0.751

0.010569904 1.470
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15 1.83
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®
n 281,650 717,806 3,581,015
(281, 650) (717,806) (3,581,015)
1 108,160 251,874 3,437,301
(108,160) (251,874) (3,437,301)
13 192,190 515,414 3,114,077
(192,190) (515,414) (3,114,077)
1 127,440 645,585 2,595,932
(127,440) (645,585) (2,595,932)
15 238,850 255,307 2,579,475
238,850) 255,307) (2,579,475)
16 21,310 124,931 2,475,854
(21,310) (124,931) (2,475,854)
17 27,250 158,075 2,345,029
(27,250) (158,075) (2,345,029)
18 100,020 91,380 2,353,669
(100,020) (91,380) (2.353,669)
19 37,910 171,149 2,220,430
(37,910) (171,149) (2,220,430)
20 32,900 181,860 2,071,470
(32,900) (181,860) (2,071,470)
C) C )
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31

2022 31

21,995 3,058
0 0

39 5

269 37

0 0

321 45

20 3

108 15
TBA 544 76
0 0

90 13

0 0
23,386 3,251
1,186 165
0 0

83 12
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69 10
TBA 1,081 150
0 0
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240 33
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0 0
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2 0
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2022 31
( ) ( )
108.2%
2.4%
1.7%
Anheuser-Busch InBev S_A.
2.000% due 03/17/2028 EUR 250 EUR 246
Silfin NV
2.875% due 04/11/2027 100 96
342
0.7%
Kingdom of Belgium Government Bond
1.400% due 06/22/2053 190 152
494
( EUR 555)
0.5%
0.5%
Bacardi Ltd.
2.750% due 07/03/2023 100 101
101
( EUR 102)
0.5%
0.5%
Fairfax Financial Holdings Ltd.
2.750% due 03/29/2028 100 96
96
( EUR 99)
0.4%
0.4%
Czech Republic Government Bond
1.000% due 06/26/2026 CZK 2,300 80
80
( EUR 89)
7.4%
7.4%
Jyske Realkredit A/S
1.000% due 10/01/2050 DKK 642 70
2.000% due 10/01/2050 236 28
3.000% due 10/01/2047 4 1
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab
1.000% due 10/01/2050 540 58
1.500% due 10/01/2053 500 55
2.000% due 10/01/2050 481 58
2.500% due 10/01/2047 6 1
Nykredit Realkredit A/S
1.000% due 10/01/2050 7,598 809
1.000% due 10/01/2053 980 106
1.500% due 10/01/2053 1,189 132
2.000% due 10/01/2050 162 20
2.000% due 10/01/2053 100 12
2.500% due 10/01/2047 15 2
3.000% due 10/01/2053 200 26
3.500% due 10/01/2053 800 106
Realkredit Danmark A/S
1.500% due 10/01/2053 100 11
2.500% due 04/01/2036 14 2
3.000% due 07/01/2046 6 1
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EUR 1,498
( EUR 1,795)
0.4%
0.4%
Estonia Government International Bond
0.125% due 06/10/2030 EUR 100 87
87
( EUR 99)
5.5%
0.5%
Auto Asset-Backed Securities French Leases FCT
0.153% due 06/29/2033 100 100
Silver Arrow S_A.
0.148% due 11/20/2030 12 12
112
1.4%
Accor S.A.
2.375% due 11/29/2028 100 89
CAB SELAS
3.375% due 02/01/2028 100 90
Dexiia Credit Local S.A.
0.500% due 01/17/2025 100 98
277
3.6%
Agence Francaise de Developpement EPIC
0.125% due 09/29/2031 100 86
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local
0.000% due 02/25/2025 100 100
0.100% due 07/25/2031 (a) 207 227
0.750% due 05/25/2052 450 310
723
1,112
( EUR 1,322)
3.2%
3.2%
Deutsche Bank AG
1.375% due 09/03/2026 100 96
Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide
1.625% due 07/09/2024 100 99
Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau
0.000% due 09/15/2028 100 92
0.000% due 09/15/2031 300 259
0.010% due 05/05/2027 100 94
640
( EUR 708)
0.2%
0.2%
Hungary Government International Bond
1.500% due 11/17/2050 60 37
37
( EUR 61)
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0.4%
0.4%
Indonesia Government International Bond
1.400% due 10/30/2031 EUR 100 EUR 83
83
( EUR 102)
2.6%
0.4%
Citizen Irish Auto Receivables Trust DAC
0.276% due 12/15/2029 78 78
1.8%
Dilosk RMBS No.4 DAC
0.382% due 02/20/2060 90 90
Dilosk Rmbs No.5 DAC
0.198% due 12/20/2060 98 97
European Loan Conduiit No.36 DAC
1.000% due 02/17/2030 100 98
Primrose Residential DAC
0.215% due 03/24/2061 91 90
375
0.4%
Ireland Government Bond
0.550% due 04/22/2041 80 61
1.700% due 05/15/2037 20 20
81
534
( EUR 561)
6.1%
0.4%
Red & Black Auto Italy Srl
0.153% due 12/28/2031 7 77
1.4%
AMCO - Asset Management Co. SpA
1.500% due 07/17/2023 100 101
Atlantia SpA
1.875% due 02/12/2028 100 88
Nexi SpA
1.625% due 04/30/2026 100 92
281
4.3%
Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro
1.850% due 07/01/2025 680 681
2.150% due 09/01/2052 120 90
2.800% due 03/01/2067 140 118
889
1,247
( EUR 1,319)
1.3%
1.3%
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
0.409% due 11/07/2029 300 269
269
( EUR 310)
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0.5%
0.5%
Atrium European Real Estate Ltd.
3.000% due 09/11/2025 EUR 100 EUR 96
96
( EUR 99)
2.4%
0.2%
Silver Arrow S.A. Compartment 11
0.156% due 02/15/2027 29 29
2.2%
Aroundtown S.A.
0.375% due 04/15/2027 100 85
1.500% due 05/28/2026 100 93
CBRE Global Investors Open-Ended Fund SCA SICAV-SIF Pan
European Core Fund
0.900% due 10/12/2029 100 82
CP1 Property Group S.A.
1.625% due 04/23/2027 100 85
Logicor Financing Sarl
2.750% due 01/15/2030 GBP 100 107
452
481
( EUR 544)
- 4.9%
2.9%
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA
5.250% due 09/14/2027 100 125
ING Groep NV
1.750% due 02/16/2031 EUR 100 91
JAB Holdings BV
1.750% due 06/25/2026 200 194
Nationale-Nederlanden Bank NV
0.125% due 09/24/2029 100 89
Wabtec Transportation Netherlands BV
1.250% due 12/03/2027 100 90
589
1.5%
Dutch Property Finance BV
0.215% due 04/28/2051 45 45
0.235% due 07/28/2058 95 94
0.320% due 10/28/2059 100 99
Jubilee Place BV
0.552% due 10/17/2057 65 64
302
0.5%
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV
0.750% due 10/04/2041 140 112
1,003
( EUR 1,106)
0.9%
0.9%
DNB Boligkreditt A/S
0.010% due 01/21/2031 100 85
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SpareBank 1 Boligkreditt A/S
0.125% due 11/05/2029 EUR 100 EUR 89
174
( EUR 204)
2.0%
1.5%
PKO Bank Hipoteczny S.A.
0.750% due 01/24/2024 300 298
0.5%
Poland Government International Bond
0.750% due 04/25/2025 PLN 400 74
2.750% due 04/25/2028 200 36
110
408
( EUR 436)
2.2%
2.2%
Slovenia Government International Bond
0.000% due 02/12/2031 EUR 420 353
0.125% due 07/01/2031 40 34
1.175% due 02/13/2062 100 67
454
( EUR 564)
0.5%
0.5%
Hana Bank
0.010% due 01/26/2026 100 95
95
( EUR 101)
13.2%
0.2%
BBVA Consumer Auto FTA
0.270% due 07/20/2031 30 30
0.4%
Abertis Infraestructuras S.A.
1.125% due 03/26/2028 100 90
12._6%
Spain Government Bond
0.000% due 05/31/2025 (F) 1,600 1,545
0.500% due 10/31/2031 100 86
1.250% due 10/31/2030 825 779
1.900% due 10/31/2052 200 159
2,569
2,689
( EUR 2,895)
4.4%
4.4%
Eurofima Europaeische Gesellschaft fuer die Finanzierung von
Eisenbahnmaterial
0.010% due 06/23/2028 100 91
European Investment Bank
0.250% due 01/20/2032 100 88
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European Union
0.000% due 07/04/2029 EUR 200 EUR 181
0.000% due 07/04/2031 200 172
0.200% due 06/04/2036 100 79
0.250% due 04/22/2036 100 80
0.400% due 02/04/2037 100 81
0.450% due 07/04/2041 100 75
0.450% due 05/02/2046 60 42
889
( EUR 1,056)
4.7%
4.0%
Stadshypotek AB
2.000% due 09/01/2028 SEK 9,000 815
0.7%
Kommuniinvest 1 Sverige AB
1.000% due 11/12/2026 1,600 143
958
( EUR 1,076)
2.1%
2.1%
Credit Suisse AG
0.862% due 05/31/2024 EUR 100 100
Credit Suisse Group AG
1.250% due 07/17/2025 150 146
UBS AG
5.125% due 05/15/2024 (b) $ 200 190
436
( EUR 430)
22.4%
0.3%
Turbo Finance 9 PLC
1.587% due 08/20/2028 GBP 55 65
5.0%
HSBC Holdings PLC
3.000% due 07/22/2028 100 114
Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC
5.875% due 11/15/2024 EUR 100 98
Nationwide Building Society
1.375% due 06/29/2032 200 189
1.500% due 03/08/2026 150 147
NatWest Group PLC
2.000% due 03/04/2025 150 151
RolIs-Royce PLC
4.625% due 02/16/2026 100 100
Tesco Property Finance 4 PLC
5.801% due 10/13/2040 GBP 94 123
Vmed 02 UK Financing 1 PLC
3.250% due 01/31/2031 EUR 100 85
1,007
13.9%
Aggregator of Loans Backed by Assets PLC
0.392% due 03/17/2039 GBP 48 54
Avon Finance No.2 PLC
1.647% due 09/20/2048 79 93
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Canterbury Finance No.3 PLC
1.940% due 05/16/2057 GBP 34 EUR 40
Eurohome UK Mortgages PLC
1.187% due 06/15/2044 36 41
Eurosail PLC
1.197% due 12/15/2044 2 3
Eurosail-UK PLC
1.172% due 03/13/2045 24 28
Finsbury Square PLC
2.028% due 06/16/2070 76 89
Great Hall Mortgages No.1 PLC
0.000% due 03/18/2039 EUR 14 14
Hawksmoor Mortgages
1.703% due 05/25/2053 GBP 162 191
Landmark Mortgage Securities No.3 PLC
1.439% due 04/17/2044 31 34
Lanebrook Mortgage Transaction PLC
1.820% due 06/12/2057 80 94
Ludgate Funding PLC
1.198% due 01/01/2061 47 52
Mortimer BTL PLC
1.597% due 06/20/2051 147 173
Polaris PLC
1.579% due 12/23/2058 95 111
2.065% due 05/27/2057 61 71
Precise Mortgage Funding PLC
0.775% due 03/12/2055 83 97
1.466% due 12/12/2055 100 117
Residential Mortgage Acceptance Corporation Securities No.1
PLC
0.265% due 06/12/2044 124 141
Residential Mortgage Securities 32 PLC
1.997% due 06/20/2070 155 182
Silverstone Master Issuer PLC
1.216% due 01/21/2070 66 78
Southern Pacific Securities PLC
1.285% due 03/10/2044 10 12
Stratton Mortgage Funding
1.361% due 07/20/2060 81 94
Stratton Mortgage Funding PLC
1.612% due 09/25/2051 87 102
1.620% due 03/12/2052 80 94
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Auburn 14 PLC
1.840% due 05/20/2045 169 199
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Granite4 PLC
1.605% due 10/20/2051 147 173
Tower Bridge Funding PLC
0.000% due 12/20/2063 100 116
1.720% due 11/20/2063 94 109
2.117% due 09/20/2063 77 91
Trinity Square PLC
1.654% due 07/15/2059 81 94
Twin Bridges PLC
1.802% due 09/12/2044 39 46

2,833
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3.2%
United Kingdom Gilt
0.125% due 01/31/2028 GBP 100 EUR 107
0.250% due 01/31/2025 50 57
0.500% due 10/22/2061 50 32
1.250% due 07/22/2027 50 57
1.500% due 07/31/2053 135 129
1.625% due 10/22/2054 98 96
3.250% due 01/22/2044 100 133
3.500% due 07/22/2068 28 44
655
4,560
( EUR 4,721)
16.3%
5._4%
American Tower Corp.
1.375% due 04/04/2025 EUR 100 98
Bank of America Corp.
0.513% due 09/22/2026 200 200
0.808% due 05/09/2026 150 145
Coty, Inc.
3.875% due 04/15/2026 100 91
Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC
3.021% due 03/06/2024 100 100
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
0.506% due 09/23/2027 200 199
0.875% due 01/21/2030 100 87
1.250% due 02/07/2029 100 91
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc.
3.625% due 05/23/2059 100 95
1,106
3.4%
Banc of America Mortgage Trust
2.581% due 02/25/2035 $ 21 20
BCAP LLC Trust
4.751% due 03/26/2037 17 16
Chase Mortgage Finance Trust
2.971% due 01/25/2036 33 28
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
0.871% due 03/25/2032 1 1
Downey Savings & Loan Association Mortgage Loan Trust
1.768% due 09/19/2044 33 30
GSAMP Trust
1.286% due 06/25/2036 29 26
JPMorgan Mortgage Acquisition Trust
1.266% due 08/25/2036 18 17
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
1.786% due 02/25/2034 33 29
1.831% due 10/25/2034 110 101
Residential Accredit Securities Corporation Trust
2.731% due 11/25/2034 117 108
Sequoia Mortgage Trust
1.307% due 06/20/2036 84 75
Soundview Home Loan Trust
1.506% due 10/25/2036 232 209
Structured Asset Securities Corporation Mortgage Loan Trust
1.141% due 07/25/2036 4 4
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WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
1.466% due 04/25/2045 $ 18 EUR 17
1.473% due 02/27/2034 10 9
690
5.0%
Fannie Mae
2.944% due 07/25/2039 28 26
Fannie Mae, TBA (¢)
3.000% due 07/01/2052 300 266
3.500% due 07/01/2052 100 91
4.000% due 07/01/2052 200 186
Freddie Mac
0.805% due 01/15/2038 20 19
1.552% due 01/15/2038 (d) 20 1
Ginnie Mae
0.953% due 10/20/2062 34 31
1.188% due 01/20/2066 102 96
1.218% due 09/20/2066 105 99
1.238% due 06/20/2066 109 102
1.238% due 07/20/2066 56 52
1.288% due 11/20/2066 61 57
1,026
2.5%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities
0.125% due 07/15/2031 (a) 536 499
3,321
( EUR 3,359)
0.8%
0.3%
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd.
0.030% due 06/01/2022 AUD 1 1
Bank of Nova Scotia
0.400% due 06/01/2022 $ 5 5
BNP Paribas Bank
(0.780%) due 06/01/2022 EUR 5 5
(0.620%) due 06/01/2022 DKK 4 1
(0.410%) due 06/01/2022 \ 1,264 9
0.140% due 06/01/2022 NOK 3 0
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
0.005% due 06/01/2022 SEK 4 0
Citibank N.A.
0.400% due 06/01/2022 $ 2 2
DBS Bank Ltd.
0.400% due 06/01/2022 5 5
HSBC Bank PLC
(0.780%) due 06/01/2022 EUR 12 12
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
0.400% due 06/01/2022 $ 5 5
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
(0.780%) due 06/01/2022 EUR 8 8
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
(0.780%) due 06/01/2022 1 1
(0.410%) due 06/01/2022 \ 152 1
0.400% due 06/01/2022 $ 2 2
0.420% due 06/01/2022 GBP 10 11
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd.
0.120% due 06/01/2022 SGD 2 1
69
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2022 31
( ) ( )
0.5%
0.022% due 01/04/2023 (e) ILS 300 EUR 84
153
( EUR 154)
108.2% EUR 21,995
( EUR 23,867)
@@ (0.6% 18)
( EUR 1)
(7.6%) (1,540)
100..0% EUR 20,337
*
@
®
©
@ 10 10
®
@ ( ) ( ) @
BPS (0.540%) 02/24/2022 08/15/2022 EUR (1,188) _EUR (1,186)
EUR 1,186
30 31 2 920
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (1,186) EUR 0 EUR (1,186)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (1,186) EUR 0_EUR (1,186)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR (1,186) EWR 0 _ELR (1,186)
ELR 1,186
2022 31
) 2022 31 1,159
BPS EUR 0 EUR (1,186) EWR 0 _EWR 0 EWR (1,186) ER 1,159 EUR @7)
EUR 0 EUR  (1,186) EUR 0 EWR 0
(1)2022 31 4,189 (0.469%)
@
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2022 31
@
C ) (GD)
3-Month EURIBOR Interest Rate March Futures Long  03/2023 10 EUR (38) EUR 0 EUR (O]
3-Month SONIA December Futures Long  03/2023 6 (©) 0 @
3-Month SONIA June Futures Long  09/2023 5 (©)] 0 ®)
3-Month SONIA March Futures Long  06/2023 5 (©)] 0 @
3-Month SONIA September Futures Long  12/2023 5 (10) 0 ®)
Euro-BTP 10-Year Bond September Futures Long  09/2022 7 (11) 0 11
Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond June Futures Long 06/2022 1 (€)) 14 0
Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond September Futures Short  09/2022 12 11 11 0
Euro-OAT 10-Year Bond June Futures Long  06/2022 4 (42) 0 ®)
Euro-Schatz 2-Year Note September Futures Long  09/2022 3 0 0 0
Japan Government 10-Year Bond June Futures Short  06/2022 1 ®3) 2 0
U.S. Treasury 5-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2022 5 @ 2 0
U.S. Treasury 20-Year Bond September Futures Short  09/2022 3 0 5 0
U.S. Treasury Ultra 10-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2022 4 0 4 0
U.S. Treasury Ultra 30-Year Bond September Futures Long  09/2022 1 @ 0 (©))
United Kingdom Treasury 10-Year Gilt September Futures Long  09/2022 13 (32) 0 (28)
Call Option Strike @ EUR 127.000 on Euro-Bobl 5-Year
Note July 2022 Futures'® Short  06/2022 2 2 0 ®
Call Option Strike @ EUR 155.500 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond July 2022 Futures'™ Short  06/2022 2 4 0 ®
Put Option Strike @ EUR 127.000 on Euro-Bobl 5-Year
Note July 2022 Futures™® Short  06/2022 2 10 0 0
Put Option Strike @ EUR 155.500 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond July 2022 Futures™ Short  06/2022 2 ®) 0 ®)
EUR  (155) EUR 38 EWR (81)
@
2022 31
3 4 5
( ) ® @ ®) C )
Barclays Bank
PLC 1.000% 12/20/2022 0.345% EUR 70 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0
(&)
4 5
iTraxx Europe Series 37
Index 1.000% 06/20/2027 EUR 1,200 EUR 10 EUR (7) EWR 0 EUR 0
(¢ ) )
6-Month EURIBOR 0.650%  05/11/2027 EUR 100 EUR (4) ERR (4) EWR 0 EUR [6)
6-Month EURIBOR 1.000%  05/13/2027 200 ) ©) 0 (6H)
UK Retail Price Index 0.000% 01/15/2031 GBP 205 (47 (39) 1 0
EUR (56) EUR (48) EWR 1 EUR D)
EUR (46) EUR (55) EUR 1 EUR [©)
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2022 31

2022 31

2022 31 321

EUR 0 EUR 38 EUR 1 EUR 39 EWR 0 EUR  (81) EUR  (2) ER  (83)

@
@

®

O]
®
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(
2022 31
(W)
C
(¢ )

BOA 0672022 MXN 1,112 $ 55 EUR 0 EWR o
BOA 06/2022 $ 66 ZAR 1,004 0 @
BOA 07/2022 EUR 11 DKK 85 0 0
BOA 08/2022 281 NOK 2,860 2 0
BPS 06/2022 BRL 21 EUR 4 0 0
BPS 06/2022 EUR 4 BRL 21 0 0
BPS 06/2022 $ 163 EUR 156 4 0
BPS 07/2022 DKK 85 11 0 0
BPS 07/2022 EUR 523 DKK 3,890 0 0
BPS 08/2022 JPY 2,000 EUR 15 0 0
BRC 08/2022 EUR 205 AUD 307 0 0
BRC 08/2022 29 GBP 25 0 0
BRC 08/2022 JPY 500 EUR 4 0 0
CBK 06/2022 ZAR 64 $ 4 0 0
CBK 08/2022 IDR 855,181 58 0 @
CBK 01/2023 ILS 300 95 3 0
DUB 06/2022 $ 16 EUR 15 0 0
DUB 06/2022 2 PLN 10 0 0
DUB 07/2022 DKK 14,603 EUR 1,963 0 0
GLM 06/2022 BRL 274 $ 55 0 ®)
GLM 06/2022 CNH 740 108 0 @
GLM 06/2022 $ 58 BRL 274 0 0
GLM 07/2022 54 274 3 0
GLM 07/2022 64 MXN 1,299 2 0
HUS 08/2022 18 IDR 261,585 0 0
HUS 05/2023 CNH 188 $ 28 0 0
JPM 06/2022 600 88 0 0
JPM 06/2022 $ 2 CZK 43 0 0
JPM 06/2022 19 IDR 272,567 0 0
JPM 07/2022 DKK 275 EUR 37 0 0
JPM 07/2022 EUR 58 DKK 435 0 0
JPM 08/2022 GBP 557 EUR 648 0 )
JPM 08/2022 SEK 6,975 668 3 0
JPM 08/2022 $ 22 IDR 321,869 0 0
MBC 07/2022 EUR 38 DKK 280 0 0
MBC 08/2022 29 GBP 25 0 0
MBC 08/2022 GBP 98 EUR 114 0 @
WY1 06/2022 BRL 274 $ 58 0 0
WY1 06/2022 EUR 33 35 0 0
M1 06/2022 $ 58 BRL 274 0 0
WY1 06/2022 2,190 EUR 2,063 19 0
WY1 07/2022 DKK 50 7 0 0
RYL 08/2022 EUR 563 CHF 588 9 0
SCX 06/2022 $ 62 EUR 59 1 0
SCX 07/2022 EUR 28 DKK 205 0 0
S0G 06/2022 2,260 $ 2,425 4 0
S0G 06/2022 $ 3 CzK 61 0 0
S0G 06/2022 2 PLN 8 0 0
S0G 07/2022 2,429 EUR 2,260 0 ®)
TOR 07/2022 HUF 1,891 $ 5 0 0
UAG 07/2022 MXN 222 11 0 0
UAG 07/2022 $ 58 HUF 20,165 0 [©)

EUR 50 EUR (23)
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« )
2022 31
Put - OTC 30-Year
BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.195%  11/02/2022 100 EUR 0 EUR 36
Put - OTC 30-Year
BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.197%  11/04/2022 150 10 54
Put - OTC 30-Year
BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000% 03/15/2023 200 19 82
Put - OTC 30-Year
MYC Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.190% 11/02/2022 100 6 37
Call - OTC 5-Year Secured Overnight
MYC Interest Rate Swap Financing Rate 2.200% 05/31/2023 1,000 11 10
EUR 46 EUR 219
( ) ® ¢
Put - OTC 10-Year
BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000% 11/02/2022 300 EUR 0 EUR (54)
Put - OTC 10-Year
BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000%  11/04/2022 300 (6) (55)
Put - OTC 10-Year
BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR (0.175%) 03/15/2023 600 (19) (121)
Put - OTC 10-Year
BRC Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000%  11/04/2022 150 3) @7
Call - OTC 10-Year Secured Overnight
MYC Interest Rate Swap Financing Rate 2.350% 05/31/2023 500 1) (©))
Put - OTC 10-Year
MYC Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000%  11/02/2022 300 (6) (54)
EUR  (45) EUR (320)
2022 31
BOA EUR 2 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 2 EUR (2) ERR 0 EWR 0 EUR (2) EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0
BPS 4 172 0 176 0 (230) 0 (230) (54) 0 (54)
BRC 0 0 0 0 0 @n 0 @n @7 0 @7
CBK 3 0 0 3 @ 0 0 (€H) 2 0 2
GLM 5 0 0 5 ) 0 0 ) 0 0 0
JPM 3 0 0 3 ®) 0 0 ®) ®) 0 ®)
MBC 0 0 0 0 @ 0 0 (€D) @ 0 @
MYC 0 47 0 47 0 (63) 0 (63) (16) 0 (16)
MYl 19 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 19 0 19
RYL 9 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 9 0 9
SCX 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
S0G 4 0 0 4 (©) 0 0 (©) 1 0 1
UAG 0 0 0 0 3) 0 0 3) (©) 0 (©)
EUR 50 EUR 219 EUR 0 EUR 269 EUR (23) EUR (320) EUR 0 EUR (343)
@
@
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2022 31

7

2022 31
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 38 EUR 38
0 0 0 0 1 1
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 39 EUR 39
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 50 EUR 0 EWR 50
0 0 0 0 219 219
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 50 EUR 219 EUR 269
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 50 EUR 258 EUR 308
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (81) EWR (81)
0 0 0 0 ) 2)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (83) EUR (83)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (23) EWR 0 EWR (23)
0 0 0 0 (320) (320)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (23) EWR (320) EWR (343)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (23) EUR (403) EUR (426)

2022 31
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (45) EWR (45)
0 0 0 0 (49) (49
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (94) EWR (94)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (376) EWR 0 EWR (376)
0 0 0 0 ) (5)
0 2 0 2 (58) (54)
EUR 0 EUR 2 EUR 0 EUR (374) EWR (63) EUR (435)
EUR 0 EUR 2 EWR 0 EUR (374) EWR (157) EWR (529)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (185) EUR (185)
0 8) 0 0 (38) (46)
EUR 0 EUR (8) EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (223) EWR (231)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (25) EUR 0 EWR (25)
0 0 0 0 123 123
0 [€h) 0 0 (236) (237)
EUR 0 EUR (1) EWR 0 EUR (25) EUR (113) EUR (139)
EUR 0 EUR (9) EUR 0 EUR (25) EUR (336) EUR (370)
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2022 31
2022 31
2022 31
2 3
0 342 0 342
0 152 0 152
0 101 0 101
0 96 0 96
0 80 0 80
0 1,498 0 1,498
0 87 0 87
0 112 0 112
0 277 0 277
0 723 0 723
0 640 0 640
0 37 0 37
0 83 0 83
0 78 0 78
0 375 0 375
0 81 0 81
0 7 0 7
0 281 0 281
0 889 0 889
0 269 0 269
0 96 0 96
0 29 0 29
0 452 0 452
0 589 0 589
0 302 0 302
0 112 0 112
0 174 0 174
0 298 0 298
0 110 0 110
0 454 0 454
0 95 0 95
0 30 0 30
0 90 0 90
0 2,569 0 2,569
0 889 0 889
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2022 31
2022 31
2 3
0 815 0 815
0 143 0 143
0 436 0 436
0 65 0 65
0 1,007 0 1,007
0 2,833 0 2,833
0 655 0 655
0 1,106 0 1,106
0 690 0 690
0 1,026 0 1,026
0 499 0 499
0 153 0 153
EUR (0) EUR 21,995 EUR 0 EUR 21,995
27 12 0 39
0 269 0 269
EUR 27 EUR 281 EUR 0 EUR 308
(78) ) 0 (83)
0 (343) 0 (343)
EUR (78) EUR (348) EUR 0 EUR (426)
EUR (51) EUR 21,928 EUR 0 EUR 21,877

2022 31
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cew
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cew
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cew
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Statements of Dperations cea
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Statements of Changes in Net AsSets e
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Statements of Cash Flows Yeat Endad May 31, 20

PIMCD Bura
FINCD Pl Tatnl Astum
Aitum Fund Fumd

Cash fMows from operating sctivities:

Mot |Scraass) i mat ety mauhng o ppere

=+

11,048 ER 12,8671

Adjustmeis f0 reconcie nef increase (decroasal in net assels resulling from
operations o met cagh prowvioed Dy opevating activiifes;

[Purchaies! ol kog-teim s o

Froes st o

|Pawmraridl on $han sxed Fdy ) g3
Frcmd o BaE 12N Ef
Popcmedy from mie of thork-Sem irgiuments, met 1 EB|
IPurchasesi mies of prchange- traded o comimby cearsd franoad feririene rainerecis, fed L T
|Purcharme] mdes : abiar neinmenty, nat Ll [}
V16
i 207 168
| i
g3 o
crease| in payabis dar mveriments puchased ] I
Taimeria pactaied 1474
3 1]
|
Mt 1ol figa ity i e =1 [’
Mat ke igami ko pertialy cleared frarca LT Ll
Mt ieaieed igam| b AED 435
il changs b e i 14 B
Mat chana i nipknd wraly hearnd Tranasl darnating aruments 1% el
Mot changes i il raccad BrRaTVE MrUmEND i 134
Paydoan lgan| b i3
Mt ot traton |soc i o | an irveimeni A&

Met cash provided by operating sctivilies g L& 1

T4s asimpanying raies s R | My 11, 82
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Statements of Cash Flows cam.

Veai Erdad Wiy 3

PIMCD Bura
FINCD Pl Tatnl Astum
Aitum Fund Fumd

Caxh Mows from fnancing activities:

Perers fipm ol sl

L f
B S 5
&3 1
T i
reparchas 3.7
tsach trar 1
x lrandacl ]
[trdaberd b usthikders, mal of pmmeriine) 0 153
Mot cash (used for) financing sctivities 1881 15,182
Mot facrpase) in Crsh ond Fomign Comamdy u
Cazh and Forafgn Curmency:
Begring of yaar o B
i 8
Suppirmental disclosure of cash fow information:
_ brbwrert pned duarire) the year i 12 R o

T4s asimpanying raies s R | My 11, 82
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Financial Highlights cesy Year Erded Ms
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Motes to Financial State

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fusd drcussed in thes neport (pach a "Func” and callectvely, the “Funds™), whach sha inclades each dass of unita of that Fund (sach & "CRasa” and goliectomly,
the "€ lassin "], is o series frunt of PIMCO Bermuda Trust (the T ™) an opereended unil bust estabilished under the Leas: of Beimada as @ multi-seties trasl porsaan|
t & trust doed executed by Winchaster (lebal Trust Comparry Limited on August B, 2001 (32 amanded from time o time, the *Trust Deed"). Efective as of the dade
al businass [Eassern time) on September 39, 2007, Maples Tnstee Seraces [Bermuda) Limibed [the “Tresiee ") was aogoinded s truttes of the Tnst. Pacthc Fvsitment
Wanagemert Company LLC {"FIMCD", the “Managar™ or the "investmens Aduiser™ ) is the sponscr of and was respensible for stnuchuring the Trust

Brerar Brothess Hamman & Co (TOBH| has entered nto b aipeestent with Saae Sreet Conpodaton | “State Sieer” | under which Stape Soreet will acquare BBH's
Irreosbor Sevvices busingws; which indudes it cttody, fund sccounteeg and sdmasatration, tramsder agency, dopositary, foreign exchange, Inntee sad securities knding
vensces The completion of the TANSACN0N 1% SUS{ECT 10 CUEKDMATY CSng Condons and reguiabony appiovals

T Trust o sisbeect 10 requilaton and speraiin &8 prownded ftor in the Investment Funds Ao 2006 and telsted rules telaling bo Sandand funds

T perms. of the Teust Deed confer upon the Trusiee. with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, 10 establish further funds in addition 1o the Funds
cureently in operatien &2 of the dane of this repait

Releimncs B undholdéid Deach, & "Undhalde™, and callecteesly, the “Unitkalden” ) in, of ot of (o an imasitmest o), the Fund isall mesn Unthalders ol the Funid

i bl wnits, o clasyes ol units (i applcabie, which ae atirbsstable 1 that Furdd

The Funds. presented in this 7eport are livied below

S S R l-’-._-m.n A A e S R S A S SR |
FIGD Ewrmada Fornge Love Duramn fas (St gy 52 fail with 0 “Fund of Fands” mructsss, 02 cefined i the rdg BF T Iseenmem Tram
FIRAT) fprrmda 1) 5 0w Dhoatias Fored Agsaates, ligan, o B kends with o emile giesriun n gy oo pradcion

D) Errargeng Macants Basd Furd LITTH
FIRED) Drrarggesy Mg Boad Furd | Vo Hedges
FINMLE) frroiigrng Maruns Baad Fusd 11

PR Foma Tl Bemre Tumd | Hared STl RN N 0AS by Wiy of peblc ohwree vusegh B Smrburo o Sapen, e Uy
FIRACT) ol Plesirs Faid br afpend 43 P ot o the dsiviee ¢ e Maruged
LD Shen-Tamn Srwwgy” | Dtared 10 measd msien in Japan by way o pebic sfemg Pessg o Soitbutor sadiod § ol

| anding oamgany n Jager, sod my be e 0 ot mvesion ot the dacbon of the Marager
FIT) Ervavgrsg Mot Bond Fund (M) [l oy 32 o Forndy b v i o0 endierlyng Pvessmwed wieci for nxch Fundy

e o Pt HEH St L gy i Wl 50 0 A e i Tt

st el & Sred 8 P g o P e [y Arereses, Agen o 17 Aol ad¥ § S 3let & ary SR SR

i N Srafegy & wfiend poy e mhiet | oty b v 1 e sy Foves

wiacle b = iwch:

Units of the PIMED Eung Tetal Retum Fund, PIMCO Real Rebem Fond, and AUD, BY, and LSO Classes of PIMCD Short-Torm: Stradogy have boon registered undor tho
Financial Insirumenits. and Exchange Liny of Lapan Lists ol sach of the emasning Funds snd the C{USDL 1{@Y}, and | (U0} Classes of PIMNCD Shan-Teon Strabegy
hurie ot been and ane fol curently expacied 10 be regishered under 1he Fiundial instruments and Exchange Law of lapan, Accondingly, such Unets of these Funds may
noit e, dinectly o indinectly, offerad in Japan or to any resident in Japan, except in complianoe with applicabls lapaness lms and regulations

2. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The halltwitng i a summary of Sighibeant stcourting poldies constently folkiwed by the Trst i the frepaiation of @ Fnandal statemeats i tonkormdy wnth
atcounting pringiples gererally acepted in the Unded States of America {*U15, GAAP) Each Fund & treated as an invessment company under the: reposting
tequitements of US GAAP. The peeparation of Bnancis] statements in accordance with U 5. GAAP requites management [o meke estimales and assumptions that
affact the reporied amaunts of assets and lighditios and disclesure of contngent sty and laksities at the cate of the fmandsl datements and S reported amounts
of increases and decneases in net aseis from OpRrElons GUrrsg The Iepoming pevind. ACtusl setu Ts roule differ froem those estimates

{a) Aowuired Funds The Trustee and the Manager muey apody all o 8 porton of the assets ol FIMCD [mengesg Maikets Bond Fusd UITF], P00 Dmengetg Maikels
Berd Fund (Yer-Hedged), and PINCO Emenging Markets Bond Fusd B (each refemed 1o hetewn as 2 “Fund of Funds® o the “Aoguiring Furd”, whach iewests in osher
Furst) 1o the epictnve crndil of She PRMCO Emetging Mackets Boad Fund (1) redetred bo Betem 44 an " Acqueed Fondis)”), Any sisets 10 sopled will bo held m duth
Boquired Fundls} a5 if received & By Viheie aisels &0E 50 appbed, the Asquired Furdls) will reco d the issue of units to the ielevant Aogu Ll Fured
oed unit ol such units and wil repurcharse such unitt a1 the reparchase poce per urst of sudh urets &t the ime al repurchase

LT

Hatss shoam in Ehe Finanoal Hsghlights do not include sxpenses of the Acquued Fundi) oo Nate 5, Fees and Expenses, lor further information regarding bend fees
a0 aoplicatds

k) Securitios Trassactions snd lrvesimant Incama Secun Ted fanaacteer e eeordid 2 of ™e vade dane foe I-na-m-a:-vm-trg Dot fodes. Seruntied puschated o
sold on a when-tsued o delayed-delrery bess may be wttied bepond & standand settfement period for the ecunty aler the trads date. Reshied gains and losset
Trom sequrities sold are recoeded on the idemified oost bass. Deddend inoome s reconced on the ex-dividend dare, encegt cenain divdends from *I:I'EI'J'l SETUNnes
wihene the ex-davdend date may have pasoed, wiath o fecorded a2 000 24 a4 Fund & miormed of the ex-dnadend date Interost iniome, adjusted fiar the atoretion of
drecnimby ard amartization of premiums, & recomded on Bhe admmeal basis from setement date wath the saception of ssoonties with a foesand starfmg elfactae dadn,
whene interest intome i recorded on the acorual barss from eflective date. For conventible securities, premisms atributable 1o the comersion feasure are not

A P | M 31, 322 M
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o Financial Statements

ampriized Estmated tax Sabilties on cortain forpign seouries ane recerded
an an accrusl basr ard are ollected o8 componants of interes? income of nel
change n unieakized appreciation {deprediation) on estments on the
Stements. of Operations, &t apeeoptiate. Tax labdaies realized as a result ol
such secuerty sales ano reflacted 42 & companent of net reaized gain (losd) an
estments an the Statements of Dperatiorn. Paydown gaems and bokses on
moitgsge-telated and other sset-backed wcunties, d sy, ane pecorded as
companents of imemest income on the Statements of Dpevations Debt
obligaticrn may ba placed on non-aoonaal status.and related intenest income
may be reduced by ceasng outrent scciuals and wiitng off incerest racehrable
waten the collection of all ar a portion of inberest has become doubthul besed
on onsstertly applied procedures. A debi cbbgation ks restved from non-
sociul L8aTus vehish 1he fiSusd Febemid RBEEEL payments o when
collectabilty of interes) & probable.

el Caah and Fernign Cusraney The francial ssatements of each Fund are
presented using the curmengy of the pimary ecoromic smvisgnment in which o
operates (the “functional curmenoy™ ). The hmotional cumendy fer each of the
Fursdy i Based i the below table

Thar et values of foreign seouities, curency holdings and ofher ausets
and habslities are trarelated ran eadh Fund's funetonal ourency based en the
cunten mochamge tates eath business day, Purchases and sabes of sequritios.
and income and experse Rews denominatad in foreign curencies, i any, are
tranlated irdn pach Fund™s iespective functional curency at the pxckasge
rate in effect on the transaction date. The Funds do ot separately repart the
ellects of changes in focegn enthange rates from changes in maket proes an
secunities held, Such changes are incuded in net realized and net changes in
unigakped gain o loxs [rom iyestmaents o the Statements of Dperatiors

Tt Funds may nvest in foreign curnency dencminated secarities and may
enigage in foreign curency tansactions either on & spot feash) bash at the
rabe provaing in the cumendy exchange markel o the time or through a
lorward foreign curmency contran. Realized forsgn exchange gans of losses
alising from sales of spot Samtigh curenties, Cumenty gains of ioddes resfined
foetween the rade and selement dates on secutiies ansactizns and the
diffierence between the reconded ameonts of dvidends, ieves), and foreign
withholding 1anes and the functissal cumency ecuivalent of the amounts
achually received or pand ave included in net ceabzed gain or hoss on fosegn
curmency Bantactioed on the Statements of Operators. Net unrealized Toreign
wachangn gair and kriseu ansng ineen changes sh fonsign echangs rates on
{oresgn denominated assets and liabdities other than investments in secunities
Fieded a0 the end of the tepaiting period are included in net change in
unmealized appreciation or depreciation on foreign cutrency axsets and
Tiabslities on the Stasemenss of Operations

The Met Asiet Value [ *BAV*) sod 1otal setuing ol certen Funds (oi Cledaes
thereck, a5 appbcable) are presented in the currency for whidh the NAY i
reparied |he "NV coreney | as detalled in each Fund's OBeing
Wemarandum (the *Offering Memorandum™). For the purposes of the
presentaton of the NAY and the total return in the HAY qurency, the
mgnrﬂ'ng and rndinr; PNy arg comed u:iru] thir pariod hr;inrinq and
endng exchange rabes, respectively, and distributions are comveried uung the
eathange tate a1 the Ume of the detnbution See the Ballowing table lor e
NAY cumency of pach respecine Fendt

= &0 |
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 PIMCT: Ermsscqpre] Mkt Bond Ford | Yas-Haogad) | s
M) Ermenging Markes Boad Foed |
& JIBAL
- JiiRI
»  JjINRI
v JINGNI
»  JITEY
J (AR
FIMLD Eurg Tom Henare ard ] A
P CL) Feal Rgtum fund L% dollar | L5 dalm
PAMED Sors- Teem Siraiagy
LA fumiimha s botar L5 dolar
LA 11 ] LIS dollar L5 dolar
= JLam] Japerres ym LS. doles
- J 150N Japunets LLE. dolar
= AT gt vin L5 dotas
= S dedar U5 fols

) Multielass Dperations Each Claws af a Fusd affered by the Trust hay
rights 1o the assets of the Fund equal 1o that of ather Classes of the same
Fund, a4 applicable, except bor ypecific siets and gains and losses diigrated
o a Class relating to curnency hediging operations, Income, non-Class spesifc
expenses, aoed ron-Class spenfic realized and unrealized capital gains and
Tosses are allocated 1o each Chass of units based on the relatne net assets of
each Class of the respective Fund, a5 applicable Class spedific expenes
currently nclude menagement, stvivony, sdmnstative, agency, and
dtnbution fres, whee apphuhk

e Disribution Paliey The following table shows the asticinated frequency
al distrastions lor each Furd Distributions from each Fund may be declaied
avd disanibuted 10 Unithodders only upon the authorization of the Marager,
which suthotraton may be wthield al the Manages's docsetion

1 s P 1Al

PRICE Bun Ten! Srrsan Furd

FIRD gy Markony Beed Fond LETF
PACT Errwerpng Markec Baoat Furd (Yoo-Hedged]
PIMCT Emerpng Markots Bead Furd
PRIDD ere-leem Sraiedy
. JIF
L JiEE
PICE Berrmaate Farsgn Lo Diarmeis Fumd
FIMCD Bermods LS Low Duration Fand
ML Foal Pt Fund
FMDG T Terss Siratwgy

FIMED Emergnyg Maskess Band Furdd iM
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Distributicrd, d any, wil genemlly be made from the relevant Fund’s (o
Class's, il applcablo) net mrtiment incoma, In addition, the Managor may
authorize the payment of net realized capnal gains avalable for datribubon
Bedctianal destributigrn. may be declared & the Manager deem: sppiopriste
Drnibutaens poad with respect 8o any Fund [or Class thesead, if applicable)
wall it B MAN af sach Fand {or Clads thenead, i apphcabils) A1 the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash detributions from a Fend (or Class tereal,
A npplcatie) may sither be ieirvested in additonal units of & Tusd for Clans
1kl il applcabdeh or paid 1o a Unitheldcer in canh, Canh paymonts val bo
paed im the NAY cutrency of the Fund Each hund (or Class thereof, o
appbcatie) may deckare St distibmations of comiidered necessany n ondes
{0 rmainkan 3 resscnable lewel of digtnibagions Tor a Fund (oo Clans thoreof d
applcatia) bn the everi that there i nadequate net income and nat reafized
capitsl gaing o pay & ditibutan ol o Fund jor Chass theread, il applicable)
mequired b,-'.iw I:Iﬁ‘e:irg Ktemorandum, he ‘.1ana|;nl miry pay a dasrbubon
condimbng ol & poitian of the dipetal af sich Fund (& Cled thensal, il
applcatie) Dsttibutions not collecied wathin six years from thew due date
well lapse snd will 30cnse wo the benefit of the selevant Fund [or Class theeof,
d applicatle)

11 Mawe Becounting Pronsuncemests snd Regulatary Updaten [0 Manch
000, the Fnanaal Atcouting Standards Board {7 FASE") naued an
Avcountng Sandeds Updase ("AN"], ASU 2020-D4, which peovides
aptioral guidance 1o eass the potentisl acoounting burden seaclated with
trarrtanng sway bom the [ondon Inbechank Dtfensd Rate ("LIBOR"} and
ather selerence rabes that are expected to be discontinued. ASU 020-04 is
eflective dai certain relerence rate-related contract modifications that cocu
dwing the penod March 12, 1020 thigugh December 31, 2022 bn March
2021, the administratoe fior LIBOR annoenced the extension of the publication
al & majority of the US0 LIBOR semings to fone 30, 2023. Managemel &
consmpscndy pvatuating the potential effect a discontiruation of LIBOR could
hawe on the Funds inveiments and has defimened (hat i B undiety the
ASLS sdaption wil have a matemal impact an the Fundy” iinandial
wtatemants

I INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

() Dnvesrtmant Valuation Palizies Tha proe of a Furdy units i based on
the Fund's NAY. Tre AN of a Fund, or sach of its Classes. as applcable, &
detetmined by dividing e total value ol portfobo investments and othes
aseis attibutable to that Fund or Class, less any liabiltes, by the tofal
number of wevits outstanding of that Fund or Class. Omeach Fund's Dealing
Doy (s describsed in che cuirnent Difering Memarandum of the

Trust], Fumd wnity are oodimarily walued o of the diose of reqular trading on
the Mew York Stack Exchange {"NYSE Closa™) Information that beccesss
ingwn 1o 1k Funds or ther agents alier the time 4 of whch NAY has Been
calculated on a particuler day will not generally be wwed B0 rebinatctvely sdunt
the price ef & security or the NAY determired eailier that day. Each Fund
ieseneed the fight 10 change the time 24 of whch s NAY = calculated o

the Fund closes earlier

Fer purpedes of caboulating NAY. portiolo securities and odhes assets for
wiith mmad ket quotes ane sy avilahle e valued 1 markel valoe. Market
walue i genarally determined on the basi ol official closing prices or the las
repoiled sales prides, of i fa salkes are repoited, bavad on guoles oliained
froim establrshed marict maters oo prices (rcluding evaluated prices) supplicd
by the Funds' appeowed pr i) wWiCes, quokation reparting syskems and
ortheer third-pamy sources {logether, “Pricing Senaces®} The Funds will
nomally use pricing data for domestic equity securities recenved shortly aiter
thi N¥5E Close and do not ecemaly take into accoant radeg, dearances o
settiements that take plate afier the NYSE Cloie H market value pricng is
uwd, @ 'r,:'ﬂ]u (reare ) 5.} equity sequnity aded on & foreign exchange or on

mote than ere exchange is fypimlly valued wsing pricing information from the
wnchange considored by FIMCO (o be the primay anchange A farign (non
%) equity secury vill be valued as of the close of ading on the loreign
exchange, of the NYSE CRose, ifthe NYSE Clode sotur before the end of
trading oo the foreign exchange. Dorestc and forsgn [non-LLS ) fixed
ronme saourities, non-exchange traded darvatives, and squity options are
mamally valued an ihe basls of gooes obtained Inom biokes and deakes o
Pricing Services wing such data reflecting the principal markets for thowe
securities Prices obisned from Pricing Senvices may be hased an, among
athes things, inlormranon provided by marker makers or estrmanes of market
waluss chiained from yeld data relating to nvestrents or securifies with
similar characberstics. Cevtain faved incoene securities purchased on
delayed-celresry hiie oo mbtked 10 markel dily untl waftlamesl & B
Hprward settherent date. Exchance-traded cptions, expept egusy optiom,
furtures aed options on futures ane walsed a1 the sanlement arice deteiminged
by the relvant exchange, quobes cbtarad kom a quatation reparting tysieem,
estatfisherd market makers. or pricdng senvices. Swap agreements are valoed
@ the basis of markel-based prices. supghed by Pracing Sernces o quotes
alained {rom beakers and doafers. A Fundt mweilmonts in open-end
management imestment tompanies, otver than exchange-traded furds

N ETFs" ], e valued & che MY of such immssbments

Hl o foreign {mon- U3, ) equity secunity’s value has materally changed alter the
chorie of the security's primary exchange or principal matket but belore the
NYSE Choae, the seouwity mzy be wvalued 21 fai valee Bazed on procedures
witabdlished and approved by the Manage. forgign [non-U.5 | equity

secu ties that do not trade when the NTIE is open are also valued at fair
waloe With respest in Tossign (ron-U5.) equity secunies, a Fund may
detevmire The Tair vadsr of mvetments based oninformation prowided by
Priging Services and other third party vendors, which may recommend
wialow of adjustments with tefetente to ather secoritied, ndtet o asiets
comsidering whether fair valaation iy mequired and in determining faie

waluess, & Fund may, amosg ather things, conaider sigaificant events (which
iy be considerod to include changed. in the vakos of L1 5. securitnes of
securities indices) that ooee altar the clase of the relevznt market and bafore
the NYSE Ciove A Fund may widde modesng 100k peovded by thed -party
werdars 10 detemine fair valyes of foreign (nea-UL S, ) securitics, For 1kese
parposes, any movement in the applicabls reference ndex or inttrument

| zera wigger”] benween the sarker ciose of the applicable foreige markes
and the KYSE Cloee may be deemed 1o be a ul]n:ﬁ;qu;{«-h't prampting e
axplication of the pricing maooed (sfectively resultieg i daily fawr

walustioni) Farsgn eichanded may peral 1adng o foaegn [noa-LLS b
wquity wecwites on days when e Trnt s rod cpen lor business, which may
eesilt in o Fund’s portfalio investments eing aBecied when Unisholders are
wndlle bo buy of el unity

Seniot wecured Toating rase keans dor which an active tecondiry mackel easts
1o a reliable degree wall ba valued at the mean of the last avadable bdlat
rices in the market fof such b, a6 o ovided by & Pricing Service. Serme
secured Tloating rate lnans for which an active secondary masket does nat
ol o a rebale degee will be vabesd gl Tk vahss, winch & intended io
dogrammats market vakee. (n walung a senior secured Moating eate boan at
fair valun, the factors oonsidersd may include, bt ane na limited 10, the
foliewing: (3] the creditworthiness of the bomower and any imerediate
participants, [by the terms of the laan, (¢} recent prices in the mariket fo
similar igans, if any, and {d) recent prces in the market for iminements of
Smilar guality, tate, penod il next inbese rate deset and matueny

Ieveestments valkeed in curendes othes than the functisnal estency

ol .a Fund o conseried to the functional oumency ||1ir|g enchango rajes
n:q-\mp-:l!w-.?h-':r-g Services. A a resdt, the value of wach imvesiments and
i Turm, the WAY of the Fund's units may be stected by changet in the value
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of oarmencees in relation to the functional cumency, The walue of invesiments
tradec in foiign matoets or denoemirabed in cumencies othee tuan

the funtional cumency may be affecied signficastly on a day that the Trust s
nol pen for budiness. A5 & e, 10 the sxient that a Fund helds fore an
(non-L1S ) imnestrrents, thar valioe of thoso irree st Ak iy change &1 tmas
when you cannat purchase, redeam or exchange umits and the vales of such
rressiments will be iellecied in the Fund's next cakulsted NAY

ivestrents for which macket quates or matioet-Sased valuateom are nat
readily mailible are valued at kar value as detemined in good faith by

The Managai of perond s0ing at thei diecuisn The Mansger has adopied
methods for valuing secunties and other asiets i orcumstances whene
marked quates are not readily available, and hus delegated to PRACO the
tesponsibikty foe apphang the fad valuabon methods In ghe ewent thal market
quates or matoel-heved valuatiom aie not readdy avelable, and the securdy
ar asset cannot Be valsed pursuan 8o a W"\]gﬁ" \]Pﬂf{II-‘Ell Wil L D
methed, the walue of the secundy of kisel will be determened in good Faith by
1k Vahuson Commitiee. Markel quotes a6 considered nat readly avadable
o CEramstances where thess & an absence of oorment o reliakile market-
bied dita (e, trade informatios, bidiask sdoimation, edcative makel
quatations {"Beoker Quotes”), Pricing Services” pricesh, inciuding where
wnnis ooout aftel the dlose of the relegant market, bul prior o the NYSE
Clcae, that materially aMect the: valhses of the Fund's secuntes or ssets. In
afdition, malket quotes are consideed not lnndlg.am]ah'ﬂ when, due to
xirpaidinany itumilanded, the sachandgs of maikets on which thie
secunisies trade do not open for trading for the entire cay and no other
market prices are avalable. The Manager is responsible for monioting
cigndizamt events that may matenaly aflect the values af the hund's sequrfties
ar @ty and lor deteiminang whisther the value of the aoplicable seowitas or
arssels should be reevaluated in light of such significant events

When & Fund wses Fair waluation to desermine the value of a porifolio seamny
of other asset for purpodes of calculating ith RSV, wuch imestiment wall not
e griced on the basis of quotes from the primary market in which they s
trasded, Bl rathes may Be prced by analher metsod Fat the Manager ot
petsons acking at their deection believe ioflects bir value. Fair valuation may
tequire subjective determimations about the value of a secunity. While

the Trust's pobcy 15 infendad ba tesull i a calodabion of & Fund's MAN thai
fairty reffectts secunty values as of the time af pricing the Trust cannat ensure
that fak vakues deterrined by the Manager of peisons aczing a1 e
directaon would accurately teflect the price that a Fund could obtsn fof e
secunity ol it weere to dispose of that seowity a of the pme r:-'p'iriru] [Bar
enstance, in a forced o distressed sale) 1k paces used by @ Fund may differ
Irom the walue tuat would be realized A the securities weie sold

b Fair Valoe Hiorsrshy U5 GAAP dasorbes Toirvalue ay the price that

i Fuorsd etk reckrve bo e an asiet o pay b0 irafrlel a lisalty i an oindedly
trarmaction between marke] participants al the measunement date |1
establshas 3 fav value Ferarchy that peioritizes inputs 10 vahaation methods
and requines disclosure of the fair value hierarchy, separately for each majpor
cateqgery of assets and Babilgies. that seqregates Tair value measurements into
hevets (Lewal 1, 3, of 3] Thee inputs of methodology wsed o valwing sequities.
aie nat mecedsardy am irndicatesn af the raks ssocisted with swesting in teose
wocunitios Lewels 1, 2, and 1 ol the kair valus hierarchy are defined as. follows:

® Ll 1—Quobed praces o st mankets o eechanges [or denbial st
and Eabilifies

® Level 2—Sajnificant othe obaevvable s, which may include, but ae
nat imited to, quoted prices for similat assots or habslities o matkets that ane
artive, quated prices for identical or similar assets of liabilities in markets that
mig nEL s, inputi Sher than quated padid that soe abievable lor the
awsets or babilties {such as interest rates, yield cunees, volatiities, prepayment
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speeds, hss sevenites, credit risks and delault rates] or other market
catrabodatid inputs

= Levvel J=Signilicant unconersable imputs based on the best inlomaton
aribkable ofi the eFcamstandes, 1o the eatend olisenabla inpuls o6 fal
wimbable, whuch may include saumptions made by the Manage: or persans
acting at their divecbion that are wed in detzrmining the fain value of

P ESTITREAY

i socordands with the iequiremests of US GAAP, the smounts of mantfe
ir and out of Leved 3, if material, are disclosed in the Notes to Schedule ol
brvesiments f0f each respeciive Fund

For liw valuation wiing sgahcss unobaervable inputs, US. GAAP requined
10 disrinse tramdes into and o of Lewel 3 o the tairvalue hintarchy and
pathases and issues of Level 3 assets and liabdities during the period
Addimonally, U3 GAAF requines quaniitatre mformaticn regaeding the
sgriicant unabsevable inputs reed = the dotermination of fair valee of
et of liabdines categornied s Leval 3 inthe far value hisrarchy. in
stxomienie with the requinements of U5 GAAF, & lar value hieranchy, and o
il defads of ':q"uhrn'ul wnckaervable inpyts, have been included inithe
Nates b Sevedule of irvestments fer each reepective Fund

le| Valwation Techadgees aed tha Falr Value Hisrarchy

Lawed 1, Level 2 and Level 1 irading assets and trading labilithes, a1

fair value  The valustion method fa ".r’.l:lllquﬂ.'_l and :llgll-hl.dul: =0 L}
wid in dirbermiining the fair values of pordolio securitios o othir assets and
labiksies cotegeized as Leved 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fax value berarchy
a0 Toliows

Fued income secuntes including corporate, conveitdle and musicipal bands
@wd noies, U5, govemment agences, U5 reasury obligations, SOVETRIGN
risnits Bank |oans, corweitesls plfl'm.':-d sescunbed and non-U 5 bands ane
rimally valued on 1he basis of gedtes obtained fram biokess and dealers or
Q'F{Il'lg Services: that use broker-dealer guolanons, reporied trades or
wialuation estimates fram their internat pricing modeks, The Fricing Seraoe’
rivrnal models use inputs that am obsenvabie such a0 sveer detah, intenest
Fales, :.‘EU CUNwEs, prepayment speeds, oe |fs-'=if"p'93d5. oetau't rates and
gacted prces fon iimiles avwets. Secun s thal v dmilar valuation
fechniques and inputs as described above e categonized as Leve 2 of the
e value hiecaicky

Foed income securities porchassd on o delsyed-delvery Bass of &5 &
repunchae pommitment in a sale tlll,h.wk Eransactaen are marked fo market
daily urtil setthemant at the forward sartlement date and are cateqorzed &
L 2ol the air vidus hizaichy

Morigage-related ant asset-backed wecaition ane usmally ssued i sepacate
franches, of dasses, of weowities within each deal These seowities are also
iy walued by Prooreg Seénated That e beokir -dealsd quotationg,
reparted rades of walustion estimates. feom thair indednal pricing models, The
gricing model for theve seoutities usually conslder wanche-level aniibutes,
curmen markel data, eitimated cish lows and markel-based eeld speaads for
each tranche, and incaiporase deal tollateral perfemante, as avadable:
Monigage-rebated and assel-batked seCuiities. that e simdar valuatom
fechniques and ingrrts a5 degoribed above ato categonzed as Lewe! 7 of the
dzim value hieralri'r

Comman siocks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and Emandal denvatne
ratioments, sich a5 bituisd canlrat, rgvls and wiitasts, of Sfbons of
futyres that are traded on a ratonal seaxities sxchange, aw stated at the
Rast repoted sae of setthement price on the day of valuation, To the e
Thise secutities. aie actady {raded and valuwation sdutments ane nod applied,
fhey are :.1‘.;\-gn:wimd at Lewvel 1 of the fair valoe hierarchy
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bveesteaents valued ddenomisated) in curencies ather than the fenctional
curmency of a Fund ane comverted 1o the kunctional cormency ving exchange
rates. Goumercy spaf and Torwand rates) obrained from Pricing Serdces. As a
resif, the NAY of a Fund's units may ke affecied by changes in the vaiue of
currencies i pelation 1o the functonal catrency. The valoe of securities traded
n foreign markets e dencminated i curencies othet than the funchianal
cunency may be afecied signidscantly o 8 day tat the Trust i nol open fod
business. Valuation adjustments may bo applied to cortain secerities that are
solpfy traded on a ferexgn exchange fo aocount for the rarket movement
benwesn the dote of the foreagn market and the NFSE Close. These seturimes
are valued using Pricing Senaces that consider the cormplation of the trading
patterms of the forelgn security ta the ntraday tracing in the U % markets Tor
ieiiments. Secunibid iAnd theie wiliahon adjustments e criegonted il
Lewm| 2 of the fair valus hierardy, Prederied securitss and other equities
tradec on mactie markets o valued by refesende 1o simdar instraments are
sho categonned a4 Lewd 7 of the lar value hierarchy

Equitylinked secutities are valsed by referencing the Last reported sale of
setthement price of the linked relesenced eguity on the day of valuation
Feregn enchange aduitments are apglied 1o the last repoited piice 1o
convert the linked equity’s trading cumency b The contract's setting curmency
These limvestmends aie categoased o Lol 2 of the [ak valis hieraichy

Irrsnsbments in tegeieied open-end nvestmen companies {ether than ETF4)
wall b walued haned wpan 1he NAYs ol ssch swestiments and are categonmd
a5 Level 1 of the fair valoe beeranchy. |MvesImEnts in unregisiered open-end
mreiiment camparies will be calodated based upon the NAVL ol such
swesiments and are considesnd Leval | peovided that the NAY: ae
ofrservable, raloulated daily and are the value at which both purchases and
saabe. vl B conchu bed

Valuation adjustrrents may bo asplied to cotain suchange traded futwes and
aptines 8o acrnend for market movement Between the earhange setilement
and the NYSE close. These sequrites are valued using queses obrained from a
quatasion reporting yystem, established market makers or pricing senvices.
Financial derivatives useng these valuation adjustments sre categonized as
Ll 2 of the Tt vashop hugrandhy

Dquity exchnige-traded options and over the counter Bnancial demiatrve
estrumenss, such as forwand hlpigrl tumengy confracts and opticrs contracts,
dhed v thatsr vk Biomm ndie: by sast piced, indeed, reletends raled, and
ather inguty or & tombination of thewe lagiors. These contracts ae normally
valued on the basis of quotes ohtained from a quotaten reportng system,
estahluhed murket mekem o Preng Senvioed (narmully determered as of the
WYSE Closel. Depending on the pinduct and the terms.of the frassaction,
linancial desreative instruments cas be valeed by Pricng Senices using a
wovied of techrigues, induding simulstion prcing modeh. The picing modks
use s that ane ohaerved from actively quoted markets such as guoted
prices, ssuer derails, Indices, bid/ask spreads, insesest ranes, mplled
wolatilties, yiold cunves, dividencs and -rxrh.'ﬂl]r' rates. Financial dermatneg
nstruments. that use similar vabuation techniques and inputs a4 desoribed
shove are cabegorred a5 Level 2 of the lair vake higsandhy

Centrally cleaned ywvaps and aver Bhe counber ywaps denwe thest value Irom
underlying asset prices, indioes, refetence rases, and ather inguts or &
combination of these lacters. They ane valued using a broker-deaber bid
guistatson of on markel-based prices. provided by Prairg Sernoes {nomally
determined a5 of the NYSE Close) Contraly cheared vwaps and over the
Counber swaps can be valued by Pricng Senvices using a series af technrigues,
intluding siewdlation gricing models, The pricing modek may use inputs that
are absened from actively quoted markes sach a5 the overnight index swap
rate (045, LIBOR foreand rste, mntenest raned, ywekd curves and coedn
spreads. These seduwited ane casegodied an Level 2 of tha fair valus hieranchy

‘When a fair waluation method is applied by the Manager that uses sgafican
unciriecviable inputy, invweiments will b priced by a mithod that

the Ianager or persons acting at ther direction beleve reflects: fair value ard
e categonped as Level 3 af the tai value bierarchy

oy pricing procedues set the bate pece of a fined income sty and
sulmeqeently adnst the price proportionally to market value changes of a pre
determined secutity deemed 1o b2 comparable in duration, generally a LS
Tneasury of soereign nobe based on counlry ol [ssuance. The bate phice map
b2 a Brokec-dealer quote, transaction grice, or am Entemal value as demoed by
aualyus of matker data The base peice of the SECuTily fray be 1858t o 3
perodic basn haied o the awadsbulity of market dats and procedures
approved by the Valuaton {},nlqunhr Commities ‘Slgn:ﬁ:qnl;fharqﬁ. i the
wnchriervable mputs of the ooty prading process. (the base price| would nesult
m direct and propoitsons changes m the lar value of the secuty, These
seout ities e cateqerzed as Level 3 of the Tak value hisrarcy

i thir '1-||41|'Ir maluated vender pricing s nod available or nal deemed 10 be
ircicatree ol fair wake, the Manager sy #lect 10 obrkin Boker

Quotes directy from the broker-dealer or passed-throsgh Broker Quate from
& third-party vendai_ In (e event that bier value w5 bated open & Lngle
sourced Ercloer Cucte, these securities ane calegoriped &6 Linel 3 of the fair
walue hearchy. Broke Quotes e hypscally receved fom established market
prtapants. Akhough independently 1econaed, the Mansger dots not have
the trarspacency bo view the underlying inputs which spport the maricet
qootatan Jkgn ficant changes & the Broker Quote wiu d hawe direct and
proportsmnal changed mi the fair vehae of the secunty

Releience inttrument valuation edtimabes faw value by ubhsing the comilabon
of the SECLFAY L0 one of more teoad-baied secorities, market indices, andior
athet Francial instrumints, whose micing mbeemation is readily availatle
Ursckreorvakio inpats. may inclode thove wbed moalgorthm formulas haed on
percentage change in the reference instruments aadior weghts of each

el prence instnament. Sagsifcan thanges in the unctrerable inpats would
eekuft in direct and proporional changes in the fair valus of the sacuriy
These securities are cafegorized as Level 3 of tha fair value berarchy

‘Sheeri-term debd instruments {uch 25 commescial paped) havieg a remsining
madurity of B0 days or besa may be valued at emortined coad, 30 long as the
amarized oot value of such shart-teem deli instnimenis i approximately the
abend a4 the Tan value Bl the rinement i determined wathaul the uis of
amceiiged ot valuation. These secunities ame categorized ay Level 2 or Level
3 of e fow value heevarchy degending on the source of the base prce

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

{a) Delwyed Defivary Transsstions Cortain Fusds mag purchase o1 sl

oo ities on 8 disped-deleeiry base. Thews iranssctiond mmoke a
commilmint by a Fund to purchaie o sell securitics Tor a pregeiermingd price
of yisd, wath payment and delrerny takng place beyond the Cusionasy
seftlenecd penod. Wheh delayed-delrery irafachond ane outstardmag,

& Fund veill designate or recene as collateral bgud assets o an amogn]
sufficent o mest the punchase price o respedtive obligations. When
paitkasing o setumly on o delayed-delvory Been, 4 Fund astumes the rights
anad risks of ownership of the security, including the risk of price a~d yield
Mlacnsations, and 1akes such fuctuanons ine acoount when detemining i
MAY & Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delayed-delrmy transaction
#1er it % entered indo, which may resslt in 3 realized gainor less. Wi

a Fund has seld & seourty on & delayed-del very basis, the Fand does not
pticipate in e gaims and losses with respect (o She seournity

) inflationindexed Bends Cortain Furch may st in inflatien mdeved
Bandi. Inflaton-shdesd Bonds aie aid ineome wecmised whods piaigal
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wilue &5 periodically acjusied by the rae of inflation. The interest rate on
thrsn bonds i geneially fimed at muassde 91 2 rate foveor thaan typical bonds
Civer the life of an inflation-indexed Bond, however, interest will be paid
nesed on a principal value, which o scpated Tor eflstien Asy increase of
decrease i the principal amount of an inflation-nddoed bond will Be nduded
a0 imterest income on tha Statements of Operations, even though investors da
ol redesve thes princpal untd materily. Repapment af the otiginal band
aringipal upon matwrity (as sdpnted for nflation) i quaranteed in the cane of
WS TIPS For bonds that do not peovide a similar quarantee, the adjusted
principal value ol the bord repaid at maturity may be less than the otiginal
principal

Is} Lown Participations, Assignmests sl Qriginations Certain Funds may
el in dinect debil insEruments which ane inberésts in amounts cwed to
benciers ot lending yyrdicates by corpovate, govesnmenial, or ather borowen.
A Furef's iesiments i loans may be in the foim of partiopatesd in loans o
aaigrmenits of all or & portion of losm oom thind pacties or imestments in or
angnations of koans by the Fund. A loan is oler administered by a bavk o
ather financial insstubon (the *lender” ) than acey as agert lor al holders The
agee adminniens the 1eema of tha loan, as specified in the loan agreemant

A, Fured may iewest in mulbple seies o) Banches of a kzan, which may have
warging eires ard carry difltent ssisosied dds. When a Fund purchases
assigremenits from lencers @ ocquines dinect m]'r'l:;. against e bosroswers of the
kaans. These loans may include particiations in bridge loans, whidh are loans
Taken oul by bointiir 1o & dhdat perod (Iypealy beds than o pear]
pending arrangement of more permanent financing thicugh, for exsmple, the
visubnce of bonds, frequently high yeeld bonds ssed for the purpode of
atquistions

Thae typers ol [oans and eelated imsestments in which e Fusds may imaest
'Iill.ﬂé.. HTEN] Alher, et basrs, subadnabed loans [ns -\.I':J'"? LEl ]
fmn loans, B-Motes and mezeanine Band), whole loang, covemsenaal real
estate and cther commercial loans and structured loams. A Fand may
anginale lnans or soguee divect inberesis in loans theough primary loan
distnbastiores andlor in private transactons. In the case of suboedinated loans,
therz may be significant indebtedness ranking ahea of the bomower's
abligatin 1o the holder ol sisch a loan, nduding in the event ol the
bomowers imsokenoy, Meszaning [aars are typically secured by 2 pledige of
an egety interesd n the margage bomower that owns the eeal estate rather
Ikan an intenet in & mongage

Imvestrenty i doand may include wrfunded laam commitments, which are
contractual ebligations for fund ng Urdunded loan commitments may nclude
revohvng oredit fachiies, which may ohligate 2 Fund 1o supply addtional cash
1o the bomowes on demard. Unfunded loa commitments regesent @ lotue
abligation in full, even though o percentage of the committed amount may
nat b utdided by the bofrowes When ineating o & loan partiopation,
& Fund b the right 1o reotive payments of peinpal, meeres) and any feds jo
which it Is entithed only frem the lender sefing the loan agresment and only
upan meoeipt of payments By the lender from the barower, A Fusd may
ieceive a commilment fee based on She undravwn portion of the enderiang

e o o edit poetion of & laen Ba certain droumstanioes, @ Fund may receve a
ponilty fee upan the prepayment of a loan by & Sormower. Foed eamed o
paid are regorded 35 & OO of interest income or injesest aapenia
tpspeCively, on the Stacements of Dperaters. Unfunded loan commiaments
s ieflpcted 24 o Babitty on the Statements of Asieb and Liskeftes.

|# Morigage-Aslated and Diber ArsstBached Sacusitien Cotain Funcs may
el in morigage-related and cther assat-backed secanlies tha doictly of
ndeegly repersenil a paticipation in, or & secund by and payabie from
b o raal property. Momgage elated securithes are created fram poots of
tesitdential of commercisl morigage loams, ingludihg markgsnes koans made by
sdvings and lgan institutions, morigage bankers, commercial banks and

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

athers. These secuntes provide a monthly payment whach consists of both
rnetesl and prinopal, Inferei] may be datermired by fned or adfjustatie rates
The rate of prepayments on underying morigages will affect the price and
wolatikty of & mongage-selated secunity, and may have the efisct of
shcrtening of extanding the effective duration ol tee secusty relatve 1o what
was antiopated ot he tme of puichase. The timely payment of principal and
o bl of DEILAIN MOn ga ge-fa e tecurilies i guatanieed with the Sl fash
aned oredit of the U5 Govesnmend, Pocls created snd guaranteed by non
gavemmental issuars, indhuding gereenment-gponsored coporations, may be
suppormed by varous loms of insurance o guarantees, bist there can be no
aurance that privase nseers of quarantors can meet their obligations under
the irsurance policies o quarseios serangaments. Many of the risks of
wiepiling i mortgage-relaled detur el secufed by corrmeiiul morlgage
Icans riflect e efects of local and oches economic condiSiorn onreal estate
makets, the ability of 1enants to make lpase payrrsents, and the ability of a
propoity 1o aftract and retain \onants. Thato socuritios may B less quad and
mayy exhibit greater ice volatility than other types of mortgage-related o
other asset-backed securities, Othes asset-backed securities are created bom
ey hypes of Jsets, including, butt not limited 10, Juto loans, accounts
receiable, such s cract card receivaiolies and hospital acoount recervables,
hme exuily loarn, student loans, bost loam, mobile kome loans,
recreatonal vehicle boaen, mard sctused H‘J\.I'i.i"q o, aecaft leases,
computer beases snd syndicated bask loans. The Fusd may invest in any feval
ol the cagetsl souune of as aoer of mongage-backed o aeuet-backed
stourties, including the equity or “first loss” tranche

fal Collataralized Mortgage Oblsgations (*CMOs") @0 deln obbgavons of &
legal eetity thal are callasersiined by whole marftgage kiss of privats
moitgge bonds and divided into classes. CMOs are nectured inbo muhiple
clxses, efien referred to as “tranches”, with each class bewing o diifasent
stated materity and entiled 10 a different schedule for paymentt of prinopa
and interest, including prepayments. ChOs may be less liquid and may exhibit
greser prace yolalil gy than ather fypes of morigage-related ot asset-backed
wowities

N Stiipped MortgageBacked Securitimn | ™5MEL") a8 demvatve mulli-ilass
mdilgage wiurtics. SMBS aie wiually structuied wath D claises tha? inioing
dffgrent proportions of the interest and principal distributions on a pood of
morhgage asses An SMBS wll have one class that wil receive all of v
rherest (the interest-onky of "H07 cliss) while the other cass wall receive the
entie principal {the princigal-anly or "PO” dass). Pagments received B 105
e ndladed m inkenedd income on the Statenents of Dperation. Becase no
grincipal will be ipceaved a1 the mataity of an 10, adjustments am made 1o
the cost of the security om a monithly basis unsl matwity. These adjustments
#re indladed n mbenesd income on the Stateents of Operations. Papments
receied for PO treated as seductions 1o T oost and par value of the
SECUlTES

gl Collateralized Debi Mligations [“C00" ) include Collateiaheed Bond
Cibpatoms (" CHOs"), Collterafized Loan Obligations { "CLO0s") and othe:
Aimilathy sEnatured securities CBOS and CLOS & types of fsed-badked
secutilios. & CBO i & bt which i bacited by & deversilied paal of high sk,
below investment grade fioed income sequrities. A CLD &5 @ trest typically
collaterabred by & poal al leams, which may include, amang athert, domestic
g foreign senigr sacured koans, senigr unseouted loans, and subordinate
corporate loans, including boans that may be saied below investment grade o
equviient wrealod loans. The risks al an imvestment i a COO depend lamgely
on tha typs of the rofatenl securties and the class of the (00 m which

& Fund Invests. In addition oo the nommal raks assecaned with {hied income
securilies distussed ebawhere in the report and the Furds Offering
Memorandum (g 5, prepeyment nsk, credi nak, liquidity rst, market risk,
stnuctural ik, Igal visk and interess raie nsk (which may be exacerhated
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thi interest rate payakle on a stucbered financing changes based on
multiphes of changes in mianest tales or Feeiely b change o istecril
ratesil, CHOs, CLGs, and ather CD0s camy additional risks including, but rot
timited 10, [ the possibilty that disinkutions Trom collatesal securities wall nat
be adeqguaato 10 make maeseit or athdr paynents, (i) the quality ol the
collateral may decling n vake o delaull, (il e rsk that » Fund may imvest
i CBOS, CLOs, o othed CDOs that e subotdmate 1o other tasses, and [iv)
the compiex strecture of the security may nod be fully undesstood ot the time
of investment and may preduce disputes with the issuer o unespected
rrresimient 1etihs

{hi Payrmeat In-Kind Securites Certain Funds may ineest in payment in-kind
sbcunines [“PIES™) Pl may gve thie suer the epton al eath ntenest
paymen! dabe of making interes! payments in either cah andior sdd tiansl
debl securiiies. Those adidtional debit securiies usually have the sama (e,
nicludang maturity dabes and intered] rated, ind aisotigled taks as the
ariginal bonds. The daily marke! quatations of the onginal bords may nckade
tha acorued interest (refemed o a5 a “dirty price ™ and requine & pro rata
stpusiment ftom the ureshled apprecaben of dépleoabicn on nvesiments
1o interest receivable on the Statements of Assels and Liakelities

il Resricted Securities Cemaen Funds may hokd wwvestments that ane ssboec
lo legal of contraciual testrictions. on resste, Thise secatitied may be sokd
privately, but may be required 10 be registered o peempted from such
seghsiration belfore being sold o the public. Privete placement securities are
gersrally contidered 10 be restricted  Dispodal of festiied investmenty may
mychve ime-consuming negotiations and expenses, and prompt sale at an
srceptable price may be difficut 1o schreve. Restricted wwvesimants Feld by
the Fundsat May 31, 2022, & spolicabin, ame dmclosed in the Nobes 10
Sved ube of Ivestments

{1 Structared Neves  Cevtain Funds may invest in structured notes and oches
redted insiraments, which are privaiely negotiated cebt obhgations in which
ko prineipal and! or interast & dedermined by re‘grence fo tha parkamance of
& benchmark asset, martet o interest rate (an “embeddad index™), wuch as
selacied secanines, an index of securities of specfed interes rates, o the
differential pedormance of tvo ssuets or markets, such as indemes reflecting
monds Struchwed Evinaments may be fsusd by comparations, r.-d.-drg.
benky, & well &3 by gowecnmenial agendes The tere of such Sinaciured
nstrumenis nommally proede that their pringipal andf'or intere st payments ane
t b2 adjus ted upwiards. or dowmaasds (but ordinanly not balow zera) to
tellect changes n the embsedded indes whike the sirotiuned matiumenis se
oulstanding A3 a vesult, the istenest andor principad payments that may be
miste an & structured prodiect miry vary wadely, depending on a vatiety of
lacherd, mcluding the volatildy of the ermbsdded index and the o¥ect of
changes in the embedded index om principal andior imerest payments

ki 1.5, Bevernment Agensios or Government-Spomored Enlerprizes

Certain Funds may immest m secorities ol LS, Government agancies ot
goversenend-sponscied emterprses. 5. Govemment seturibies ae
ablgations of and, in certam cases, uaranbeed by, the U3, Gowesnimenl, il
apeoces of instrumeriaities Some U5, Government securties, such as
Treasury bills, notes and bords, and secunities guaranieed by e Government
Hational Mietgage Asodaton (TGHMA® or "Girre Mae®], are supponed
try thee full Bzigh and crecit of te U5, Government; others, saech as thowe of
thi Federal Home Loan Banks, ae supponed by the right of the keue 1o
boirow torm the U S Depantment of the Tieasory (the “U S Treasury™ | and
athars, such a5 those of the Federal National Morigage Association {"FHMA®
of "Fannie Mae”), are suppomed by the discresionasy autharity of the U5
Goveraimen! b porthdis B aqenty™s obbgatiord. LS Govemiment toduithed
may include zemo coupon securites, which do nof distrbute nierest ona

wumen barsts and tend to be subjo o a QUeareT r5 Thah mlenest papng
securilios of umilst maeities

Goemmaent-related guarangors (i e, not Backed by the full laith and credit ol
the U5, Governmend) inchude FRWA and the Federsl Heme Loan Morigage
Corporation " FHLMC® or “Fredde Mac™) FNMA 5 a govetnment-iponsoned
corporation. FkGA purchases conventional e, nol insured or guarantead by
&y goveirment agendy) residential mongages o a kst ol appieved
selletafservicers which incude stase and Rederally dhaftened saangs and boan
arciations, mutaal wwvings hanis, commeerial banks and creddl unions and
maiigage banken. Fass-thraugh secutines samsd by FRMA 200 gualanteed as
10 Bmely payment of principal and interest by FHMA, Dot are not hacked by
the full farth and credq of the WS Goverrment. FALMC issues Farticipasion
Certibcates [ "PLST L witarh 8 pass-through secuiibes, Bach represening an
undinded inderest in @ pool of residential morigages. FHLME quarendess the
timely paypment of interest and utiimate tollecion of pinc pal, but PCs are ret
biscked by the full faith and credit of the 1.5 Goversement

in Jure 2019, FA and FHELMC stamed issung Urihorm Miorigage-Bacied
Sacurities {"UMEE) in place of ther current offerings of TDA-2Egible
secwrities K “Single Secusity butistiee ™) The Sirgle Secufity Intishe ser
10 swppor! the cawall Bquidity of the TEA market and aligns the
characterstics of FNMA and FHLMC certificates The eflecs that te Single
Security Inftatres may hive on the market fa TRA and other mongage
Backed waurities asp uncertain

Roll-tiring strategies can be used whare a Fund seels to exend the
&apealon of matunty of & poistion, such a5 & THA LUty o & underlyng
drivet, by chosmg ool the poden Befade expriabon and epening a new
pastion with respedt 1o substantially the same uldi'hlﬂg asset with 3 later
expualion date Th seduritien purchaned oo Sold are rellected on the
Seatpments of Astaty and Liohiltees a3 an sasat or liablity, respoctasely

il Whan-laoed Transactions Caram Fundh =y putdhas o sell securities
07 & ‘when-swued bass These transactions are made condfionally because a
security, sthough autharized, has not y&q been avued in the markel
Trafdachons 59 puichete o sell decumiel on & when-msued bata Fwoka

& commitment by & Fund to punchane or wll these secorties for a
predetemined pice o yrid, with payment aind delvery laking place beyond
the customary seftement period. & Fund may sell when ssued securibes
bafoen they ane delivered, which may neust in & makzed gain or bows

mi Bank Obligations Bask cbligations inwhich a Fusd may imvest induds
oertificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and foopd time deposits
Cemificates of deposit ae negatiable cerfificates. isued against funds
deporited i & comméntial Baak $af 8 dehnile penod of Time &l eaimr &
sprciled e Bankens' acoeplanoes. ane megotisbie dratts oo bils of
exchange, nommally drawn by o imperteror ciponier to pay for specific
marchandite, which are “accepted ™ by & hank, meaning, in oifect, thak the
Bark unconditionatly acrees 1o pay the {ace value af the instrument an
eraduiity. Froed time depodits are bank oblbgatoss payable at & stated
mmaturity date and boaing interest 51 a fined rat, Foed time depotits may be
it anwn on demand by the imeeshor, bt may be subject ta early
wilkckawal petalies which vary cepending upon market condilions and the
reenaining rssturity of the oibligation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The hellowing deckosares contam mfarmation on the Fusdi’ ability 10 lend o
bomow cash or securiies 10 the extend pemitied under the Offering
emarandum, which may be viewed a3 bomowing or financing transactions
by the Funds The kacation of these matruments is described below, Far a
detadied description of tedt and counterparty rsks that can be avsociated
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wiith bomowings and other Erancong transactions, please see Note |
Principal and Other Risks

il Repwrchass Agreamemts Cerain Funds may ergage in repurchase
speements. Undes the terma of a tyoscal repunchase agresment,

a Fund purchases an underhying debs oblgation {collateral) swibject toan
ﬂb'l}\!ﬁl:ll'l of e setien bo 1epurchase, and a Fund toresed, the ablgation &1
& agieed-upon pike ahd lime. 10 &N open MEluily repuithais sgreemen,
there is no pre celermined repuechase date and the agreement cam be
terminated by the Fund or counterparty at any time. The market value of the
collatedal must B pqual 16 cr excsed the tatal amaunt of the negurchase
nhl-gﬁbng._ including imimest: Repurchans agreements, including acorued
iieiest, are indluded on the Satements of Assets and Liabiliies. Interest
warnied m ipcorded &L 5 companen of mbetst incomo on the Statemestt ol
Qpmatiom. bn perody of incregsed demand Tor oollateral, & Fund may pay a
lee for receip® al eollateral, which may result in inierest sxperne to the Fund

) Reverse Reparchase Agrasmants Cortain Funds may enter oo reverso
TBUnCharsk agresments. in a rewerse repuechase agreemes, a Fund delivers a
secuiify i exchange for cash ba & hrescl insBilubon, the countipacty, with
a simultaneous agreemand 1o epurchase the same or substansally the same
SeCunty at an agreed upon price and date. In &nopen mat 2Ty TEVENE
tepurchine agresment, thete i no pre-delsmined repurchase date and the
agreement can be terminated by the Fand ot counterparty at any time

o Funsd = grithed 10 necene precepal and inbénest payments, ‘e*:,-. made an
the wcurity defivesed to the counterparty during the term of the soeement
Cash tecerved in exchange for securities delivered plus acoued interest
paymests to be made by & Fund 10 coentespaies are reflacted a5 @ habdliny
an B Stabermnts ol Assely and Ladshes, Inberesd payments made by & Fund
1o CounteIparties are reconded & & componen of misest aipense on the
Satements of Operabons. In perods of increased demand Teor the secunty,

& Fund may reconm a lee lor e of the secunty by the counterparty, 'which
may result is interest income to 3 Fund. & Fund will segrecate assets
determined 1o be bquid by FIMCO o wall othersase oo i3 obligatmns
under reverse repurchase agregments

Ie} Sade-Buybmcks Certain Funds may enter infa financing tansacmons
mfirived 0 a8 'sale-buybathy’, A sale-bupback financing Dansacton oonsivts
af & sale of a degurity by a Fund to a financial eotinsien, the countesparty,
with & srmultanecud sgreement 10 repurchade the weme of substantislly the
T securrity ot an agreed:upon price and date, A Fund i nat entitled 1o
recania prindpal and imerest payments, if any, made on tha security sold to
the coustetpaity during the teme of the agreement. Thee agresd-upon
pmceeds for securitiss tn be sppurdhased by a Fund are reflected as a Ladaling
on the Statements of Assets and Liabeites A Fund will MR(Dgr2e Rel e
represenied by the price dilferential between the prace recerved fof the
transdened sgoyrity and the agreed-upon rapsrchase price. This is commaonly
refemed 1o as the price dop”™ A price diop consists. of i the 1III?I;-CH"E eest
and inllstionary income adjustmemts, if any, & Fund would have othersise
receted had the secunty not been sedd and (i) the negatiated financing terms
metween i Fund and countesparmy. Ramgone mtees and nEahonsy inCor
ststments, if sy, ai redorded 2 components of interest mtame on 1he
Stmtements. of Operations. interest payments based upon negotiated financing
lorms made by & Fund to courterpartoey ane recorded as & component al
inteiest experne on the Hatements of Operations. in perods ol increased
dernand for the secutity, a Fund may receive a fee for use of the secutity by
the cousierpaity, which may rea® s mieredl ncome 8o a Fund, A Fund will
wpgregatn assels cebermiresd 8o e lEpid by FIACO ar will othenyise cower ity
ablizations undes sale-buybach nansactang

i Ehart Sales  Cerlain Fundy may enler indo short sales tranaactions, Shor
sabes are transactions in which the Fard sells a sequrity hat it may nat own
i Fursd may make short sabes of securiies 10 () atfser potential dedknes in
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heng possitions in similar secaries, (i) to increase the flenibiley of the Fund,
{ii} for mvetgmenit netumn, (v} as part ol a ritk arbitrage stategy, and () &
part of its overall portfclio managemend stralegies imvolving the e of
dernaalive insiruments. When a Fursd engages in & shart sale, it may Beeino
the security sold shotl and dewes il ba the courdeparty. The Fusd wll
cedinatily have to pay a fee or premium to borow a secunty and be obligated
10 repay the lender ol the vecurity any dandend of inleiest thal sotiues on the
securty duning the period of the loan, Secusites sold in short sale transaciions
&l the dividend ar interest payable on such securities,  any, ane reflecied a1
payable for short sales on the Statements al Assets and Liakelities. Shor sales
gapose the Fund 1o the risk that i will bo requined to cower its shon positon
a1 @ tima woen the secufity of other assat Fas appreciated valug, thus
iruMting o briard 10 this Fund A shart 1ais 1 "againsl the B if

the Fend bokes in s portiolio or b the right 10 acguine the seoarity sald
Shorl, of secunities alensaiald fo e security sokd short, a1 no additienal cost

A Fund vl ba subject 10 additional risks B3 the extend that it erigages in thort
saies that are not “againet the baox™, A Fund's loss on a short sale could
thearetcally be unlimaed i cases whare the Fund 15 unable, far whateves
ieanon, 1o dowe oot s short potition

. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thet hellowang distbosates contam infarmation on bow and wiy the Funds ue
financigd derivative instruments and. how financial derivates mstiuments
et the Funds” fis Aol 1l pirlataoat, s of opeations and ek e The
fecation and lair valoe amounts ol Eve insbruments on the Statements of
Assets and Linbifies and the net realized gain (oss] and net dhange in
uwealired appreasbon (degreciation) on the Satements of Operatons, each
categonped by type of Frandal detvatne conlract sed eelated ek expoiine,
are incloded in 3 cadia in the Notes to Schedude of Invessments. The financial
dérnaative matruments cidstanding ai of penod end aad the amounts al nat
realizadi gain [loss) and et change nunmealired sppeeciation {deprecabion)
on financial derwvative Insruments during the peiod, as dscdosed in the
Natny 1o Semedule of Imestiments, veree o mdicaton ol e valume ol
finarwial cervative actaaty ko the Funds

fad Farward Forsign Cusrency Coatracts Certain Funds may engace in
fonwan loregn curmency (oalrach in connecton with sefling plarmed
parhases o sales of securities, to hedge the currency eiposiee asocialed
with some or all of & Fund's seeurities or as pait of an invesrmesd sralegy. A
fonyartc! fpteign currency coniras] is an agreement bebwien two parties to buy
asd 52l @ oumency &1 a set price on a future date. The market value ol a
Horward Bansign curtency covtract fuctustes wath changes in foreign curnéncy
exchange rates. Fonward meign currency contracts are marked to marked
dadly, and the change In value & recomed by a Fund as an uriealized iJain o
st Reabzed gains or losses e equal to the dilfererce between the value o
the conbract a1 the Sme it was opened and the value at the ime it was clossd
2l ave recorded upon delivery or recespt of the cumency. These contracs
may irreotee matked ok in exess of the unealized I}ﬂ:'l of lgss refiecied on
the Statements of Assets and Liskilities. In addition, a Fund could be exposed
o rele iF the cnuni#parties ae unahle 1o meet the 1ms of the centracts or if
thie valug of B cumeny changes unfavoiably 1o the Tuncliona cumercy. Ta
mitgate wich ek, cash ar securities may be eschanged a5 colisteal pursant
10 Ehe tevms of the underkying contracts

Ceman Funds, having 4 hidged Class, may also enter isso lorward loneign
curmeny condracts desgraed o offset the etfect of hedging at the Fund level in
ardir b leave the hedged Class with an expoduse 1o currencies other than the
functiomal qemency, Trene can be no guanintee 1hat these Chass specific
forwand! foreign curency contracts will be successtul
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i Futuren Contracts Corlen Furds say enler il futures contracts. A
fubwes conbact & an acrepmant o Bapy ot sl @ secwity o cthes asset for a
set price on 3 future date and is traded on an exchange. A Fund may e
futwres conkeacts 1o manage ity exporare to the securities matkets o to
mowements in interesd rabes and cumendy values. The peimary rigks asociaied
weth the (e ol filimed SORTECT A6 the @mgerlent comalalon Babwden thi
change i matked walue af the weoatities held by & Ford nd the prices of
fubwres coniracts and the possibifty of an iliguid markes Futures ooniracts
st valued haved upon thelr gootied daly settement pices. Upan enleing
mio a futunes contract, a Fund is required to deposs weth its Batures Beoker an
amount of cash, L5, Govesnment and Agency Oblgations, or seledl scweregn
deiel, inaccordance weth the initial masgin requitements of the broker ai
sarhange Futures comtracti ame marked bo market daily and hased on sch
mowements in the price of the contracts, 2 appropriate payabee or receivasle
lor the change m value may be posted or collected by the Fund ["Futwes
Wariation Margn®). Fotures Wariation Mazgins, ifany, are dclosed within
cenirally deared financial dervathe imstnoments on the Statements of Asets
and Liabilites. Gana or losses an recogained bt not considered reakped urtil
the contracts exping or close. Futures coatradts imvelve, to varging degrees,
ivik af load i enveds of the Futined Vanaton Margn intluded within
eachangu traded or centrally cieared finencial derivalive instruments on the
Stntements of Assats and Liabdities

|} Optismn Comtracts Cirtan Fundd may wine of purchase opliond 1o
erhance retunns or o hedge an eisting position or fubuse svestment. Cerfain
Fursds ey weile call aned put options on securities and Bnerdial detivathe
sl U nis iy o of i which they may invedt Wiiling pufl aptons bords
inincepase 3 Fund's piposen 10 the undedlyng intrament. Whiting rall
OPIDES PENCS 10 (3{rease 3 Fund's ESpoiLre 1o The .l"l'iEl'bfl"q ST
When a Fund wiites & call or put, an amoend equal 1o the premum receeved B
reconded and wirseguently marked to mareet to reflact the cument vales of
the optesn wiien These amousis as included on the SEatements of Assen
and Liabilties. Promigma received from wrting aptions which expire ane
{reated a5 realizad |}.1il15 Fremiums received from wiit rg oxptians wehich are
earitiind of cloibd ed added to the protosds o oMl agairdl amaunts pad
an the underiying futures, swap, security o cumency transacion (o determing
thie realized gaim or loss. Ceraim optons may be writien with presaums 10 be
deteemined an a futoe date The plemmium fee thess sptions ane based upaa
mpbed volahbty paramesers at specfied terms. A Fund a5 a wiiter of an
aplior has ro comnal over whethes the undertying imstument may be soid

{ "call”) or purchased {"put”) and os.a regult boars the market rivic of an
unfavceahla rha'-qﬁ:r.-.hn irica of fhe imstnamant underkiing the writien
aptian. Theme 5 Fe risk 3 Fund My fod be zble 0o evier inka EC‘CI’S!l'lg
tramsacton becauie of an illigesd market

Certaim Funds may atso purchase pust and call options. Purchasing call options
1ends o isciease & Fund s exposore m the uﬂdPIlplﬂq mstrument. Purchasing
pul options 1ends to decrease a Fund's exposure ta the undethyirg instrument
A Funsd parys @ premium wiich i nchaded a5 an avat on the Statements af
et and Lsahilities and subvieduently marked 1o macet 1o el e
curtemm value of the aption. Premeo e puid far purchasing aptiors which
i are treated 4 realived kogses. Certan options may ke purcharsed with
preminms bo be determingd on & fulure dste The premiumrs for These options
sty hased upon implisd wolstikty parameten & specified Teims. The ik
awsociated with puichasig put and call optioen = kmited bo the premium
pisd. Premiums pasd Tor petchasing optiors which ae estecised or coded are
sfided 10 the amoonts paid ar otisel against the piodeads on the emderdying
meestment fransaction o determine the realized GAIN Or oS when the
underhying tamaction m execoted

Condit Duimult Swaptions Certain Funds may write or puechase cregit detault
TWEoTons o keadge piposae 10 the aedin rak of &n invesiment withoug
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making @ coremitment to the underiying instramend. A credit defadh ssaption
= an option to el af boy credit probedtion o a spadfc refmonco by enberrg
inio a pre-defined swap agreement by some speclied date in the future

[Fasmign Currency Optiess Certain Fusds may wiile o0 puichase fermgn
gumgngy options 1o be used a5 a shor or long hadge against possbie
wanations in fCI'PPy ethange rates of o gan exposine I’Cl*-:ﬂ?ll]l'l CLMBNOEs

Infistion-Capped Dptions  Cértain Funds may waite of puichae inllaton
capped options to enharce returms or for hedging apporiunities. The purpose
ol puitchating nflston-capped options & 1o protet a Fund fom inflabons
ancrinn above & OpfLEn rahe on & given notianal expaiute. & Nogr can be
uned to grve downside protection o investments in inflation-Enked products.

Intarwet Rate-Capped Options Cértain Funds may wiite of porchade infenest
rate-capped options ta enhance relums o for hedging opportunities. The
purpase of peechasing interest rate-capped options is to peotect a Fund from
flasaing rate rsk abowe & cevtain rade oh @ gven naticnal expessre A food
can be ased 1o |]iw dowmside rotection to investments: in interes? rate finksd
producs

Internsi Ratn Swagtions Certan Funds may wile o purchase niesest rate
swapior which are oplions (o ender inlo a pee-defined swap agmeement of
in sharlen, mitend, cantel of ofheraae modily ba SoAting T sFeement,
by some specified dae n the futere, The writer of the swaption becomes the
counterparty o-the swap if the buyer exercies. The intenest rabe swapton
syemant will spedily whither the buyer of the seaption will be & foed-cate
recerver or 3 fiad-rate payer upon exertse

Dptions on Exchaspe Traded Fulures Contracta Certae Funds may wiite o)
paithade optond on exchange-traded fufures contracts [“Fuluees Option™) o
hedipe an existing posation or future investment, bar speculative porposes of to
ITARAGE EXPOALRE I MATLEr Mauements, A Fulunes Opman & an opien

gantract in which the under’ying imsinament & a singly faures contract

Dptiony sm Securitien Certain Funds may wiite or puichase opiins on

e ities 1o enhance refwirs of 1o Fedge an palsisg position of fuiure
nvesiment. An opticn on a secunty uses a specified secwity o the u|u||-:|,i|||:|
rginament for the option coniract

) Swop Agreemants Certiin Funds may imvest o agréements. S
apeements are blaterally neqotizied agreements between a Fund and a
counteparty 10 eachangs of fwvag mweitment caa® flows, ssets, losngn
curngaces of matkeddnked feturns at specifiod, Future interals, Swap
ageements may be privately negotiated in the OTC market or may be deared
thicag®s & thiid-paity, khindh &4 & cemlisl coustaparty of dedniatnes dednrg
organization (“centrally deared swaps ™). A Fund may enter imlo asset, oodi
defauin, ces-ourency, inferest rate, otal retuen, varianoe and ather fams of
AP AQPESMENTS 30 MENA0E NS GXpoIUNe 10 credll, CUMBNLY, iNbenes] 1%,
commeadity, equity and nflation sk, In conmection wath these agreemenis,
securties of cath may be identified as collaseral o mangin in acoodance with
The term of the respective Swa sgpeementy 10 promide aosety of valos and
reciurse in the evend of default or banknptcypinsohency

Contraly cleared wwaps are mariked to market daily based upon valuations as
detesmined finm the underlying contract of in accoedanes with the
requitemenis of the central counterparty or deviwatives clearng arganization
Changes in matket vadus, if any, aee reflacted as & component of met change
r unsealied apprédaton (depeeastion] on the Stalements of Opefabans
Uity changes in valuation of centrally ceared swaps (" Swap Yariation
Margn ), if any, are Suchoded within centrally chanred financal darivatie
matiumenty on 1he Statements of Ausets and Liabilitios. OTC wwap payrrants
eceived ar paid at the hegnning of the measeement penod are inchuded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilizies and represent poemiuns paid o
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recened upon entening Nt the svap sgreemend to omperdaie for
diflerances batwoen the stated terms of the swan sgreemant and prevailing
market concitinns foredit spreads, curmancy exchange mates, inderesd rates, and
ather rebevant faciors) Uplrent premiums received (pad] aee initially recoided
s liakalitied {assoty) and submegeently marked 1o maropt 10 eflect the curent
value ol the swiap. These uphont premiums are recordied as redlized geers o
ke af the Statements of Dpeiaterd upoh Brminatan of mateily of the
wvap, A Fquidation peyment recenmed or made at the emination of the swap
w recorcied a5 reafized gain or ks on the Statements of Operatioms. Net
petiodic payments received of paid by a Fund are included & pan of realized
gears ar lossgs on the Statemends of Cperations

For purposss of arahu'e_: certan of a Fund s imvestment policies and
rpstnctions, svwap agréements, ke ofhes denvatne msirumsesyts, may be
walued by a Fund al market wabue, notional walue o full exposice value. In the
case of a credi defauh swap, in applying certain of the Fund's imestment
oolses and restnctiom, the Fund wil veloe te credn delauh Waitp Al ity
notioral value of its full exposure valiss (i ¢, the sum of the sotional amcart
Tor the contract plus the market vabus], bt may veloe the credit default swap
ail rarket vidut for purposes of apphing ceram ol the Fund's othes
ervestment poficies and restrictiond. For example, the Fund may vaiue oredit
delaul sweaps #i fulf Bapoawee walue Tor purposes. of the Fund®s cedii ssakiy
guidedings {if any) because such value in general better reflects the Fund's
artual economic expowse during e tem of the medit delau swap
apRement ASa resit, & Fund may, a1 tirmes, have rotional eapodre i 3
ayrt class (before netting) that is gerater or lesser than the ssated limat or
mesiiction noded i the Funds Offering Memotandum. in this contest, Eoth
1he natssnal amaunt ad the matke] vaiue may B2 poditee of negatme
degmerafing on whether the Fumd i selmg or bupng prosection Beough the
credit defaudt swag. The manner in which penmin sefuiities of olher
nitrurnts aie valued by the Fund for purpotes of applying investmant
polses and restricticons may differ from the manser in which those
rrvestmeEnts ase vialued L} e ypes e vesions |‘."|IE|I|'|§ D Fap
BT A ifvehas, B0 vargng digred, wlaments of ivteest, oedil, market
and documentation risk in eucess of the amounts reoognized on the
Statements of Acsers and Liabdnies. Such iaks imoobve the proessitslily that
there will B ng liquid market for these agreemests, that tee counterparty 1o
ke agreements may default on its obligation & perform of crsagres as o the
mearsniy of coniractuzl terms n the agreements and that there may be
untayeeabie changes in infenest rates or the walyes of the assat upon which
1he swap & based

A Funed's meximum sk of loss fiom CoURBIpaiTy (redd sk (5 the discoonisd
il wadum of the cash lows 10 b reoesved fiom the counteiparty ovei B
const’s 'E"l'lill"flglllr!. bo the extent 1Rat amount & posimee Thee sk L
b Freligatid by handng & masss neinng Aerangemisnt betwesn & Furd and
the coessteepaity and by the posting of collseal 1o 3 Fund 1o cover & Fund's
EXfOIUTE 10 [P CoULE party

To the extert 4 Fund hid & gaboy 1o limd B red amount cved 1o oF 1o be
mceied from a single countemarty under exnting fovap agreemsents, such

mitalion only apphes 10 ounberpaities 1o OTC vwaps and doss net apply 1o
contraflly deared iwaps whise the couerpaity 15 4 central counterparty of
detivatiees chearng onanization

Credit Detauh Swap Agreements Cortain Fundy may enter o

crecit cefault vwags oo corpoeate, loan, sovereign, U S manicipal or U5
Treatury nowes %o piovide & measure of protection agaedt delaulis of the
wsuers i o, bo reduce riak where a Fund owns o has exposine o the
teferenced chiigation) of b2 1ake an active kong or shoit position with respec
1 the bleihocd of & parteulsr issuer's default. Credht deliu swap
agieements mvehe ore party makmg a stream of payments [redermed ta x
1he buryer of protecbon) 1o anothes parmy [the sefled of protacwon] in exchange

for the right o receive a specified netan in the event that the referenced
entity, obligation o inde, a5 specified in the s sgreesent, undeigors a
werlain crackt event. As a seller of protection on credit default swap
agreemants, & Fund will geesrally receve from the buper ol peatection & feed
ratit af imcome thioughout the term of the swap provided that there is no
oindit avent. As the selier, a Fund would effactrely sdd leverage 1o (b
paittalio e, in additon 1o 1S wolal nel asser, the Fored would be
subpect to imyeutment caposee on the notional amount of the ywap

H a Fand = & weller of peotection and a credit evers ocrurs, as defined undo
the e of han parmoular s agresment, & Fund will eicser i} pay 1o e
buyer of protection an emount equal to the notonal emount of the swap and
take delivery of the referenoed obigation, ather deéfverable obligation: or
underkying securines comesing the reberenced indiex oo (i) pay a et
sefllemerd amount in the foim of tanh or secwites. squal 1o Ehe rotronal
armaurd of the wwap less the seomvery value ol the referenced obbgaticn o
urcerhing wtiribes comgring the relerenced index If & Fund 4 & Buyer of
protection and a cedit event cours, a5 defined unded the teims of that
particular swap agreement, & Fund will gither (] recaive from the selier of
protectian an amount équal by the nalional assount of the swap svd delnve
the referenced cbiigation, other delsverable obligations ef underlying

SeCr ihes Compiismg the tulsunced indes or [il} moehe a nel seitlement
amunt in the farm of cath o securties egual to the notional amount of the
wwap less the necoweny value of the eferenced r.I.'u‘:l].ir on o undertying
secweities compeising the relmenced Index Recovery valoss are estmated by
mariet makers considering either industry standand recoveny rates o entity
specic fartors and cormadieration s unbl @ crecit evest ouowrs. i @ oredit event
has accured, the recoeny walue b detesmired by & lacibtated aucbon
wheieby & minimum numbes of alowable broer bids, together weih o
specifer valuatos method, ore used oo caloulate the seitlament value. The
aulity o delesed cther ohlgatom miy nesult m & dheapest-io-delrne optoa
{thie buyer of protection’s right ta chogsa the deliverable cblgation with the
fevvest valus following & credit event]

Credit detaull Swvap agteemants on crecit mdees involme ane party mekong a
sirgam of paymeras 1o andther party m exchange for the right So meoeie a
apecifed retutn in the event of a wiite-down, principal shartfall, imerest
shorrial o delsuh of sl or nert of the relerenced entities compiisng e
oedit index. & cred index s @ hivsket of o ed? instruments or exposunes
designid to be resesentative of some pan of the cedt market as a whole
These indices ave made up of referende ciedis that are udged by a poll of
dealers tg be the mast Sgyid entites in the credst default pwap market based
o1 the sectee of the ndex. Components of the indces may indude, bt are
mat limied 10, imvesitimend grade secunies, high yeld secorine, aiset-badhed
SEOUI TS, BMERD g ||'l|'r'L{‘1!|, anor v cedil '|'I|IT‘-]!| wathin each secter
Crediz indhoes are traded wing ceedi defaull swaps wah standardized 1eims
rchading a foed wproad and itandsed matuity dates. An index credi default
wwvap relerences o the names in the index, and # there is a default, the credit
evend i settled based on that name’s weight i the ndex. The compositon of
the indices changes pesodicaly, usualy every sim manths, and for moss
wides, eatls name has an sgual mll_.||ll i the sden. A Fund may use oedit
debacdt swaps on credit indices to hedge & portialo of credit defaalt swapn o
bands, which i bess sxpesmove than it would be 1o buy many credit dedaut
awiaps o achieve a simiar eflea. Credit defacit swapn on indices are
matraments for prolecting imvesiors owning bonds ageinnt default, and
trades wse them io speculate en changes i oedit quality

imphied medit spreads, epresented in absobute 1eims, ushzed in determining
thie marke value of cedit delault wap agreements on cofparate, koan,
sowereign, U S, municipal or U5, Treasury ssues a5 of peiod end, if any, arp
daboted in the hotes to Schedsle of Fvestments. “'“’" N Bh BN A0
of the curtent Sans of paymentiperlomuance rivk and epresent the cdihood
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or risk of detault foe the referensoed entity. The impled cedid spread of a
aerbcular ifetenced enlity reflects tho ot ol buyngwiling prosection and
may inchude upfront payments required to be made to enter into the
sppeement. Wider credit spieads represent & datseoeation of the referemnosd
ety s cedit soondoeid and @ greator likelihood or nsk of defaclt of cther
credit event ocouming as definad under the terms of the agreement. For credit
delaull swap sgieements on atast-backed veouinies and credit sckoes, thi
quated market prices and resulting values serve @5 the indicator of the comend
status of the paymentipericrmance risk. Increasing market values, in amalaie
tedres when companed 1o the: notional amount of the Saap, sepresent a
detevioraton of the referenged endity’s credit soundness ard a greater
Bhebheod of rik of defautt oo other cred® event cocuring & defned under
the térera al Ehe ddgrmart

The muormrn palentsal amount of fubee payments. (eadnsounted) that

a Fund as @ seller of protection could be required o make under a oedit
delauh swap agreement eguali the notional amount of the sgreement
Notional amounts of asch individual credit dafault wwap agreaman
outstanding as of period end for which a fund 5 the selfer of protection are
disclosed in thir Notes 1o Schedule of Imvesimenti, Thise poteniie AMounts
wiould be partially otfsat by any recovery valkees of the respectne reforenced
ablsgatiorn, uplroni payments 1ecefesd upon sniering o the agreemesd, o
niet amounts tecened from the settement of by profection credd delault
wwian acreements enjered inn by a Fund for the same: referended ansity or
EN1ies.

1 Rate Swap Ay Certain Funds ame subject o interest rabe
nisk expasure i the nomal course of pursEng thesr ivrestment obeeciies
e vt oo Thee frieed rate bonds that & Furd holds may decrease o initesesy
vt ere. To kelp hadge sgens) tes rink s 1o maintain il abilty to
gefiae meome ST phevining markel rales, o Furd miy entel ino eeest
tibe vp agreements. nteres rale vwap agreementy invohoe the exbundgs
by a Fand with another party for their respective commitment b pay o
tagmive inierest on the notiesal amount of principal | Certain forms of interest
taba swap agregments may include; (i) imterest rafe caps, undar which, in
retrn for & pramium, one party agiees to make pagments to the othes-to the
enlefil thal wvlerisl ialed mioeed B spicided rate, of “cap”, (i) interesl ials
tioors, under which, in netern for a premium, one party agrees 1o make
payments b0 the other to the extent that interest rates lall below a specified
tane, or “Booar”, (i) intenest date coltar, ander which & paity sells & cap and
purchases 8 Foor or wice vena in an aftempt fo profect icwlf against inferest
1ahe Frovements exceedng ghen mesimure or maimum lesels, (i) callable
sl et rale Swae, undet which the buyed pags an opfion lse in
comsideration foi the right fo sarly lernabe the vevap Harsaciion @ whole,
&t rero o5t and a1 2 pradetermened date and nime peios ta the matusity dace,
) spraadiocks, which allow th inteneid rake vwap wiens o lock in the
forward ditferential for spresd] betwesn the interest rate swap rate and a
speileed beachmark, or (n} basts weaps, under which b parties can
wachange variably intprest rates based on diferent segmenits of money
Mares

T. PRINCIFAL AND DTHER RIZKS

8] Principal Riska I the normal cowse of Exniress, the Funds (o Accured
Fursis], if applicable) trade frascl indbruments and enbes ii1o dngncal
trarsactions vehere risk of posential kods exnts due 10 such thingn as changes
n the market (macket sik] of fakuare o inabibty of she ather party 102
trarsaction ta perform {credit and counterparty risk), See below or a detaiied
deurniption of splact principal nves

Fund of Funds Risk 7o the saent that cenam Funds imvest ?J'.'ILH-I'":-J"' all
al thesr respective aisety in Aogamed Fundis], the risks smociaied with
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rrgting in these Fands will be closely related 1o the sisks axsoniated with the
securilies and other myestments Feld by the Acqueted Fendii), The abity of
the Fends 0 achieve their respective investmend objectines may depend upon
the abidity of ik Acmgured Funds) to achieve Thes respectoe nnvesiment
abjectieey. Theoe can be no assurarse that the mwetment objectve of any
Accuired Fundis] wil be achieved. The MAY of an Acguiring Fard will
flactisate in responie (o charges in the respecive NAY ol the Aogured
Fund(s) in which & rmesta

in the novmmal cowrse ol business, Acgared Funoly) trads Brancal insiruments
e enter im0 fraecial @ ansations whens ik of poremial ko extsts dus o
changes m the market [mareet tisk), or fadore or mabsy of the other party to
@ transaction 1o perform (oredit and counterparty risk)

Market Biaks A tored s irvestments m imanoa cenvatne instruments and
olher fimancial instruments expose B Fund bo various risks soch as, bot not
fimited to, irterest ate, focesgn (non-U %) curency, equity snd commadity
ik

Irderest rate sk ip P sk chat foopd mdome secgeities and other natrements
teld by a Fund may dedine in value because of an increase in interest rates. |
maenal intanedt fabed fi, the vilue of certain fived ineoma Secur tes Reld by
& Fund weould liely diecrease, A nominal ivierest rale can be dewcribed as the
suen of @ real interest rate and an expecied inflation rate. incesest rae
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose moaney
thews changes ae not anticpated by Fund management A Fund may not be
2l 1o hedpe against changes i intenest ranes of may choose nat to do 5o for
¢osl of ather teasand. In addibon, sy hediges may nol work as nlended

Dumation is a measute used 1o determing the sersitivity of o security’s price fo
changes i infesest rates that morporaies a securnity's yield, coupan, fmal
mmaturity and call ‘estures, smong other charsctensties. Convesity o an
adcitional measure wied fo understand a seowrnity's or Fund's intesest rate
Serditiaty that meaiunes the iate of chamge ol diifatan in fesponse 1o
changes in inaedes! rates, Foded indome securifiet with longer durstiond (end
ip be more sensitve ta changes in interest rates, wwally makieg them more
wolatile than securites with sherber durabions. & wide vanety of facton can
e imleresl rates of vislds of U 5. Treasusry securties (or yields af ethet
types of bonds) to rise {2.g,, central bark moretary poficies, inflation rases,
geneial economic canditions, ofc |, This m eipeaally true undes cunent
conditions bacause mierest rates and hond ymlds are near Bstoncally low
levels. Thus, the Funds cumently face a hegitened lovel of risk associated
with Frvmg ivletest tates andior bond yedds. This could be diven by a variety
ol factoes, including et niot imited to cantrad bark moratary policies,
-Lhaﬂgrg--‘ﬂ'lm-:r- or real I]ll'.'lh'ﬂl T3EEs, ?f-!'é'n BCOROMIC COndiions,
moemirg bond imuances of reduced marke! demand Tor [ow yielding
irpesimats. Further, while U S, bond marioety hawo steadily grown ower the
st thees cievades, daaler “markef l-:.p!urg' abslimy has remained relaiely
slagnant. Giyen 1he impotenoe of intermediayy “matke} making™ o oheating
& robust #nd active market, fived noome securities ane cuently

fecing inmeated velablity and Rquidity ek 1 of these factar, oolectively
adiorl ndmidually, could causs 3 Fund bo de vakse 1f the Fund kg enough
walue, the Fund could Tace increased Unithelder recempticns, which could
further impar il perfarmance. Alio, t5e Fund may be adveriely alected
when a large Unithalder purchases or redeems lamge amounts of unds. whach
N 00U 3t any time and may Enpadt te Fund in the same manner as 3 high
walume of rsdemption reguedts. Lasge Linitholder traniactond may rmoact
the Fend's bquidity and net asset vahoe. Such transachions may alio increasa
he Fard's Trardaion (os1s o olhanwise cause The Hand 1o ﬂl‘i{r'l'l'
diffrrenily then imtended, Moreows, tw Fund is sobject 10 S ik that
aither Unithalders may make investment decissons based on the chosces of a
lange U=sthalde
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A Fyred may hiaree signilicant exposure to B i the United Kingdom. The
United Kingdom's withdtasal [rom the Eurapean Urson may sspact Fund
retwrns. This decision may cause substantial volatiity in foreign suchange
markets, lead o weakness in Be exchange 1ale of the Braad pound, sl is
& sustained period of market wcentdingy, and destabilize same o all of B
athir Eurnpean Linion mesmier countries anddor the Eurtmone.

Fesesign [non-U % ) secanlies in i seport s0e dlasullied by the cowtly al
nooipeeation of 3 belding In Gefain instances, & secunly's country of
noopoaation may ba ditferent from @y cooncry of sconomic rposere

' a Fund inrvests derectly in faresgm fnon-U5.) curmendies or in sequrisies tha
Irisde in, and eeoeive revenel o, Toreign (aon-LL 5 ) currences, or n finaseisl
devivathe instiuments that prowide sposure to foresgr (non: LS ) currenicies,
it wall be subject o the resk that those currencies will dedine in walue relative
1 the brve cumency of she Fund, o2, in the case of hedgng positionn, that

the Fund's base cunency will dedling in walue relatier to the cumency being
nedged Cusrancy eates in foreign counines may Suchrate significantly mer
sham pitiods of time 1or & rember ol neasons, inchading changes in inerest
rabes, ingerventicn (ol the falure to ntercene] by U5, or forelgn govemments,
coninsl basks of supd snateral enliees wach &4 the Inlemnatsonal Monetany
Fursd, o by the mpasiion of cumency controls or othe: potitcal deselopments
n the United States o abrosd As a resull, 8 Fund's investeents in Toreign
cumenly- desominabed secutried may reduce the Fund's setum

Thw market waluei of pquities, such a4 comeran docks and predemed wosrties
ar equity related imvestments such as futures and opticed, hawe historicaly
risen and fallen in peradic cpcles and may decline due 1o geneal market
conditiond whath are rot specilicaly related 1o a particular compiry, such a1
real of peroeives adverse BOONOMI -:un-:-r-:rs.{hanqes nthe gP"r!"ﬁ'
aullook for cxpanane watnings, charges in interes! of curency 1ébes, publs
hiralth TGN s, wuch as the 1|:rmdcd infoctious illness or disoass, or
arypma investor sanhiment r:nnm.a'l-. Thesy may alsn decline dus e facios
wiwch aflect & pamicular ndasry o industries, such as labor shomages o
ncreased proskaction sty and comgetitive conditions within an indusiry,
Different types of equity securities may react differently 1o these
deslopments. Equity tecuriliey snd eoulty related investmierts geneealy have
gn;!.:lu;lr-'.'.arhr_ price nr:lar.lnrglI than feed income securities

The Funds may invest in certain instruments that rely im gome tashion upon
LIBOH LEHOR -8 Sowdbge oflpiedl rate, deleimined by the ILE Benchmirk
Admintration, that barky charge one ancther for the wie of shor-tem
money. The Unied Kingdem's Financisd Conduct Autharity, which regelates
LIBDH, has anncunced plans 16 ultimately phase aut the use of LIBOR. There
remaims unceranty reganding future utifzation of LIBOR and the nature of
&y replacemen rale jeg ., e Setured Oweinight Financing Rate, which is
ritended 1o rectacs LS. dollal LIBOR and mestones the oot af owernight
bomorengs throogh repuchase agresment fransactions ool laderakaed with
U5, Tepasury securities). Any ponential effects of the transition away Trom
LIBDA on a Fund or on certan mssruments in which a Fund imeests can be
diffindt to ascerzain, and they may vary depending on a variery of lacters. The
ransition may alsa result in 8 reduction in the value of cermain instuments,
heid by & Fund o a redaction in the offectiveness of related fund transedtions
such a5 hedges, Any such effects of the ansition away from LIBDR, as wel
a4 bt unlaimdeeh edlacts, coukd fetull i Ioddes ko & Fuid

Beginning m January 2020, glohel frenciel maikets have experienced and
may consines B0 eepenience signilicont yolatiiy resulting faom the spread of 8
morvel corannins known as COVIO-15. The outbreat of COVID-19 has
resulbed in traved and border restrictions, quarantinegs, wbply chain

dis upticen, kawer consumes demand and geneeal matket uncenainty. The
global ecenomy, the econcnties of certain nations and indradual issuets. have
Been and may continue to be adversely affected By COVID- 19, particulaty in

light of the interconnectivily between evonomies and Srancal markets, all of
which may egatively impact the Funds” perdiormance, In addition, COYID-19
and govemmental respores so COVID-19 may negateeely impact the

dpabeiities al the Funds’ serace prenndess and disrupt e Funds’ cperations

Crodit and Countuarparty Rinks & Fund will be exposed to credit rak ta
parties with whom i ades and will aka bear the rik of settlement default
A Fund ieehifmizes concentratian. of ciedit fek by undetaking tardalbond
with a large rumber of customers ang countetparties on recognied and
eeputable exchanges, where sppicable. OTC dechative Dansactons ae
Subgect 10 the risk that & countenparty 1o the frandaction will nod fullil ity
contractisal obligetions to the other party, a5 many of the protedtions aficeded
1o centally Cleared dervative transactons might not be avalable Tor OTC
deraative bansactord For desivatmet (raded oo an exchange of Bmugh &
werlral coumterpaity, oredd visk resides with (he peditwdnthiness of

the Fand's cheaning bioket, o the cdeminghoune itsell, rather than wath &
ooumbarparty n an OTC derivatio transaction. Changss in regulation nelating
1o a Fund's Use of dervatves and related instruments coulid potantially imit
o |mpact the Furd's atnlity 1o imvead 19 derrvatneed, bmit the Fund s stehty 1o
amploy cartain ibalogies that wwe demvartives andicn adwersely allect thw valas
o performante of dervatives and e Fund. A Fund could lose meney if the
ey of qarantof ol a led incomes secursty, or the coonte'paity to &
fingnial denvative mstruments condract, mpunchase ageeerant of 3 loan of
partholio securities, s unable of unwaling to make tmely prindipal andice
IR pAYTERE, Of 1D Otflraiss honor 5 obhgatans. SeouliDes and
financial derivartive instruments are subject 1o varying degrees of edi risk,
which may be refhected in credit natings

Simila o Credit ok, & Fund may Be exponied b CounBE paity nEx, oF the sk
that an institution or ol endity with which a Fund hay unsetdled or open
transaczions wil default. MMCO, b8 the Maruger, messmines cumsparty
ik 1o the Funds thiough & rumdss af wangs. Pror ta esteding inlo
transactions with a new counterparty, the PIMCO Counterparty Risk
Commitiee oonducts an extenshe oedit fmvew of such counterparty and must
approve the e of such countorparty. Furthermare, parsuant o the bermi of
the underhying toatiact, to the etent that wrgadd amounts owed to.a Fund
eniped a pradeteihmed theshold, wuth ounterpinty shall sdvanie collstedal
10 a Fund in the form of cash of securties equal m value 1o the unpa!
amcan] owed 10 a Fund, A Fond may imest such collateral in securites or
athi irgsrumients and will typically pay infensd 1 the counterpatty an the
collateral receiard. i thee unpaid amount cwed to 8 Fond wubegoently
deresies, # Fund would be requined to retum te the courterpasty all of a
poon of the collateral previsusly adanced. FIMCO'S 210smpes 1o minim e
orumbmparty visk may, hoesese, be umocormadul

Al ransacticas in listed securities are setthedipaid Tor upon delvery using
doprtved courlempartes The mk off defmuh i5 considered minmal, a3 deleny
ol secutitaes sofd i only made onde o Fund has recered paymant. Payment is
rmade on @ purthase ance the senuties hive been defiverad by the
counterpurty. The bade will Tal f esthes parsy fals ba meet i3 obligation

) Oher Rishy |h gedsrad, dach Fund may b sobyect 16 sdditonal riskd,
irchading, but not leited to, thsks related bo goverresent regulation and
meenvention in franoal markets, operational tisks, naks astociated with
fimanial, peoncmic and giosal market divruptions, amd oybessecurity rske
fizasa refer 1o each Fund's offedng documents for a more detailed
deseription o the risks of investng = the Fund

Market Disruptions Risk  The Funds are suopec to investment and
ooerational sisks associated with firancial, economic and other glabal market
developments and drruptions, incloding those ansing from wai, terroksm
macket mangulition, grvemsment serventons delaudts and shutdoars,
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political changes o diplomatic developments, publc health ermengencies
\such 44 the spread of irdectiout. diseed, parsdemicy and epidemict) and
naturallemvronmental desasters, which can alf negatrely impact the securities
el kLS, [nberesT rabes, dudions, sacoadasy trading, ratingl, credit msk,
riflation, dollstion and othes factors refating 1o the Fund's imepstmenits or the
Manager's operations and cause a Fund 1o lode vahue. These events may have
Stherse |long-1em elTeots on the U S sl world stondmess snd markels
gererally. These events can aho impair the technology ancl cther cperations
wystems upon which a Fund’s sendice providers, including FIMCO as the
Fumsds” imvesiment adwser, rely, and could athemndse darupt a Fund's senvice
prowiders' abilty to fulill their obligations 1o the rebevard Fund. For example,
the spread ef an infectious reqperatony lness caused by & rreel sirain of
comafniud (udwh i COVID-19) had cauiid walabhty, seeme madkel
diskocations and liguidity comstraints in many markets and may adversely
offect & Fund’s iwestments and cgerations

Gewernment batervention in Financisl Markets Feceral stale, and ctho
govermemends, their reguasany sgenaes, of selfregulatory organizations may
take sctions that affect the requiation of the irstrumests. in which & Fued
e, of the maers of such mndiuments, in ways that ace unlomserabia
Legislation or regulation may aka change the way in which & Fund icself s
iequlated. Such legrlasn of iequlation could Bmit of precude a Fund's
abslity 1o achive its imvestment. objectrer, Furthprmone, wolatile fmancigl
markets can apose a Fund to greater marber and Bgudity risk and potentil
difficidry in valuing portols istoments held by the Fund, The valoe of &
Fured's holdings s abo generally sebject 1o e risk of fusure local, national, or
global ecoremic deturbardes hased on unkRanm wWianeses in the markets
o bl & Fund inseat. In addiben, of B nal cerlain 1Raf the U S Gowernmend
will intervene in resporse to-a Tutwe market distarbance and the effect of ary
such Fature: interventicn carmed be prediceed. It s difficult for iseees 10
prpate for the impact of futuie fmancial downduims, akhough comparies can
spek ba identily and manage fubwe uncertaintiss through risk management
PIogréTs.

Ragulatery Risk Finarcial entities, such a5 investment companies ard
maesiment advisees, Are qenemmly subjec 1o edEnsive qovernment requlaion
aid Erleivertion. Governmed] requlalion andice inlerertion inay change the
way a Fund is r\tg.lar;d_.!'rﬂ:. the xperses incumed ::n.n.—.lr by a Fund and
thie vadue of its iwesiments, aed Bmit andior preclude a Fund's abiliny 1o
achiter i3 invesiment abjective. Government regedation may change
Irequenthy and may have significant adverse consequences. Moreove:,
giwversement fegulition may have wigredaable snd ussmendid efiecs

Dpmratiensd Risk An rroesiment moa Fund, ke any fund, can nvolye
operational rsks arising from facors sech as processing errors, human edmars,
madaquate & failed irternal o ectesnal procedses, faifures in wystems and
1echnalogy, changes in persanned and errors caused by thisd-party service
provaders. The oocurresce of any of these faikoes, emoes.or breaches coud
miull in b of imbormation, eegulstony souting, mepctational demage o
ather events, any of which could have a mateiial advensa effect on a Fund
Wit a Fand seeks o maimie suck events heough congiol and averdnhi,
thore may 14l b Fadures that ¢ ould caul Icases b the Fusd

Cyber Sseaity Risk As the use of technology has bacome more prevalent in
the eourse ol business, B Funds have become potetially mose susceptible
Io operstional and infiormation sy s resulting from Iveaches in gber
secuity, A breach incyber security refers 1o both intentional and
unmientional cyber everis thal may, among other thirgs, cawse 3 Fund to
inse propnetaey intonmarion, syfier data comyption andior destnuction or lose
aperational capadity, resull in the unathonzed rele ase of othesr misuse of
confidential infommatson, or othenvne deirupt noomal Boisress operations
Cyber security failures or breaches may esult in Singncal losses to a Fund and
i Linithaolders. These lastunes of Deeachis miny also nesull i dsrupions sa

busirass operations, potentiafly resohing i financial losses; interference with
& Fund's akality to calculate it re? 2tee valua, process Lisstholder
transactions or othenwiie trarsact business with Uinitholders; impediments to
trading; wolstcrn of applicable petvacy and ather Lrwa; regulanny fines;
penaltees; eputational damage; cembursemint or other compensataon cashi;
adaitional complance and cyber security 115k management costy and ather
sfere consequences, Inaddibion, wnlanlial tosts may be intuimed o oide
1o prevent any cyber incidents in S fatune

. MASTER METTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject 1o varicus nefling anangemests " Master
Agpeements” | with select counterpartes. Master Agreements govemn the
timns of geftain pantactond, aad ae inended o reduce the tEuntEpaity nak
arvoiiatpd wath relevant Bransactors Sy specrtying medd profection
mechanisms and pioviding standaedizaton that s intended 1o impnre qual
cestainty. Esch type of Master Agisement qoverns ceitan Bypes. of
transactions, Different types of traractiom: may be traded out of diflerent
legal entities or afitates of a partiodar omanization, regufting in the need for
muliple agreements with & single countenparty, As the Masied Agresments
are spevitic 1o unigue operafions of different assel types, thay allow a Fund o
horee ot And n2i its fodal exposuie 1o amnnlmpan'; i ihe event ol a defach
with rkpecl 80 &l the Uamactions governed under 8 singhe Matie
Aprpmant with 2 countenpaety. For financial meporting purposes the
Suatements af Asiels &0 Liabibies generally present Sermaine assets and
Habiksies oo & oross Basis, which refects the ful ridks and expodanes prior 1o
nEgting

Master Agreemants Can afa help limit counteiparty rik by specifying
collateral podting amangerdnty at pre-atranged sxpoiuie ek Under most
Master Agreemants, collsteral is soutinely transherred if (he total nel expoire
10 certén Transactions (net of extsting collaters! alveady in plocal governad
winded R redvand Madber Agiserment with & Sounteipadty it & g Botounl
enceedh 3 sxecfied threshold, wich typically racges from 2ero 1o §.250, 000
depending on the counberparty &d the type of Master Agreement. Liniled
Seatos Tregury Bills and U 5. doflar cah sto generally the prafomed foms of
wollateral, although other secunbes may be used depending on the terms
outlied in the apphcable Mastes Agreemend. Sequntes and cash pledged as
callateral are reflected a3 oisets on the Statements. of Avets ond Liabslities 24
wither a component of Irvestesents a1 vahie (securiies] of De posits with
counterparty. Cash collatersd recevved B not bypaclly Beld in a segregated
arount and a5 such is reflected 25 a Rnbility on the Statoesenits of Assets and
Liwhali tiers &5 Deposins from counterparty. The market value of any securities
FCeretd i collateral A nol relectid 21 & componii of NAYV The Ford 'y
averall exposure ba counterparty risk can change substantialy within a shore
pariod, il b affaced by each fransaction dubysel 10 the repvat Miite
Agpesrrent

Master Repuithase Agreements and Global Mastes Repurchase Agisements
findevdopily ard collectvely “hlaster Repo Agreements”) goer tepurchase,
fowerte repurchase, and tale-buyback transactom beteen the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repo Agreements maintan peowisians for,
amorg ather thengs, initistion, ncome papments, evests of default, amd
mantesange of collateral. The merket value ol trarsactions onder the Masier
Repa Agraemant, collateral pledged or recaived, and the net exposure by
counteiparty &4 of period end are disclosed in the Moses 10 Schedule of
Irersiments

Master Securities Forward Trarsaction Agresments | Masoer Forward
J'H;I‘EEI'FFI'IL‘B“l Qonvem reiman boneatd setiling irarsaction, such as TBA
secwrilies, celsyed-defivery or sale-buyback trafmatbons by and
between the Funds and sebeqt corriprpanties. The Maiter Fonwang
Agpeements mantan pemions For, among othes thingd, inBialon and

e agar | My 31, 037 m
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Feos

Fund Managemant Advimnry Admeninirative Aguney Diwtikution
PBACD Bemuda Foraiga Low Daratien Fund 036 - - = =
PBACD Bermida 1.5, Liw Duration Fund 0338 = - = =
PRAGD Eura Todal Return Fead - 145 0.r5 o] 3
PBACO Real Return Fund 454 0:
PRACO Shori-Term Strategy

= Ap

-GS -

= JLFT

s JiE0|

= JFY U2 010% D&

05 % nan n&?

" Ush

A P | M 31, 322
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Vi Tl sl o b debifarye by Def e L o e Cagre el
w %0 9 e C Sew il % o' uT i 5w
By of [l oy ety o fhw e ey e 3 (T o e P P cee w0 L

i o Pl B B e iy 2! B pretyens S D S’ iy L o B %
¥ o i 1 29 T N e S e aaf e

3

of B £ 1°S of Clae o e,

o o iy e i

N e et n T 00 % B o iew vl By

Mot s R e e b rer s o et P B s mil g rammp e g 4 ey o

§ P e’ gy

Tha management, advisory and adminiitrati fees. i applcabie, are pad morthly in amears to PIMED for proseding cr arrangng for the prosetion of adeisony,
afmensTateve and thind-parcy sensces inducing audt, cusiodal, trustee, portfelin actcusting, matine €|}|]|. transfer agent and printing sendces. The agency and
distrbation fees, it applicable, ane paid monthly in amears 10 reimburse financial intermediaries thet provide sereices and distriation relating to the units ol the
applcatie Fand (or Class shereod, as applicable). In the casa of the PRACO Bermwda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PIME D Sermuda UL S Low Duration Fund, PICO,
aut of i3 managemen: f2e wall hiar fhe COSIS assomiated will adv LY andd admnisaive senaces, O 1% of whaoh o o 10 oVt adMINEITATNE Expenses. in
exchange lor tha fee, PIMICO will bear the coits of certain thind-p wenvices requited by the Funds, irchucing audit, custodiadl, tuaber, portfolo accounting, hegel,
trarst ageat and printing senices. PIMCD, and nod Lintholders, would banedit from any price decreass in the covt of tuch j-party senices, inciuding dacreases
issulisng Fom an ncreade i net asaels b sddeon, woh respert 10 Fusds thal are subgect 10 a0 sdmesitratve Lee, PINCO geneal o sach & lee

s noted n the table abowe, eitan Funds and Clisses of Funds sre mol subedt 1o management, advisory, administrative, agency o disicbuion kees, FIMCO lapan
Lad, PIKBCO"s afiikats in Japan, is pand & deg Prom B Japaness Bvesiment Trests or other mwestment wehiclos that insest in such Funds or Classes and a portion of
such fize is then aliocated to PIMCD to compensate it for is senaces, a5 apploabie

4 & o

The Funds [of Clanses theseal, @ applicable] may bear obher eoperse idlated 1o thisr opeation that ane not covered by the managemen], atvnory, adminisiiative,
ageeey or detnbution foes, mchudn not Bmibed e | d goverremenial foes; () eokorage feet and commitsions and other portoliy trandacton exponies;
i) costs af borrowang maoney, including imerest experse; (i} exiranndnary expenses, including costs of litigation and indemnification expenses; and [v) any expenses
alocated ar allocable to a spedific Clina of units, i appiicablo. PING O Ras paid the ceganitational expenies ssodated with the cieation ol eich Fund

PIMCOH has paid the osganizatbional capores assodiated with the creation of the Trast. # furkher Funds ame laenched, such ooits cinectly attnbutable ta the olevam
Fiorsd mapy be boma by the rebevant Fund
18, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Irvestment Adviser & 8 eolated party 10 the Funds and is a majority-caned subtidiary of ARang Asset Managesent 4G, Foes paid o the related party, if any, are
dischoced i Mote 9 and acorued related parmy fee amounis, 1 any, ame densad nn the Gixiemenis of Assebs and Liahikfies

Certarh Funds aie permitted 8o purchade of sell seountes (o ol 1o ceité related afhiated funds under specilied conditom outlined i procedines adopted by the
iyestment Advisor, The procedicres have been designed to ensune that any paechase or sale of secunties by a fand from or to angther fand that & or could be

comicdeed an affiliate by virhe of hay n & common advisar for affiliated immstment adviters), i effected at the ciment markst price [ iy thae pariced ended May
38, 1022, ehe Fundiy) belew engaged in puichided dnd ied ol decuritied amang Bl0lated lunds (3Founts ifi Bl

Fand Fuchanm
FIMCN Burmads Fowge | 5w Danimn Furd ] e
FINCD Barmvgda U S Lew Demmen Fund 35

FMC g Mariors Bard Fusd i) .1 5.0
FIMCT Eorn [otel Hetum Fund hEL | &L
PIMECD Pest Prtom Ford 1,131 Mo
FIMED Sherd- Tern Stentegy 16 ¥T7 ETRE"]

V1. GUARANTEES AND INDEMRIFICATIONS

Uinder thae Truat's eeganizational dotuments, certain parses fncheding the Trustea and PIMC D) ate inderwdied against certain labalites that may arise out of
performance o thair dutied 1o the Funds. Adddmonally, in the nomal courie of business, the Funds enter into conlracts that cortain a vanety of indemnification clauses
The Funds’ marimism gxpodule undir these arangements 1 unknown &t this would imeotve fuure claims that may be made aganst the Fusds that have not et
ooourred. Howesed, the Funds have ncg had prigr clers or losses puraant to these contracs

VL UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trost may issue up b 500,000, 000,000 unts. The Funds may have & sgnificant conoentrabon of risk, as certaim Unsthalders own more than ten percent of the net
awets of wach respective Fusd. Such concentration of Unitholders” inberests could have a matetial efisct on the Fordt in the event thris Uritholdiers iequest o
withcdiawy Subrsa amourts of caprisd a7 the same time. Sobrenptons snd redemptions of wes of the Funds are dencmanated m the Funds” NAY curréncy and
converted to the Fundk® funciional cumency at the wpat rate on the tansaction dage. Units of each Fund ane myoed withoet par valoe: The Tnstee, with the oonsond of
fuleetd, May i the fufure cresse aod olfer an saSDong

und ar Chass of Classes of gty

A P | M 31, 322
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Changes in units of beneficial imceeest were a5 Tollows {units and amaunts i thousands®)

Var Exded Ve Erdad Four Endeed Yimr Ereheed
My 11, 21 My 31, 3002 May 11, 22 My 31, HE2
] Aru Utz At ] A Uenti AFl

Fu etz i i ¥ 3 1 il | Im I LR o L L
i A ik Wi, W 4an i maE
of anta refperad 45 I B0 573 1133 LY K
Rid A Ly KA H'E 18550 115
Nt idecrrm | remitng o=
Fund wen s sctiom ¥ 1587 ko (£.1 i 114n4 RIE B IS ENE
Vs Eacleed Yo Eraiesd L Yimur Frefad
May 11, 2201 iy 31, 102 May 11, 2007 My 31, AT
Uity Aroeam Lwtn Arsmani 1] deremnt Units Argini
Rpcepta fur andy ol = i 1881 Wi LY & EF 351 af 1 54T
|BR 4 Wi 8] 1 ign Kk L] Y KA
1 4 LR 4 m Kk L L] [
L L 8 1.4 L& L L L
Tk Wk 1 i Wik W M [
Lo Ly IH 2,02 L83 WA L] L]
2RI it W 1 b1z} Wil Wa L L)
Tom of anty redeed 1113 1E:40 YA L it 1,830 am [11.511]
it ha WA r 5, B Wi Wa WA Lo}
T it WA 3 v} Hil, Wi NA L]
had WA o 1500 i, WA T ik
fud Ll 7] 7 D4R Wil L MY L
LH W ] (38,57 Wik WA N Nk
Ak L 141 LR Kk W LY KA
N L | ety hae
Fund unil arasdom L1 L aan raes | |] | s EUF 11,588 v ] Faim
Viar Facded
May 11, 2833
L Lo
15 1]
in
L1

1 RLLE

1,088 TA08
1281 CEAE
1250 r
1183 ="
[Ik =) e

et R | My 31, 332
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Visar Excled
May 11, 20
Uniti
i T
s 1,54
N idecral easting Tam
Tund w1 mranssciass 1,078 ¥ PESD

13 REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

d s deferdants in any ma

oceedings and ane not aware of any maberial litigaton of claim pending o

ke lategoing speaks andy & ol the date of thes repoit

14, INCOMAE TEX

progress. As of Ma

am subpedt b exammatian £ maCe 14K jartdictions,

15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

et R | My 31, 332
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to Financial Statement

1. DRGARIZATION

Each Fusd drcussed in thes neport (each a "Fund” and collectively, the “Funds®), whach sha inclades each dlsas o unils of that Fund (sach a "CRass” and collectiely,
the "€ limses™], is o sesies trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust (the Tt ™)L an open-ended unil tust established under the L of Bermada as & multiSeries trast parsuant
10 @ trusf deed execuled by Winchester Glabal Trust Comparny Limited o Auguit B, 3001 (52 amended ram time 1o ume, the "Tiust Dol ®). Effectve a5 & the dide
al businass. [E assern time) on September 39, 2017, Maples Tnstee Senaces [Bermuda) Limibed (the “Trustes ") was aopomded o trstes of the Trst. Pachc Frastment
Managemert Company LLC {"FIMCO", the “Manager™ or the "investmens Adiser™ | s the sponscr of and was respensible for stnuctunng the Trust

T Trond s siobpect b0 negqulation and superamsion i proveded fon in B Inestment Funds Aot 2006 and telsted wules telating o standaid fnds
The terms.of the Trust Deed confler upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the powed, In the future, 10-establish further funds in addition to the Funds
currenily in operation & al the cate of this repoit

Aelerances to unitholdets {each, & "Unithelder™, and collectasely, the “Unitholders” ) in, of umsts of (o an imwestmeat in}, the Fund shall mesn Un thalders of the Fund
wivd haold winits, o classes of units (s appbcablel, which ane attrbatable to that Fund

The Funds presented mn this 1epon ale listed below
FILALT Bervsrts Farge Live Diarmren Fosl Ol arly mn harudn ks i i of Fonis® wrvess, 8 defsed @8 e vl 0 i Isaenma Tty
PR Ewrreanta 1 5 oo [horeess Furd Esiaoates, Jwin, i 59 lehes weth § bl siRstum n peg e prsicaen
PIRCT Errargng Marknis Boad Ford [HTT)
FIRICD Ervobrging Mariones Baad Fueed | Ven Hidpes
FIACT] Ervatrgping Midrkats Bend Fueed 1)

FIRIC) fuuss Tt Beters Fued

Dlerest 1n mensd vsions i Jupmn By way o poble :Ii::q; tesegh & Ectibue 0 lapen, rd my

LT Pl Fesarn Fand e ofured 12 other mvestars o the deowien of The Maraged
FRCD Sor-Tamn Sy | ptared 13wl vz i Jugnn iy wry o] pebic femg Paegh § Smrbume sadi § Sl

| vy cargury 1 Sapae. and mry ba Sl fo e varian o the dncretan of the Massger
PRI Errwrpng Markeis Basd Fund (M| DHared eely 10 acter Fands by serve oa o underiong rvesrent setacie for such Funde

| PPF e’ TR (e o P TR et Lt ey i el iy 10 A it o Tand' o Vel i, o il & e et o e ey (o) dirames, et o 17 el aa J ilel dview o iy SR il e

B am ' CMCTY et T Sranvgy 4 efenr’ sy A oo [l i e ) o8 ey ny ey asfei br s s

Uinits of the PIMCO Euro Total Retum Fund, PIMCO AReal Retem Fond, and AUD, Y, and USD Classes of PIMCO Shor-Tesm Strategy have been registered under the
Financial Instrumenits. and Exchange Law of fapan. Units of each of the mmamning Funds and the C {USDY, ) {FY}, and | (U50) Cléetses of PINCO Shor-Term Strabegy
hawe not been and are rot cumently expecied 1o be registered under the Fnencisl Instiuments ard Exchange Law of lapan. Accordingly, such Units of these Funds may
not b, directly or brckrectly, offered in Japan of 1o any resident in Japan, evcept in complianoe with applicabls lapaness laws and 1egulations

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thw bofigwing i a surnmary of signiliant soopunting policies consistently Toliowed by the Tt in the preparation of its [mangal statemmenty in conformity with
aooounting principles generally acoepted in the United States of America {™U.5, GAAP™). Each Fund i reated as an investment company under the reparting
iefquiemenls of LS GAAP The peepatation of {nsnoial atsmest in accoedanis with U S GAAP ieqinied management b Mike sANmates and maumpiand that
affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabdites and discosure of contingent awsets and lakilities at the date of the finandal statements and the reported amounts
af increases and decreades in net assets from operations during the reponing period. Actual sewu’es could differ from those estimates

\m) Aewuired Funds The Trustes and (ke Massger may apoly al o 4 portos of the assets of FIMCO Emengrg Markets Bond Fund {IITF], FIMCO Emergeg Markets
Bord Fund (¥en-Hedged), and PINCO Emaenging Markets Bond Fund B {each refemed 1o harein as 2 “Fund of Funds® or the “Acgaining Furd”, wiich invests in other
Furedyl o the iespectve oedit of the PRMCO Emerging Madkets Bond Fund (M} [rederied bo berem a3 an “Acquived Fend{s)"]. Any assets 10 sopbed will be held mososch
Aoquited Funish as if recewed dreatly Whene assels are 5o apphed, the Aogured Fund(s) will neoord chi e of wnits to the relesant Aoiusting Fursd 1 the S5ue prive
did it 6l such usabt &0d well repunchane such units 81 the repurchati pocs pod et al wel ufets 51 the time ol repuschne

Ratios shoeam im the Financial Wighlighty do not include expenses of the Acguined Fanddy) Soe Wote §, Fees and Experise, lor further information mgading fhend fees
a5 npplcaide

i Seowtities Trassactians and lmvestmeant Incame S0 Ted lanwarer, s ieeorded s ool the vade date for linancial epaitng puiposes Secuntes punchated of
sold on & when-issued or delayed-delivery bass may be settled bepond a standand settfement pericd Bor she seauify afier the trade date. Realized gains and losses
Tresmm st s sold are receedind on the identified cost bass. Dividend income 4 reconded on the ex-divisend date, enceptl cortain dividends fiom freign secunties
wisere the ex-daidend date may have passed, which a'e recorded 23 1000 & a Fond & mformed of the ex-diadend date Interest income, adjusted for the aconetion of
discounts ard amortization of premiums, & recorded on the acomal basis from setement date, with the exception of sequnties with a forwand starting effective date,
where nteres] income i 1econded on the acorual b fiom eBle(ie date For comstibile sequrme, premiarms altribatable 1o the convertion feasure aie not
amortoed Estimated tax labilfies on cortan farpign secunties are recorded on an acruad basey and aee sofiected as components of inférest income or net change
inteakeed apgeeciation [depreciatnn) on inwestments on the Statements of Opem o, &5 appropeiace. Tax labilies realred a5 2 resu® of sach spounity sales are
ieflecked a5 8 component of nef reakzed gain (l05s) an Emesiments on (he Statements of Operators. Paydngn gass and ested on momngage-ieleiead and otrers

et Ri1 | Mi) 31, 2220
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arssel-nacked securibes, o any, are recorded as comganents of inferest mcome
an B Statermants of Operationt, Detil chiigations may be placed on non-
ancrual status and refated intenest incoma may be reduced by ceasing qument
atcruaks and varicing alf insereit recervable when the collecion ol all or a
poitian ol intenest hes became doubtful Based oo consistently applied
prodedures. A deit obligation is remaved fom non-accrusd status when the
Fusues esurres interest payments of when collectabdity of inenest & siobable

e} Cash and Feauign Cosveney Thw Firancisl stalements of gach Fund ane
presernted using the currerdy of the frimary ecoroma emasanment in which it
aperates (the “lnctons currency™) The hmctional cumeney o pach ol the
Fureds is Bsted im the below table

T mariet values of foseign seaurities, curency holdings and ofner assets
and habilities ang tramvlated into each Fund™s tunctional currency based on the
curent enchangs rates each husiness day Purchases and sales of seourities
and intome and expere ies desarenated in daisign cumencies, Il any, are
renslased brin each Fund's nespective funciional cunency at the exchamge
rate in offect on the transaction date. The Funds dio not soparately report the
eftects ol changes in foresgn exchange rates from changes in markel peices on
secutities held, Such changes are included in net reslized and nel changes in
unieakeed gain oo loss from Ewestments o the Statements of Opevabions

The Funds may nvedt = larelgn curieney denommmated seoaies and may
TR in forpign currency bransartions either an a spot [rash) basis at the
fang privaisng in the cumendy exchance marke 21 1he time or through a
forward doreign currency contradt, Realized foreign exchange gains or lses
artsing from sales of spot foreign cumencies, cumendy gains. or lodses reafizad
Detween e trade and serlement dates on Securntes Mansactians aed the
diflenc e between the ieconded amounty of dividends, meed, and fosign
withholdieg taes and the functesal cerency scuivalent of the amounts
sctually recenved or paid &'e intluded in nat ‘oalined gain or low on foresgn
currency transactions on the Statements of Operaticrs. Net umrealized foreign
eathange gains and krsses atrsing freem changes in foreign eachangs ra1es an
lonesgn denominated assets and abdities other than investments in securities
Fvelcd at the end of the 1epoiting period ate included in net change in
unteakzed appreciation of depreciation on foreign comency asoets and
hakslities on the Statements of Opserations

The Met Asset Value | "MAN" ) aod total retums of cetain Funds (or Classes
thereal, & spphcable) ang prevented m thie currendy for whsth the NAY i
reported {the "NAW currency "] as detailed in sach Fund's Ofesing
Memerandum (the "l:ﬂ'lrcmg Memorandum”). For the puipoaes of the
presentation of the NAY and the total retumn in the NAY curengy, the
begneing and ending MAYs are converted using the penod begnning and
kg enchaige jates, respecinely, and detributions aie comeited wing the
{-:u;l':mlr rabe af the tmo of the dstnbugion See H'-r!mi'uq table for the
WAY cutrency of each neipective Fund:

FurdTlese.
 FIMED Bermada Forasgn Low Dusanon Faed)
TR a0 Fnd
| WED Emerprg bariass Bond Fued LITTY |
FIMCD Emaepng Markast Bard Fund () [ 5. dor U5 ool
|+
| FINGO fmerging Markoss Bond s (tanfidged] | Jpwsesepen | U5 ol
AMCD imargrg Markees Baret Fund 1 [ dmssecayn | 15 col
« JERL
= laon
= JUNR)
L

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

T Dt
4 (18T

= J[TARI Japiriess yan U5 doler
PIWCD Eurs Terad Revarn Fard = Eus
PEACT) Fins Rturn Fund 115 coler | US oot
PAMCE) SthorTeem Stratagy

& M0 Asmtisken folar | U8 doker

+  Cash LS. dollar U5 daler

® JIFN Lpinene yin U5 dnlar

iU Jpurteth U5 dolla

TR L v L5 dolar

+ 15D 1S dalar g seler

i Multiclass Dperations  Each Clea ol o Fusd olfened by the Tiust has
tights 10 the assets of the Fund egqual 1o that of other Clases of the same
Fund, except for specilic assats ard gaing and losses designated to a Class
redabing 1o currency hedgng operations. Income, non-Clads spedfic expemet,
anedd rom-Class specific realized and unrealized capial gains and bosses are
alocated bo eath Class of units based on the selathe fet assets of sk Class
ol the respective Fund Class specific expenies cutrently indude
management, abwsory, administrative, MLy, ard dntibution Teer, whan
aoglicable

el Diatribution Paliay The doflewing tatile shows the asticingted frequency
af distributions for each Furd fatibutions fom each Fund may be declaied
andd devinibuted In Unitholders cnly upan the authaization of the Marage,
which aushotizanian may be withield at the Manager's discretion

PMICD Een Tont Betam Fund

Declmed and Paid Maatiy:

MO Ermergng Mackats Band Fond LETF
IR Erret g Mlarkine lasdl Fured (Yiee-Hedged|
PIRCT Ermigg Markits Band Furd Il
FILCT Feorn Taem Srmegy
- J I
J |
Mevimed and Pald Qusriwrly:
FIKICT Berrrasdn Farmg L Dutsben Fund
FIMITE Berrasty U5 Lo Dot Fond
| Docloed andPii huesate |
b Bl P Furd
PO Soors-Teem Sirnagy

Masager diees nad avpect 1o declaie diatvibotlon with repee! b this Fand
fur Classe therwol, I applizabial, but may, In is dlsesetion, deslass and pay
fime,

FRCD Ervwerpng Markcy B Furd NI

Destributions, if @y, wall generally be made lom the selevant Fund's (or
Class's, if apglicable] net investment income. In additon, the Manage: mey
asthorize the paymard of net realaed capital gains available dor dstribution
Addsanal detribunions may be declaned as the Manager desms appropriate
Distributions paid with newpect o day Fund (or Class theneol, i applicabie)

e agar | My 31, 2830 a

272/404



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

wll reduce Bhe HAY of 2uch Fand {or Class theredl, o ﬂ|:|'.'||!'.H.IE:| Allhe
discreton ol the Unitholdars, cash dsiributions from a Fond (o Class Shereal,
f applcabie) may either be reimvested in additonal units of a Fund {or Clas
therzal, il apphcable) or pald 1@ Unithelder im cash. Cash payments will be
pisd ia the NAY currency of the Fund Each Fund for Class thereod, o
apphcakle) may declare further distnbutions if considered nacessary in andes
lo maintan a reasonable el of distnbations lor & Fund for Class thereof, d
appicatio). Inthe evenl tha tere B nadequate nel ncome and net reained
capital gains 1 pay & distribuson of 2 Fund jor Class thereod, if applicable)
soquiied by the Offedirg Memoiandum, the Mansge may pay & dstihubon
conslsting of a portion of the cagetal of such Fund [or Class thereof, if
Apabcatdel Dathutions nol colecied wethin 40 :.!m..‘!.r' thewr due date
will lapse v will avcenae 8o the bennfit of the relewant Fund or Class thereof,
il apphcakie)

1] Mawy Bezounting Pr t3 and Regalatory Updates In March
2020, the Frandal Atooustng Standsids Boad (” FASE *) msued &0
Meocoumiing Standards Updage ("ASU" |, ASL 2020-04, whech provides
aptinral quidance 1o sase the potensial acoounting burden assoniated with
transitionig away fiom the London Interbark Crifered Rate (LIBOR") and
athar teleience rates that are expecied by be discontineed . The ASU 7
effectve immediately upon release of the update om Manch 12, 2030 theough
December 31, 2022, AL this ime, mansgenent i evalasing the implcalions
al thewe changes on 1he linancial slatements

A INVESTMENT WALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

|x) Envexrtmant Valustion Policies The prce of a furd s units & based on
the Fund's NAV. The MAN of a Fund, or sach of s Classes, as appicable, &
determingd by dnading e total value al portioho investments and other
sl aitiibutsbdy to thal Fund or CRass, bess any liabilties, by (be 107l
number of weits gutstanding of that Fund or Class. Om each Fund's Dealing
Duery {as described in the cument Offerng Memorandurs ef the

Tiust], Fussd wnits ane ocdinacily walued & of the dode of regular trading on
thie New York Steck Exchange { "NYSE Close™ ) Information that beccesss
kneran 1o ke Funds or thelr agents after the time 4 aof wheeh NAV has Been
calculated on a partcular diy will not genecally be wied B0 etmacteely adind
the price of 2 secwity or the NAY determired eatlier that day. Each Fund
teserves the right to change the time 23 of whiach #s NAY is caloulsged if

the Fund closes earlier

Fer purposes of calculating NAY, portiolio securities and osher assets for
whah bl quotes are readly avallable ae valusd &1 maikel vadee. Maiket
valug 5 genarally determined on the basis of official closing prces or the last
reporied salss priges, or if ra sales are reported, Based on guotes obiained
Trem enatiburad marker makers o prices Grclodeg svaluaned peices) supplied
try the Funds' approved priong wWriichs, quotation |fpur|ine] systerms o
atheer third-party sources {iogether, "Pricing Senaces”} The Funds will
nonmally e pricing data lor domestic aquity wcurities iecennd shartly after
the N¥SE Close and do not rarmally take ina accoust trading. dearances af
settiemenis that take place afier the NYSE Close ¥ marked value pricing i+
uted, a foreagn [non-UL 5. ) equity securty traded on 4 fantign mchange o an
mare than one exchange & typically valued using priong information fom the
enthange ¢ermiceied by FIMCO 1o be the primary exchange. A& foreign [man-
U5 ] equity security will be valsed a3 of the dose of trading on the forcign
eachange, or the NYSE Close, # the NYSE Close ooours bedore the end of
1radineg on the foreign exchange. Domestic and (onegn (san-U 5. ) fned
noome securities, non-exchange traded deratives, ard equity options ane
normally vakied on the Basis of quotes chtained From brokers and dealers or
Prcing Senaced ieling wach dats refiecting the prncspad market for thote
wecunities, Prices obtained from Pricing Services may be based on, among
ather things, infermatian provided by matket makers of estimates of markel

walues cttiined from yeld data relatag to vestrents of securiies with
srmilar chacachemtits. Cevtain loed Income securtiies puichased ona
dalayed-celreery hanas are marked 1o market caily untd seftlement at the
forward senberent dae. Eachasge-traded options, exepl eguty options,
futures and options on futures are waloed 8 the e tilement e detemined
By the refvant ethange, quotes clbtaired from a guotation reporting sistem,
eitatimhed markel MAkers of Priang seriies Sawap agreemens 2re valoed
an the basis of market-based prices. supplied by Przing Senaces o guolm
abitnined fraem Beakers and desfors. & Fund's wemients in open-end
management insstmen] tompanies, ol than enthange-traded fusds
§"ETFs™ ], are valued a1 the MaVs of such imnestments

fHa Ir:rqu]n [ L) 5.} equity security's value has materially chan qu alver the
cherbe of the Securdy’s primary exchange o principal market but bedore the
MYSE Cloae, the secunity may be walued 2 fair vals Baded on procadurs
estabiished and approved by the Wanage Foreign [nor-LL% | equity

secif s than da nat trade when the NTSE 15 open are also valued at Rair
valug With respoct o Toreign [ron-UL5.) equity socutites, a Fund may
datermine the fall valse of nvestments basad on infeemation prowded :-'f
Pricing Fervices and other thind-party vendoo, wheeh may reconmend Ler
value o adjustments with eeference to othor securitics, méioes or assets. In
mn;idp-'ir.g whather fair vaksafion s mequied and in determining fain

walues, & Fund may, among ather things, contider sigrificant ewents (which
ray be considered o include changes in the value of U 5. securibes o

oo et indice] tha? ocos sfter 1he cloce ol the relevam market and balane
the NYSE Cloie A Fund may wtice modeing 1ooks peovided by thed -party
wersdors 10 detesmine fair values of foieign (nen-U.5 ) securities. For (hese
paipoies, any movemend in the applicable referente svdex ar inatrument

1" o tigger” | between the sarfer dose of the applicable foeorgr marked
awd the NY3E Chose may be deemed to be & i-";"llrILi"E &ent, prompting the
soplication of the pogng model (eflecively reultrg e daily fan

waluations). Farzign achanges may permit trading in foregn (none U 5}
equity seculites on days when e Trust is rot cpen Tor business, which may
tialt in & Fund's partfolio imesiments Seing aMeoed whin Unithalders ai
wndble to buy or sell units

Sanior secured floating rate keans for which an acihe secondary market exisis
10 4 reliable degrés well be valued At the mean of the last avadable baddsik
grices in the market for such loam, s ovided by & Pricing Service. Senge
secieed Tloating rate loars for which an active secondary masket does not
exrid to & rebable degres will be valeed at Tair value, which & intended to
aoprocmate market vakse. 'n valuing a senéor secured figabing rate loan at
len value, the facios considened may include, but ae mot limited 1o, the
folkwmng: (3] the credibwarthings af the boingwer and dny sieimediate
participants, (b the 1erms of the loan, (c] recent prices in the mariket for
similar loans, If any, and {d) recent prices in the market for nsnements of
samilor quality, rate, pericd wrtil next mtanes rate rese! and mahty

Ireviimants vailoed in curencios other than the functioral cemancy

aof & Fund &re conserted to the functional oumency using exchange rates
aatained fom Pricing Services, Asa rewlt, the value of sch investiments and,
ir fumm, the NAY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes i the value
ol tumrencied o reation 1o the funcional oenency The value of irvesiments
traded in foreign markets or dencminated in conencies atter than

the functiona! cumency may be afected significantly on a day that the Tt is
Al oged [or bk, Ad adesull, 15 the extest thal 8 Fund holds fuu:-gn-
§non-Ll % ) ivwesiments, the walue of those myeiiments may change at times
when you cannal purchase, redeem o exchange urits and the value of uach
wrwestments will be reflecied i the fund’s next calolaned NAY

irveiimants for which mariot gustes or macket:bassd valuations are not
rearclly avaiable ere valued a1 fair value as determined in good taith by
1he Managed o pedsons aClng Al ther doedtion. The Manage: ke adopled

el Paguati | My 31, 7931 m

273/404



to Financial 51z

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

methods far valuing securities and other assets m Griumstandes where
mariopd quotes ano fot readily avaitable, and has delegated to FIMCO the
respansibilidy for applying the fair valustion methods. in the event that maiket
Quiies of malkel based valuations are mat rea dily mvailabie, and the secunity
ar aeet cannat be vadued persuant o o Manages approved valuation
methed, the walue of the seounity or asset will ba determined in good faith by
i Wahuatedny Commities. Maikel guoned &8 condidedad nal readly svadable
n cEpamlances where theve i an alrence of corent oo relialie market-
based data (e.g., wade information, bidiask wdomation, indicative market
guitateten |" Broker Quobes”], Prucing Servces” piices), including whens
events cocur after the close of the relewant market, but prios to the KYSE
Chese, that materially afect the vahses of the Fund's securites or msets In
sddivon, maikel quotis e conadeted not iesdly sumlabio whin, dus to
entracedfinary (irumstances, the prchangss o mankets on which the
sequrines rade o0 nof open Por tradeng fod the entirg day and noother
matice] prices ane avssdable. The Manager i responsible lof monitaring
signdizant events that may mateially aflect the values of the Fund's secerities
of assats &nd for cesesmining whether the value of the aopfcable secwites of
swels should be reevaluated in light of such significant events

When a Fund wses fair waluation to determine the value of a portfolio seowity
or oiher asset for purposes of aloulating i MAY, such investments will not
b piced on the bads o quoles [rom the primary market in which they &
trascled, Bt rather may b priced by another metsod that the Manager o
petsond acting at thsr dsction bebese reflecs fair value Fair valestion may
mequite subjective debirmination: about the value ol a secunty While

the Trust's podiy is intended to tesubt in a calodation of a Fund's NAY that
faithy reflects secunty values s of the time al prting. the Trust cannat endure
that {air values deterrined by the Manager or pemons acting at their
direction would accurately refiect the price that a Fund coubd obeain for 2
soscutity il 1L were 1o depene of that secuwity & of the tre of pricing (for
mstance, in o forced or detressed sale]. The poces used by a Fund may differ
Treem the value that would be realized i the securities wene sold

il Fair Value Hiorarshy U 5 GAAP described laif value ay the price that

& Fund would: receive 10 5ef an asset o pay to transter o lisd¥ity i an ordedy
Irafibchon bebween Mrkel pamopants al the Meéaiunement dite. It
elahlntes 3 bai value hisrarrhyy that priotitees inputs 10 valisaton methods
and requires disclosure of the fair value erarchy, separately for each major
categony of atseis and kabiliies, that segregues fait value measurements inta
beveis (Lewel 1, 2, or 3) The inputs of methadolagy vsed for valumg seonities
&fe not necessanly an indwaton of the rsks associated with swesting in those
socntitien. Leveln 1, 2, and 3 ol the Lair walue tiearchy are defined dy follows:

# Lipwel 1—Qualed prices in active markets of exchanges for mdentical asiets
and Rabslities

= Level 2—Significant other observable inputs, whicn may include, but are
nal limited to, quoted prices for umilst assets or habslities on matkets that ane
active, guoted prices for identical or smilar assets or liabilites in markets that
afe hot s, inpull sther than quated padid that e ahevalle lor the
ayrts or kabilties (such 85 interest rades, vidd curees, volatites, @ epayment
speeds, boys severities, cedt iisks.and default rates) o ather market
corpborated inputs

® Level 3—Significant nobiervable ifpins based on e Best inloimdtion
availaile in the droumstances, 1o the exient observable inputs e nat
availaile, which may mdude assumptions mads by the Ha"al]’!l OF P EOTE
scting ab thei dinsetaos that Jee uied m detesminitg The fain waloe of
myesimants

In accordance with the requirements of U S, GAAR, the amounts of transfers
n gad oul of Level 3, if materia), are dcloded in the hates. b Schedde of
brrestrents for each respective Fund

For la valuatiom wiing sgwfcant unobservable inputs, U5, GAAP requires
1o disclosa tramdes into and out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and
parthases and issues of Level 3 assets and laddibies during the period
Addvonally, U5 GAAF reguies quaniilatme n‘r:rﬂ-a:-t-'ne-._;arl]n!q ke
srdicant unabservishle inputs used 5 the determination of fair valee of
aisets of liabiioes categonized a5 Level 3 in the fair value Mizrarthy in
Srodande with the requiemests of US GAAF, & lar value eranchy, and i
raderial, detois of uigt fiant uncbarrvable inputy; have been included i the
Mates b Schedide of Irvestments for each mspective Fund

el Valmation Techeigmes ard the Fair Value Hisrarchy

Lawed 1 and Livel 2 trading aasats and trading labilities, a1 fadr valus The
waluation methods (or “sechniques™] and significant inputs used in
chterminire Thi Fain valees of portioho wecunibes or ather aseets and habilties
categoiined a5 Lieved 1 and Ll 3 of she tair vaiue: hisrancy am s follows:

Fimed income securities. induding corporase, comveriile and musicipal bonds
&d moled, U5, governmend agencies, LS. treadury obligations, soveregn
mies, bank loans, oottty prefered securites and non-U 5 bands are
namally valued on 1he bass of quotes obtained from brokess and daakers or
Pricing Serwces that use broder-deder goolaton, iepoited tiades o
sraluation eytimates from their internal gricing models. The Pricing Serdioes’
rneimal models ube inputs tha ase obsenadle such as Hoser detaib, inteen
dales, yld cures, prepayment ipeeds, credil rakuspeands, delaull rates and
quoted jprices for similas assets. Securities that use similar valuation
Techmiques and sngrits a5 described above a'e Ccategonded ai Live 2 of the
Hair value hisancky

Foued incoma secunties parchased on o delayed defivery basis or o a
reputthae commitment in a salebuyback bansacton are marked 1o market
daaly il settlemant &t the forwand satthement dato and ate categonized &
Lewel 2 of the T value hiesaicy

Mongage-related and assef-backed seganes ale usually isued a5 separate
Aranches, & clatied, of tecuritiol withs e deal Thede vecuiilied are alss
namally walusd by Pricing Sensices that e benker-daales quotations,
reported trades. of wvakiation estimates from their inseenal pricing modets. The
ricing madek for these secatites wsually consider manche-lovel antributes,
gumest market data, sstimated cash flows and market-based yweld spepsds far
each tranche, anel incormorase deal collaterzl perfrmance, a5 avadablz
Mongage-relaled and ssel-backed securities. thal we simiar valuation
fechmiques and ingerts a5 described above 0o categonzed as Lewel 2 of the
Hi value hievaicky

Commen Racks, ETF, exthange-taded nowes and Ersndsl detvathe
rstpments, such as futunes comracts, gt and warants, or options on
futures that are traded om & nationsl securtied exchange, aie stated o1 the
Last pported wale of setllement pnce on the day of sakiation To the extert
these securities are actieely traded and valuation adusiments are net appied,
thiey are categeeired s Level 1 of the Tair valoe hisarchy

treepitmants valosd (dencmrated) i Surrencssd othed tRam the lunctional
curmency of a Fund are comverted to the functional curency using mchange
rates [cureny spot e forwand rales} cbeamed bom Pricng Services, As a
result, e MOV of & Fund's wits may be allected by changes in the vahue of
furmences in relation i the funchional curency. The walue ol o traded
i foreign markets or dendeninated in currencies othes than the funczional
gumency may be affected sigrficantly om a day that the Trust i not open for
Buinass. Valuation adjustmants may be applied to cetain secunties that are
solely baded on a foreqn excnange o accourt {or the market mavement
Bretwen e choe of the longign markel and the NYSE Cloge. These sicuntss
ae valued usrg Pricing Serdices that censicer the core'ation of the trading
paiterre ol i faregs secutity 1o the intraday bading in the U 5. marbeis for
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sreesiments Sedunles wiesg these valuation adjustments & (alegorped a4
Liwwl 2 of the Tair valoe heranthy. Preferied socuritees and othe equilies
raded on imactm mark et cr walued by referenca to smdar imsdrgmends are
aho categorized as Leve! T of the far value hieratchy

Equity-lnked secuntees ane vakeed by relerencing the last reported sale or
wettement price of the linked refeserced equity on e day of valuation
Foresgn exchange aduatments are apghied 1o the st reponed price 0
convert the linked equity's tading cumenty to the tontract's seiting currency
These imvestrrents am categosped a5 Level 2 of the Tair value hierarchy

Imipstrants in regriemmd open-end myvedmen mmpanies {othe tian FTF5)
well be valued basad upen the NAYS of wsdth irmeuments and are caiegadzed
a5 Level 1 of the fair valor iemanchy. Imestments in unregastersd open-end
reestment comparies will be caloslated based upan the NAYs of such

e imints s ace condidened Level § provided that the NAWY e
abrervable, caboulated dally and ae the valoe ol whech both purchases aeed
sabes wil b condutted

Valualion adjustments may be aoplied to ceitisn exchange raded hulues and
aplions bo accoend for maried movemnent Between 1he muckange wetibemaent
and the NYSE close. These sequrites are valued using quaotes cbfained from &
quatatson reporirg ystem, estabiiched marked makers or pricing senses
Financial demvatiees anang these valuation adjustmenty are calagonzes as
Level 2 of the fair vakee hierarchy

Equity exchisnge traded aptions and over the coueter fnandal deiivatie

mstrumends, such a5 Jorwand famign curenty contracts and optices: contracky,

derie theer vk from underking assel pnoes, indices, reference rates, and
atter inguts o & combination of these leciors. These comliacts are noemally
walued on the bases of godtes obtained fram a quotateon rparting system,
establahed murket maker o Pricing Senvices {normally delermired a5 of the
NYSE Clor). Depending on the arduct and the terms of the Trsvaction,
financial desteative instruments can be vaksed by Pricing Senvices uaing a
verbes of pechesgues, including simulation pricng models. The pricing rodels
e imgats Ehat ane obaerved from actively quoted mackets such as guoted
prices, issuer derails, indices, bitdvask spreads, innesest rages, implied
welanities, yefd cunves, dendends and exchange rates. Fonancisl dernative
st et thak use smilar yaluation techniques and inputs at described
above are categorzed a5 Level 2 of the fair vakee hieardhy

Certrally clesred swaps and ave the counber vwaps derwve thes value lrom
underhying asset praoes, ndeoes, releioncs rated, and ather inputs or a
combination of these lartors. They are valued ysing a brofer-dealer hid
QUINETon of on manker-pased prices privided by Praoeg Senmies (normaly
detemined a4 o e NYSC Close) Centealy cleared vavaps and cuver the
counter swags an be valued by Pricing Senvices using & series of technigues,
ncludng iesulaton picing models. The prging model sy use mpuls ta
i obriened bhom actively qualed markets sach a5 the osernighl index swap
vabe (" H5" ), LIBOR Borvenrd rate, interest rates, yebd ourves and coecit
spreads. These secutitied ane cateqorited o Lowel 2 of the lair vale histanchy

Level 3 trading asasts and trading liabilities, at falr value When a fai
valuation method i applied by the Manager that uses significant
unishstivabie inputs, rveitment will Se griced by 6 method Ehat

tha Manager or persons acting at thair direction believe reflects far value and
afe (aregorined &5 Livel 3 of the 1air value hietarchy, The saksation
techniques and significant inpufts used in determining the fair walkoes of
porifoho assets and lisbdiies tategorived au Lewel 3 of the fairvalue hisanhy
mie % fodlove:

Prowy picng procedunes st The base price of 4 fxed mtome secanty and
subsegquently adjust the price proportionally o madoet valie rhang{!s of a pre
determined secisity deemed b be companable & dulabion, generslly a5

Treasury of stverergn note based on oounitry of fssuance. The base prce may
b a Erolec-dealer quabe, transaction ice, or an eteinal valuo o detrood by
analysis of market data The hase peice of the securtty may be reset on a
perodie bass based on the eailakelity of marke data and peocedures
dpproved by the Valwation Commitiee Signilicant changes i the
uncirservable inpurts of tha presy pricing process (the base prical would result
o gl and propartsanad changes in the lar value of the secunty, Thege
wowilies ae categoried & Ll 3 of the Tair vadue hivmarchy

i third-party evaluated verdor prcing is nod available or not deemed o be
irdicative of falr vakae, the Manager may elect 1 abtaim indicative market
quitaton drectly fram the Braker-dealir or pasied-through bicker quose
from a shird-party wendor bn the event that fair value is based wpon a single
sowrced Brokier Quote, these secutities are cofegodized & Level 3 of 1ha Tai
wiilue hrarchy. Booked Cuofes aoe typecally recerved fom estabslished marncet
paticipants. Akhough indepensenty recetved, the Manager does not have
the trerspa‘ency 5 view the underying inpuls which wupgart the market
guotation Signdicant changes i the Braker Quobe wou'd have disoct and
propomional changes im the fair vabee of the secunty

Shori-ieim debt tiorenty (k& commedtial aspe) haw i) & PTG
maturity af B0 days or bss may be vaksed at amortined cosl, o long a6 the
arortized toat valua of such chars:term debt instuments = approximately the
shent a5 the Tan value of the reatnesent & determined withoul the use of
amortied cost valuation. Theso securities ang categorzed as Level 2 or Loved
3 of the faw value heeraichy depending on the source of the base price

4, SECURITIES AKD OTHER INVESTMENTS

Aa) Dedayed-Dedivery Transagtions Certain Funds may purchase on sall

secuf ities on o delayed-debery bashs. These ansactions ok a
commitmant by & Fund to purchaie o sell securtied for & predetomingd e
oy, with payment and dalivery tak g place beyond the customany
sefllemerd peniod. When detayed-delrvery rarmaltions ane ublanding,

a Fund vell designate or oo a5 colldderal bguid asacts = an smount
sutficient bo mest the purchase prce or respective phligations. When
patchdding o wecurity on & clayed-delivery S, & Fund asiumes. the nghts
aned risks of ownorship of the security, including the risk of prioe and yield
fluctuations, and takes such fuctuations Ine acoount when determining it
HAY A Fund may dispode of of nenegotate a dilayed-delnery ansacsen
& it = entored into, which may resslt in & realized gain o kaa. Wi

& Fund has iold & securty on & delayed-del very bane, the Furd does not
participata in haure gaing and losses with respect 1o the wecurity.

&) Indlationdndened Beada Coran Funds may irvestin nflation- mdewed
bands. inflation-andened bonds ane Ted income sequrties whoas princpal
walue i pencdically adjusted by the rate of inflation. The imterest rate on
these bonds 1 geserally Tued at issuance at & rate lower than typical bonds
Over the B of an inflation-indexed bond, Rowever, snterest will be paid
baied on & principal saloe, which & adjusted for inflation. Any increass of
dacrime in the pincipal amaun of an inflason- indesed band will be included
i, mieves! meome on the Strtements of Operatimns, sven Ehough imnstors do
mo receive their principal until maturizy. Repasymend of the criginal bond
principal upon maturicy (a3 acjusted for inflation) & quadanteed in the case of
U5 TIPS, For bords that do rgt prowide a wmilar guarantos, the adusted
grincipal watue of the bond repaid 3t maturiy may be less than the onginal

g il

el Losam Parthalp Aamig s and Orlginas Cortan Funds may
irwest in direct debt irstrumseens which aie Interests in amouns ovwed 10
Rpndin of lerding syndicabes by corporale, ginvermamental, o othis bommvers
A Fund"™s investments in loans may be in the form of participations in loans or
asigements of all o a pertion of loans fiom third parties o imestrrents i o
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afiphiatons of kaand By the Fund, Aloan i often admanistened by & bask &
athar firancial institution (the " lender” ) that acty as agent for al hoidery. The
apent adminssiers the terms of the loan, as spectied m the loan agreement

& Fured may ivest in multiple sees o panches o a foan, which may have
varging tes and carry ditfetent astocisted ks, When & Fund purchases
assigrerenis from lencers & acquines direct nghts aganmsl the borrowers. of the
boan, These loans may include partspations i bidge loany, wheth amne losm
laken out by bowrowen Jor o steat perod {bypicaly bess than coe year)
pendis Frrangement of moio permanent financing thiough, for example, the
wsuntce ol bonds, fiequently kigh yeld bends issued For the purpeds of
#bquisitions

The types of lgans and related irvestments in whidh the Funds may imvest
ntlude, smong gthers, seniof ksnd, subordinated loans [ncedng wond
fwin lpams, B-Mofed and merfaning lgans), whele loans, commengal neal
estate and cther commerncial loans and structwred loans, & Fand Ty
angnale loans of soquite deed inbielts in loans teoogh primary loan
distribestiorn andion in private tramactions In the caie of subsedinated loany,
therz may be significant rdebtedress ranking atead of the bomower's
abligation 1o the holder of uxh & loan, ncuding in tee event of the
bomower's imalonoy, Mezzanine loans are fypically secured by 2 nka’g.f of
&N ety inherest i the morgage bomower that cwns the real estate rather
than an inberesd in a mofigage

brversbments i doang may include enfunded loan commitments, which are
cendrachaal chligations & funding Urfunded loan commitments may nduede
ievohang credit faddhes, wheth may obbgate 8 Fund 1o wpply sddtanal cib
{o the bovower on denard Unlunded o commiiments rigpesenl a lulwe
abligation in Tull, even though a percentage of the commitied amount may
nal B utiired by the boirter When inseiting o & lsan paticpation,

& Fined by the right o receive payments of pringipal, interest and ary fees 10
whwech i 15 eatithed only from the lender seling the loan agresment e ony
upan receipt of payments by the lender from the borower. & Fund may
receim a commitrent fee based on the undrawn portion of the wnderlying
e of credit portion of & lasn Bs cerzin oroumstanoss, @ Fund may recense 3
penalty fee upon the prepayment of o boan by @ Sormower. Feed eamed oo
pasd are recorded a5 3 component of interest incoma of interest apana,
tespectvety, of the Slatements of Operabiers Unlunded loan commiaments
ae mfected & 4 Rabiity on e Statements ol Assets and Lisbliles

1 Mortgage-Aelated and Dther Raset Backed Socutitien Cerman Funds miy
el im morigage-refated ard cthor asset-backed secuntion thn dimctly of
indwetly regresent @ participation in, or ase secured by and payable from
ko on real property. Mongege-ielated securities are cieated from poo's of
residential or commercial morigage loare, including martgage ioans made by
sanings. and loan instiburtions, marigage harters. commenal banks and
athérs. Thide securities provide a monthly paymend whath conaists of bath
ateest and principal Interest may be debermined by foed or adpsiable rates
The rate of prepaynerts on underling mortgages wil affect the peice and
volanlity of & moigege-lelaled secunty, and may have the #tlect ol
shartening ce extending the efective curation of the security selative 10 what
wt avicinsted i the time of purchane The timaly pagment ol principal and
ritenest ol coftan margage-relsted wecutities & quaranteed with the full faith
and credit of the U 5. Government. Pools oreated and guaranseed by nan-
goweirenenial lssuers, including govemment-sponsned ooipoeations, may be
supporied by various Tommi of insurance o quaranbess, but there can be no
asurance that privade imsurers o quarasiors can meet ther obligations under
the nsurande poficies or quaranies arasgaments. Many of the risks of
rresting in mortgage-nelated wecurities secursd by corvmercial mortgags
baares eiflect the effects of load and ather economic conditions on real estate
marcet, thir atshity al tenants 10 make ate payments, ard the sality of o
property b0 attract ang mbin tenantt. These spcunties may be Gess liquid and
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rray exhibit greater price vobatiity than otfer types ol momgage-relsted or
ather asurt-backod tecurties. Other asset-hacked secwities am crested om
may types of assets, inchuding, buf nat limited 10, auto loans, atcoents
recetable, such &% credit cavd receivalles and hospital account receivables,
o equity e, studont loans, bost loans, mobile home loans,
recreational vehide kass, mamud attured housing ioans, aloaft leases,
computer leased snd syndicated bank loans. The Fusd may evest in any level
ol the capatal structure of am naoer of morigage-backed or exet-bocked
segitities, inghuding the squity es "First loss” tanche

le] Collateralized Mortgage Dbligations |“CRA05") e debe ablicatiam of a
legal ertity that are collaseralived by whole morigage loans o private
matigage bonds and divided into classes. CMOs are streciured ingo muhiple
clwiges, often referied 1o 44 “tramched”, with aach class bewing a different
stated materity and endfled ina different schedule for payments of procipa
and imeves), including prepayments. CMOs may be less liquid and may exhibit
groser price wolatilty than ather types of mortgage-releted or asset-backed
wecurilieg

il Etvipped Mortgage-Baeked Seeuritien {"5MEL") aie déivaine multe-dld
o g securition. SMBS are usually structuied wath te classes tha) eorie
dfiprent peopartions of the interest and principal distributions on @ pocd of
raitgsde ssatt As SMBS well hinse ong class that wil recenve all ol t5e
intevest [the interest-onfy or “I0" class) while the othes class will recehve the
entre princpal {the prencipel-only o “PO" dass), Payments recetved fa1 103
e intlodied m infeneid intoma on the Statovents of Operations. Becauna no
grincipal wall e reopaved ot the maboamty of an 10, adjuistments are made tn
thie cost ol the security om & menthly basks unad matwity, These adjusiments
& incladied in intereyd income on the Statemwnts of Operations, Payments
received for PO are teated & raductons to the oot and par value of the
LeCulies

dgh Collwteralized Debi Obligations [“C00s") include Collateraiied Bond
Cirbganons *CHOs"), Collaterahaed Loan Obbgatkons | *CLGs" ) and athes
similily AEnactured securities. CBOs and CLOL &0 typsts of el Backed
securities A CHO & a trust which is bacoed by a divensified poal of high riak,
Bedowy irvesiment grade Tmed intome seturtses. A CLD = & el typscally
colateralized by 2 pool al beass, which may include, amang athers, dometic
and {oreign seninr sacuned lnans, senior umseauned lnans, and subomdinete
corperate loans, Includisg baans that may be sated below investment grade o
equivaient wreated lpans. The risks of an investmend in & CEO depend Inu;a:!h
an the type of the cofateral sacurties and tha class of the COG in which

& Fund mvests In addition &5 1he nomdl racs ssaaoabed with | ped snoome
seowitios discussed ehavehen in ths report and the Furdy® Offering
Memarandum (2.g, prepayment k, credd ik, liquidty sk, market dsk,
atrottural rivk, bagal sk and intorest mate ke [which may be exacerbatod i
the interest rate payable on 3 stnuctures financing changes based an

P e l.l‘-i"lauges. i el fales of irversely 10 chasges 0 mienes]
ratesy), TBOS, CLOK, and other CD0 carry sddimional nskd wthodng, bul not
fimited to, [ij the possislity that distributions fom caliaterak sacueities will nat
e adiequare oo mabe inteéngst or othid payments, (il 1he guality of the
onllateral may Seciing in valun or defalt, {iil) the riak that o Fund may imest
i CB:Ds, CL0s, oo other CDOs that are suborginate to other classes, and {w)
The complim dtructue of the secutity may nat be bully urdeciooed o ke Eme
of imvestrent and may produce dapuies with the issuer of unexpedted
myestment resls

k) Paymsent In-Nind Seowrities Certain Funds may mvest = payment in-kind
seourities | FIKS") Pigs may gmve the issuar the opton at each mienest
paynerd date of making interest payments in either cash andior additonal
debt spcurithes. Those addibonal debl spcerties wwually Bave the same 1eimd,
irchafing ratunity dates and interest rates, and associased risks a5 the
arigingl bords The daily marker cuoanons of the ofginal bonds may indude
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the acceued inerest brefemed 1o a5 a “diny pce”] and requie & pro iata
adrtment fom the unealined appreciation of depheciation on inveltments
{0 interesi imcevable on the Statements af Assels and Lishedibes

il Remtricved Sesurites Cenan Funds may hold myvestments that are sulyect
1o legal or contractual restrictions on resale, Thewe secuntics may be sold
privately, but may be required 1o be tegistered o7 exemphed from such
regriration belond baing sold 1o the publbe. Privete placement seculities an
gerserally comssdered 10 be restricied. hsposal of resticted investments may
rroold WMe-Consiming negobatcons and exgendes, and prompl see at an
seeaptable price may be deffiedt 1o schon Restricted mvettments beld by
the Funds at May 31, 2021, & applicable, are disclosed in the Notwes 1o
Schedute of Ivestments

il Structwred Netes Covtain Funds may wvest in structured nobes and other
telnled mitraments, which are prvately negatisted debt obdigationd m which
ke princigal and! or interest is determined by eference %o 1he perdormance of
& benchmark asset, market o interest rabe (an " embedded index™), such as
solacied securtiod, an inden of securitios or ypectied intenest rates, of the
diflerensial padcemancs of fao asuwets or markeby, such as indeses efacting
Donds. - Srcured ERTamencs may be msuec Oy [oMpoIanons, nhuding
benks, g1 well oy by gowernmental agendes. The teren of such strectuned
struments. nomally provide that their prindpal andfer interest payments. are
1o bt i e pied o4 o dowetrevasds (bt ordnanly ot be'on péral bo
reflext changes in the eebedded index while the sireciuned istiuments are
outstandiag. As a sesult, the ienest andlor principa! paymrants that may be
maste o & struciured product may vary widely, depending on a vatiety of
Tachess, including the volatilsy of the embedded Index and the effect of
changes in the embedded index on principal andicr merest payesents

(ki LS. Gewernment Agessies or Governmest Sponsored Enterprises

Cartain Fundy may immst m sscurtties af LS. Governmant agencies oo
goverrereni-sponcoied emerprises. 1S, Gowemment securies an
ablsgation of and, n cerain cases, guaianteed by, the U5, Gowermimenl, its
apences of instrumenialities. Some LS. Gosesnment securities, such as.

1 Ty Exlls, notes and Bardy, and seCuntes I;-..-d-'d"l'IPE'C By e LEL AT
Hational Meorlgege Associaton {"GHMA™ o "Grne Mee™ ], ae supporied
by the full Faith and crecit of the LS. Gowernment; others, sech s thowe of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, ate supporied by the right of the issue to
bomow trom the U S Department of the Treasory (the "L S, Treasuny™|; and
athers, such as those of the Federsl National Morigage Association [“FNMA"
af “Fanme Mas™}, e cuppoied by the diseretonady authanty of the U5
Gowrimend 1o porthase B aqenny™s ohbgatiorn U S Gowemmeal secutes
mgy include 2o coupah secuntes, which do nod distrbute Mees on a
curtent basis and bend 10 be subsect ta o greater sisk than interest-paying
secunities of similar matwrities

Goverment-refated gaaantors §i e, not backed by the full faith and cedn of
the U5, Governmes include FRMA and the Fedeal Bome Loan Morlgage
Corporagion {“FHELMC " or “Froddie Mac™) NS 5 2 govermement sponsoeed
conporation. FNMA porchases conventional §i e, not insured of quarantesd by
afty gavertment agendy) resdential mangages from a k5 al approved
seflers'senvicers which inchuce s3ate and federally charered sanings and loan
FLodatons, mutoal Lwangs banks, commercial banks and cedit unioas and
martgsoe bankert Pacs-thenugh weusties wued by FREA ate quarantesd 4
I imely payment af principal and interest by FNIGA, but are ned backed by
ke il Faith aned credil ef tha U S, Government. FIFLMC msues Farticpation
Certilicabes. {* PCs "), which are pass-through secuntses, sach representing an
undnided mterest in 3 pool of residential morgages. FHLML guaraness the
limey paymenl of irceest and ultimate oollecion o prircipal, but PCs aie not
hatked by the hall faith and credit of the U5 Gowernment

I June 2019, FkA and FHLMC stamed sdung Urshorm Mangage Backed
Socurities { “LINES"] in place ol their curret oeesng of TRA-egible
secirties [ "Single Secimtty bstiatren” ) The Sirgle Secunty Intiatve speks
10 suppoet the overall Rgudity of te TRA market and algns the
chiracteratics of FNMA snd FHUME cemmficstes The eflects that the Single
Sacurity Initiathve may have on the market foe TRA and other morigage-
Baited weuriliel 208 Unceriin

Aoll-tiring strategies can be used where & fund el 1o exterdd the
expiration or matunity of 3 ponition, such a5 a TBA seowity on an underlying
aiael_ Iy closing et the positien before expiration and apening & new
poitian with isspect 1o substamially the same undedlying aiset veh a lates
egperation cate. TOA sewrities purchased or sold ame reflected on the
Setpmenits ol Autety srd Lishieed a5 an st o ||ab|||:.'. nespectely

i Whan-lesund Tramsactians (emam Funis may puerkase or sl senunities
09 & when-Lied hada Thess transsctons ane mad condtonaly Becdins o
weourty, lh*-nm]h authoriped, has nat yeq been issped in the market
Traraactions. 5o purchase c¢ sel seoamties on @ when-nsued bass ivoboe

& tomimdlment By & Fund 1o paichate of 80 thete securhes lor &
predwtwmined price o yield, with oyt and delivery laking pleoe beyond
The customary semlement perod. A Fund sy sell when-ssued seguries
bt o thary are delreered, which may rewdt in a soakzed gain or low

i) Bank Dbligations Bank obligations inwhich a Fund may imiest incude
werhifsates ol deposit, bankeds aoceptances, and foed e deposits
Corificates of depost anp nh;-:ll:hlr gertificates issued against funds
deprnited in a commersial bassk Sor a definite period of time and eaming a
specifed retum Bankers' acceprandes are negotisble drafs oo hils of
gachange, normally drawm by an importer of geporter bo pay for specific
merchandice, which are “socepted ™ by 3 bank, meaning, ineffect that the
bk uncandiianally scrie 1o pay thie Waio value af 1 indtument on
matuiity, Fooed time deposits are bank oblgatons payabie at 2 stated
rmaTLy date and bearing interess 810 fined eate. Fived time cepodits my be
wwithak man an demand by (ke imvestol, bol may be subject b5 aarly
withcrawal PEnaies wiich vary cepending upon marcet conditons and the
pernainang Faaturity of e oiligation

5, BORROWINGE AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The fellowing dadeseres centain information on the Fusds’ abllity 1o lend o
Bainors (st of MbCuritiis 10 the @ctin] permined unde the Olleing
Memorandum, which may be viewad 83 bamewing or finanging transactions
Bry thed Fungs. The bscabon ol thess natiuments 15 deatided Below. Fod 3
dhetaslied devscniptaon al credit and counterparty ks 1hat can be asociated
with Borrewings and osher financing bransactions, piease sea Mate 7,
Mineipal snd Otker Rslks

la} Bepurchase Agresments  Cortam Funds may engage o repurchais
apeements. Undes the teems of & Typelal repurchase agreement,

@ Fumnd parchases an undelying debit obfigation (ooRstecal] subject o an
oligaton of the seller to ropechass, and a Fand 1o resell, the cbfigation ot
& agreed-upon price ged time. b B0 open matunty iepurchese sgreeent,
theto 1 na pre-dmermined repurchisie cade and the agreement can be
terminated by the Fund of countesparty at ary tme. Tre market valoe of the
cnlatersl st be squal 1o or excesd the total amont of the epunduse
atfajabon, nekdng irtecedl Repurchite s eements, including accraed
irterest, are includied on e Statements of Assets and Liabilties Imerest
earned b recoidied a3 a com ponent al intéres] intome an Lhe Statements ol
Dperations. n pencds of increased demand for collageral, a Fend may pay a
fee for receipt of collateral, which may result in imesest axpense to the Fund
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ki Reverse Repurchase Agreemmtn  Certain Funds may enter ssto everse
mpurchase agresmentz in a rpvene reprchase agrepment, a Fund defers a
SECLNTY i Eechange for cash to a feanrial imshiuhon, the counterparty, with
B SHLIMARSOUS BIFBESENT 10 reguichass e wame of subantally the wame
secutity at an agreed upon price and date. In an open mataity revene
repunchide sqresment, there | no pre-deteimined repunchase date and the
agieement tan ba bermnabed by the Fand of counterparty a1 any bme

A Fune i entithed 80 1eceive prncspal and interes payments, @ &y, made on
the secunity detiweted 1o the counberpasty during the term of the pgreemens
Cazh tecond in gucchange for securtios delivered plus accrued intersst
oEyments b be made by a Fund to cosnerparties are reflected as a liabdfin
an the Statermeents of Adsets and Liskslibed. Interest payments made by & Fund
10 counteipartics ai moorded 2 a4 component of rieest axpensa on the
Statements. of Operations In penods of increased demand frr the sanunity,

& Fund may (ecei & foe lor e of the security by the counterpaty, which
may result in interest income ta @ Tund. A Fund wil segragate aasets
determined to b Bguld by PINCD e vl etheraise oo its cbSgations
undes neverse repuithace sgresments

e} Sale-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter ireo financing pansactons
refaired 10 & 'sale-buyhacks”. A sale-buyback financing bansacton tonsfs
al @ sale of a socursty by a Fund to a financial wtitutcn, the countenparty,
with a semukanecus agreement 1o reparchase the same or substangially te
same secarity a1 an agieed-upos price and date. A Fund B not entiled o
mcenm prncipal and inlerest paymenty, if any, made on tho socungy sold o
the mousterparty durieg the teme of the agreement. The ageesd-upon
podeeds fod SeCunted io be sepunthased by a Fond ane reflected as a hatliry
on te Statements of Assets and Liasbiltes. A Furd will recogrize nat income
represented by the piice diferential between the price received Tor the
trarrdivied decurty and the agreed-upon rgarchase price. This is commanly
mefaired 1o a5 the pice diog™ A price diop consists of (i} the faieqone interst
and inflationary income adjustments, i any, a Fund would haee othersise
recened had the secunity not been soid and i) the negatiated fmancing berms
oetween a Fund and countesparty. Faegone interest and ﬂr'-if-l:l'li-"p InCome
:L'._,.n.hllfﬂl:L '] &y, aie iedonded & Loimpanefily ol inleisst Ptome o the
Satements of Operations. Inferest paymnents based wpon nogatiated financng
termes made by & Fund to courterparties ane reasded as a companent af

e esl @xperrie on the Statements of Opeatond In pemads ol indreased
dernand for the seourity, a Fund may receive a Toe for wee of the secunsy by
thie coseeeparty, which may resalt is imlerest income 8.8 Fund. A Fund will
whgrngatn asseiy debermired 80 e Epuid by PIRACO ar vall athenyiss cowar ity
abligations under sale:buyback tranzactions

i Short Salas  Certain Funds may enter into shom sakes randactions. Shan
sabas ane trandactions in which the Fard sells a secunty hat it may nol own

i Funed may make-short sales of securtties to () offset potential decknes in
bongy posilioms. if wmilas secuntses, (v) 10 inciease the Fembahity of the Fund
yii) Tor verstment retum, (i) a5 part of 2 risk arbitrage strategy, and {v] a5
partal its cverall portlobo management strategees invohing the use of
detivaing (nstnements When a Fund Bnganes ina uha't s, i1 may Dormaw
tha security soldf short and deliwer it o the oourterparty. The Fund will
ardinariy have 10 pay & fee or piamiue 10 bosiew @ securizy and be obligeted
1o requiy the lender al the secueity sy dividend ai infened (had accroe on the
secunity during the pericd of the loan. Securities scid in short sale tramactions
& the tnidend or mdetest payable an such secafties, i any, are tellecied a3
payabie for short sakes on the Statements of Assats and Liabdses. Shon sales
expose the Fund to the risk that it wall be requeted to cover s shart position
al & Lere wihin the secumity of olhet assel hes sppeedialied o value, s
'osljhm] in losses to ghe Furd. A shor sale is 'a}.;l|r1r1h[| box™ #

thia Fund haids in fis portfialio or has the right 1o aogquie the security sold
shoit, o sequiites idestcal 10 the secuily vold dhait, &1 no additonal cod

& Funed will be sabject to additonal ks to the egent that it engages in short
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sales that afe nal "poarst the ban ™ A Fund's loss on e shert sale could
thoaratically be unlimsed in cases whane the Fund & unable, Tor whatews
reason, to close ot it short position

B, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thar lellowing disdlosases contain information on bow and why the Fonds use
finarwial derivaiive instruments and how financial desfvative instruments
afict the Fundy” finangul postion, results of opeartions and cad flows. The
Becation and fae vahue ampunts of Bwse insbuments om the Siatements of
Asses ond Liabilses ard the net realized gom foss] and net dhaege in
wirpalered apprecaton (depieciation) on the BMabements of Dpevanons, sach
calegoiined by type of Francal derivatim contract ard selated risk exposune,
are theded & Lible i the Moled 1o Schedule of Inveatmests. The hinandal
derraative instruments cutstanding as of peiod end and the amounts af net
rpalirad! gain [Inss) and net rhange n unrealmed apgeeciation {deprecation)
o0 financlal dervative insruments dus rq 1he peviod, as dedosed in the
bates to Schwedule of Imsestments, seree as indecaions of the volume of
firarsciad dhevivariive actiety for the Funds

A} Forward Foreign Currenzy Cestracts Civtan Funds may engage mn
Iniwmd forsign cutrency conacts in connection with wetiling plammed
purthases or sales of secunities, 1o hedge the turenty exposise suotisied
wwith some of all of & Fund's secuntss or ok part ol an investmend stralegy, &
forward foreign curency contract s an agreemen betwien fwo partes to buy
&% L2l & urency 414 se1 price on a huture date. The market value ol a
forwarnd foreign curency covtract Mucsustes with changes in fareign cutrency
exchange rates Fansard *run_:i]n CUITENCY COniTaCis are marted to market
daly, and the change in walie & deoonded by & Fund as an uriealied gain o
Toas. Realized gains or louses are equal 1o the difference batween the value of
the conbract # the Sme it was opened and the value at the time it wars-cosed
e atn incorded Lpos delivery of eeceip] of the cumesdy, Thews contracts
mary ireolve market 1k in excess of the unrealized gain o loss reflecied on
the Statements of Assets and Liakilities In sddition, o Fond could be exposed
1o ik if the counterparties ane unable 1o meet the tems of the contracts or il
the value of the cumency changes unfavrably ta the functional oumency. Ta
eratagate such rak, cash ai sedunites may be exchanged as collstenal puriasnt
10 e torms of the underlying contracks

Coamn Funds, having a hedged Class, may also pater méa forsvard foneign
curmesdy contraces devered o offeet the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
oder to leewe the hedged Class with an expoaure 1o currencies. other than e
fungtigeal NGy Trarg can b no guarantae that these Class specific
fonars 13!&;’] CumEnCy coeviracts will be sucoessiul

i Futures Comtrapts  Cerldin Funds may enler irgo futuis conbiacts. &
futures coniract is an agreement 1o buy oe sell a seouity or other asset for a
set price on & fulure dase and & Daded an an exchange A Fund many we
futunes coniracts to manage its oxposee 10 the seowitics maroets o 1o
FRCETENTS (1 I TlSfesl dales and sendy walues The g iy Tiks, asaceiated
it thee use of futures contracts are tse impedect coselation between the
chimge in market walue of the securities held by a Fund and the mices of
futures contracts and the possibiing of an (liguid market. Futures contracks
are valwed heved upon their quoted dasly settlement prices. Lpon entering
rto @ futures contract, a Fund & required 1o ceposit with its fitures broker an
amcuml of cath, U 5. Government and Agency Obligabon, of select sovensign
debl, ifi socondande with 1he nRiel mangin iequeemests of 1he bicke o
-r:{ﬁr:nge Fugues comtracts are matked to markes daly and based on such
marnEns in the prioe af B cordracts, an appropiiste payable of receivable
for the change m value may be peatnd or colacted by the Fund [ Futures
Vanatcn Mamin"). Futwes Varation Mangies, §any, are dadosed within
ceritrally cleared financial devroative instiuments on the Statements ol Assets
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and Liabebtes. Gaond o losses aie recognaped bt not consideved ieakped uril
the contracts expite of clase. Futuies contracts imiobae, to varying degro,
nsk af loss in excess of the Fuhees Vanaben Margin included within
exschange traded o cenirally cearsd finencial dernative instrumesnts on the
Satements of Assets and Liabddnies

e} Dptiens Contracts Certain Funds may wiite of purchase optiorns bo
eihaiE iElURRS Of 80 hiddne &% exsting posiion of fule swestment. Celan
Fureh, may wrile call ard put options on securities and Snengel devame
nstrumse s, they cown of in which they may invest. Witing pul options tends
1o increde @ Fund's exposise 10 the usdedlyng mitrament. Wiiting call
aptions tencs 1o decreate @ Fund's exposare 1o the underlying imitrument
Wwhen & Fund wiites a call or put, an amoan] egqual 10 (he pramaum regeved &
roconded and wbweguertly marked 1o marcet 10 reflect the cunent vakee of
the ophen witien These oty ame inchided on the Sk sments of Asseis
and Liabikzies. Preeniums secerved from wiiting aptions which expire ane
treatesd 2 realized gains. Premivms received bom wiiting options which are
papirisad of chred are added o the proceecs of offwr against amaunss paid
ah B underiyng fulones, Swisp, Secutily of turTency raRSaCion 1o detesmne
the 1wiligvd gaim or boss. Certain optiors may be wrilben with premmiurms o be
detesmined on a futwe date. The premivms for these eptions ane based upen
‘r_:ln-'J volabbty parameters af speclfed terma. & Fund a5 8 wiiter of an
aptior has ro control ower whether the underying instrument may be soid
{"call *) co purchased {"put”] and as a resil bears the market rik of an
unlavesabie chasoe in the price of the watument underhpng the vantlen
aptior. There & the rak a Fund may not be ahle ko exter into a closing
transaction because of an illgesd marke

Certam Funds may stsa punchese pit and cafl optiond. Purchasing call aptions
tonds bo iscrease & Fund's eoponue to the undailying instrumen. Purchasing
put options tends bo decrease a Fund's exposure to the undedying instrument
& Funsd paryy @ premnium wiich in echuded as an st on the Statementy al
Agsets and Liabilites ard subseguently marked to martet o reflect the
cursent valuse of the option. Premeems pald ot purchasing aptiors which
expite- are rested & nealiped kdaes. Cortien optiony may be punthised with
premiums bo e determined o 3 future date. The premiures for these options
sio basid upon impled volstikly paiametens 51 ipecihied teims. The ek
awocalpd with purchaeng ma and tall optasee i imited b0 the premium
pasd. Premiums paid Tor parchasing optiens which aee evercised or choed are
siided tn the ampurts paid or olfsst sqainst the pioceeds an the undedhing
restmant iransaction ta determime the realized gain or ks whein the
undertying transachon s eveuted

Credit Delaslt Swaptions Cwlam Fund may wiile o puechase uedit
deloult swaptions to hr-d_q.‘ gy 1 tho coedit risk of an imvesteent
withoul making & commilment 1o the underlying nstiument. A credit cefsul
wwaption & an aption o sell or buy credd protection 1o & specific relenence by
ertening inba & pre-defined sevap agreement by some specified date in the
Tuituite

Feamign Caraney Opilons Cortain Funds may veite or punchans forsign
CUNTBNCY Dptians 1o b2 used as 3 shor of |:lr'g hE':I';E aqainsr possible
vanaboed i foreign exchange rates of 1o gan expasure ta foreign curmences

InflationCapped Opthena  Certainm Funds may wiite or purchaswe nSation:
cappied ot 50 enhahie [Ed oF o Fedging opportumiies. The pumos
ol purthasing inllation-capped oplions is 15 probect a Fusd fiom mflation
esion above o otriain rate on & gheen national exposure. A Bacr can be
uted 1o g dowrelide profection b evesiments in inflabon-lnted products

Interest Rate-Capped Options Certain Funds may weite or purchane inberest
rate-capged optons to enhance et o o "H]l_llllg opporiunites. The
putpene of purchaing interes! rate-copped optiom i 1o prolect a Fund fom

flasting rate rsk abeve & ceviain rate on & given nabcnal expesere. A Toor
can bo ased 1o give doveride robection o investments in interess rabe linked
products

Interest Rain Swagtlons Certain Funds may welte or puichase intenest rate
eapticr which arp options to enier inbo & peo-defined swep agreement or
1o sharten, extend, cancel or othenaise modify an exsting swap agreemant,
B Sodmi S fied date o this futues. The wines ol The seiapten bicomed he
ounterpuarty 1o the vaap if the buyer esecnes. The inhenest rate swaption
apeement will speofy whether the buyer of the swaptien will be a fined rave
fecever o & fad-rate P Upon ERerLe

(Dptions on Exchanpe Traded Futures Coatracts Covtan Funds may wiite o
ptthase options on exchange-traded futures commacts [*Fubuees Optiea™) 1o
hedge an ouisting position or fulure imvesiment, for spocul ative purposes of fo
IManae EnporLre 1o market moyements. A Futures Qiption is. an opbon
contract in which the underlying ivanement s a smgle fufures comtrac

Opilons en Securitles  Certain Tundy may weetn or purchase options on
SeOEites tn enhance refurms o io b an enghineg poiikon or future
melimenl AR oplish on & Secunly wsed & specihed Secunty &4 the undellying
matiarmnt for She option ot

b Swimp Agreomants Certain Funds may imvest i swap agréements. Saap
speaments aro biaberally neqotisted agieemnts between a Fund and a
oounterparty 1o exchiange o° sivag imvestment cash flows, assets, foseign
duirefces o msikel dmked ietur ol specled, fulie interiak. Swap
aprements may be privasely regotiaied i the OTC market or may be dearcd
throagh & third party, known as @ central counterparty or dervatiees cieating
a'ganirangn (Teenraly deaned swiaps™) & Fund may encer o asset, oedn
deflault, cows-oumency, ndenest rate, ial reburn, variance and other fams of
W[ AQreRMEnts 10 Manage N exposune 10 bdl, CulFENCy, nbeni rae,
cammadity, equity and fiflstion mk. In conniction with thess agieaments,
securties o carsh may be identified a5 collateral o margin in accordance with
the teremas of the respecive swap sgreements 1o previde assets of value and
recourse in the svent af dofault o banknuptoyfinsohency

Contmaly chsared wraps ane mardoed to markel daily based upon waluations a5
determined from the wnderhphy confract o in scosddance with the
requitements of the contrad counterparty er devmatmes clearng organization
Changes in market value, if any_ s refiected a5 3 component of ret thange
i unepaioed appredanon (depeedianon) on the Siaemens of Operations
Daily changes in valuaton of centrally deared swaps (" Swap Yariation
Margn ), il amy, are dackosed within cantrally cleared financial denvative
ralraments of 1k Slatements ol Assetd and Dbl itied OTC Swap payments
mecererd of paid at the begnning of the memaemend peniod ane mcuded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilities and represent premigms paid or
tiservind upan efleding nta the Swap Soreemant 10 oM pEiate L]
dferances betwean the stated teems of the swap agreemant and paesaiing
enarbel Condilions (el spresds, Cumesdy exchangs rales, ineest rabes, and
ather refevant lacdoes) Uplices premiums iecenved (pand) are netially recoeded
i Eahilties (rvwets) and wirequently marked 1o market 12 miiect the curent
walue of the swap. Thesa upfiont pramiums aie recorded &5 reakzed gains or
lostes on the Statoments of Operatgrs wpon termination or matunity of the
swap A Bquidation payment received o made at the termination of the vvep
B tecotded 35 reahized gadn ol loss o the Siatements of Operabons. Net
perad payments recénied of paid by a Fund ane included & part ol mealized
gaens o losses on the Staderents of Operations

For purposes. of axpherg cectain of & Fund's invesimenn palicies and
testiction, wwap sgrsementy, lie other deivative rinssenty, may be
walued By.a Furd a1 market value, nobormed value or full exposure value In the
cirse of a credit defaut swag, i appdying certain of the Funds imvestment
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ooles and resticuon, the Fund will vadue the oredht default swap at its
aatioral value or s full exposun value (.9 , the Sum of the solional amoont
for the contract phus the market value), bt may vale the credit default swap
at market valoe for purposes of apphying cerain of the Fund's other
rroekiment paficies and nestnicton. For example, the Fund may value oedit
default vwaps ai full expouse value Tor purposes of the Fund’s credit cuality
guitehings (il any) because such value in general beied refiects e Fund s
aciual economic expouay duting B tem of the oedit delacl swap
aproement. A% a result, a Fund may, a1 times, have rotionad sy o an
aised class bebore nefting) that s geeater o bessar than the stated lim of
restriction neded in the Fund's Qfferg Memomandum. Im this contest, both
the nothonal amount and the market vaiue may be positive of negative
deperadriy o whather ths Fusd = selleng of buyhg protechon Beough thi
rredit defaut vwap The mannar in which ceain sepuites or ol hes
st s afe valued by the Fund Bon punposes of apphying imessment
policies and restriction may differ fnom the manser in which thode
svestmants are valued by other types of imvesion. Entering into saap
ApeEments invihves, 1 vargng degrees, elements of mienest, oredit, markat
and documentation risk in eecess of the smgunty, eoognised on (e
Startements. of Assets and Liabdnies. Sach risks imoolve the pessidity that
there will B¢ rio ligusd market fee these agreemints, that the counterparty o
e agresmenis may detaclt on its obligation & perform or cisagres a3 1o the
meaning of contractasl terms n the agreemenis and that there Py be
unlaverable changes in intenet rades or the values of the asset upan whik
ke swap m hased

A Funed's maimum 1isk of loss Brom coustprparty coedit risk 5 the discounded
nied vadue of the exsh Nows to be recewed from the counteiparly over e
contract™s remaining fife, ta the extent 1hat amount & posithe. Tne rak may
e mitigated by having a master netting acrangement betwesn a Fund and
the cousstespaity and by the posong of coll#tedal 1o & Fund to oovet & Fund's
epasure 10 the oounte party

T thae et & Fund hee & policy o limit the ret amount owed 1o oo to be
tecenned Inom & single (ounpiparty undisr sxilling WWap soreementy, such
Emitation anly applies fo countespartes to OTC veaps and does not apply to
conitradly deared iwaps whiso the couMipaity il & tenlrsl cun leiparty o
desivatnes clearing amanization

Condit Default Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter iseo

crecht cefault ywaps 0o corpoeate, loan, sovereign, U5 mwnicipal or US
Treasury Sooes W0 provioe a measure of profection againat defaults of the
eibuens [ @, Ba feduce nak whete & Fund oans o has expoiune 1o B
referenced cbligation) or b2 take an active kong or shart pasitlon with respect
1o the bkeihecd of & partoular ssuer's default. Credt defeut swap
agreements mvalve oo party making & stream cf payments [redecied 1o as
the buyer of protection) to another party [the sefler of protection] in exchange
Tor the tight 1 recebve a specified retumn in Eve evend that the refererced
ety m!l;ntmor’ index, a5 specifed in the swap agmome, undergoes 3
cerian oredit svent. A5 3 seller of protection on credit defsilt wap
apteements, 8 Furd will genezaly recesve from the buyer of protection a lned
rabe off income throughout the Yem of the swap ploviced that thene & ro
credit event As the seller, a Fand wedld effectvely add leverage to i
portioba bacause, ) adddsan 1ok 1ot et ety the Fund would He
subject bo Irvestmant axposwe on e nedional amount of the vevap

H o Fund is & seller of prosection and & oedi event-oomrs, a5 defined unde
thie tereres of that particuls’ e agreement, a Fund will ethe |1} pay 1o the
buyer of protection an amount equal ta the notigral amount of the swap and
take defvery of the relesenced oblgation, other deliverable obsigations o
undedlying deturitied compiising the refenenced ndex o [i) pay & net
wetthemnent amount i the form ol cash o seountes equal 1o the sobanal
ampunt of the swap dess the recovery value of the relerenced obligation or

wiadérlyng secuities comprtsing the referenced index I a Furnd is a Buyer of
protection and a credit epent accory, at defined under the terms of that
particdar swap agreement, 3 Fund will sither (1] recaive from the saller of
prolecian an amount egual s the notional aswunt of the savap a0d detheer
the relesenced obligation, other delrverahle obligations of undeilyng
securities compising the refmenced index or (i) recetve a net sattlement
ST (0 the Porm of e o Lefurmie el 15 the nobonal amount of 1
s b the recowery walue of the referenged oblgation oo underlying
secuties compasing the sefoenced index. Recovory vabaes are estmatod by
madket maker conudenng erthes industry Randand necowery rates. of ety
specifc factors and cormaderations until a cregit evest oocurs. If a cedit event
Fhas occumed, the recovery value o detemiced by & Taciltated auction
wheneby & minimum number of alowable Broker bids, tagethes weth a
specifer valuaton method, are iied to calnulate tha setflement walue Tha
aulity 10 delies other obligatorns may resull in 3 dheapes-o-delre opion
ithe buyer of protection’s right ta chooss the delrerable abligation with the
loweest value following a credit event)

Credir delault swap agreements on oecit mdoes involve ane pary making a
steam of paymerts (o soother party m exchasge bor the nght to neceime a
specided resum in the evend of 2 write down, pringipal shartfall, imenest
shortiall or defautt of a8 or past of the refererced entities compiising the
cipdit index. A credd index B & basked of oredd imstruments or exposunes
designed to be representative of some part of the coedit market as a whole
Thisse indscis ade made up of reference orsdits t4et are fudged by 4 pell ol
dralers to be the mast bguid enlises in the chedst delault swap market Baed
o the secter of the index. Components of the indices may inchude, bt are
nat limifed |0, imvedtmen grade secueitied, high yield tecuritio, aset-bached
secwties, pmenging markets, and'or varioun credit ratings weithin sach sector
Cres inghes are traded using credi default swaps wih standardized terms
rchading & foed spread and stendad matunity dales. An index cred defaull
swap rederorces 2 the names in the index, and d thore is.a default, the ¢redit
evend 15 sefthed based on that name’s welght im the index. Te compaosition of
The indices changes petiodicaty, ususly every s manihs, and Sor modl
rdices, each nama has an equal weight in the idex. A Fund may use cedit
defauln swaps on credit indices to hedge 2 portiale of credit defauly swags o
Brands, which o bl exgpediove than i veould be 1o Buy miry credit dedial
wwaps 0 achieve a simiar eflea. Credit default swaps on indices are
nstiuments for probectng svesion awmng bands st delault, and
tradens e them 1o speculate o changet i credil quality

ioghied credit spreads, epresented in absolyte Yorms, uSied in dotermining
1he matket value of oedin delault swap B SemEnts 00 (Oiporate, koan,
sowieign, LS, municpal or U8, Treasury dsue 25 af penod end, if any, are
drcloted in the Males to Schedale of vestments. They seree a an indicator
of the owrent siats of peymentperdommance risk and represent the ikelihood
o ik of defaul for the referenced entity. The implied credic sproad of &
particular referenced entity seflects the cost of biyingfselling protectian ard
iy echuce Lphont payments sedured 1o be made 1o entsr @0 D
apvermont. Wider oedit speead 1epresent 2 dotstioration of the mlenenced
entily's credit soundness and a greater Khslihood or risk of default or ather
ciedit ewent occunting af delined under the teims of the agreemnent. Far crecit
default swap agreements on assel-backed securities and oredit ndices, the
quoted market proes and resulting values serve 3 the ndsiaton of the ouent
status of the payment/performance sk, Increasing market vabses, in absshse
ferms whan compared o the notioral amount of e swap, represent a
deterionation of the referenced entity's credin soundness and 3 graze
likefihood or nisk of defaudt or other cedit event ocourring a3 defined under
the terms of the agreement

The masmum gotential amoun of futune payments (undsoounisd) that
& Fund as & seller of protecton could be requined 10 make undie @ credil
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defeuli swap Bipeemend egushi the nobional ambunt of the agreemel
Motional amounts aof pach indridual credit default aap agreement
outstandeg as of period end for which a Fund is the sefiar of protection are
disclosed i the Hotes 1o Schedule of Ivestments . These potestial AMoUnTs
would be partaly offset by sy recovery vakeed of the redpective refetenced
ablgations, upfront payments received upon entening inso the agreement, or
fi#l amounts feceteed Inom the seitement of buy protecion oreda delaull
v agroements endred imo by @ Fund Fe the seme referenoed endity or
eriitios

Interest Rate Swap Agreemants Cerlam Funds s'o wwhest ta @t rate
risk expasure i the normal course of purising ther immestment objecitees
The vabue of the fined rate bonds that a Furd holds mey decease i interest
tates i, To ke'p hedge sgqamat the ik s 10 mamtain i abilty to
]wuﬂn inoome st R market rates, a Fued may Brter indn edeest
fare Swap agresmants Inserest rane vwap AONERMenms iMvone the EII:"'IB"_}E
try & Fund with another party for ther respectie commitment k3 pay of
e imerest on thie nobiomal amoant of prircigal. Ceetain forms of ingerest
tabe svwap agresments may include: [) sl erest rate caps, under whech, in
rebarn For @ premium, ane panty agiees (o make payments bo the other o B
extent that inferest raes evcoed 2 specied e, or “cap”, (i) inderest rate
lloars, undes which, in retorn for & premium, one paity aqrees 1o mate
payments b0 1he: pther to the extent that irterest rases fal below a specified
rabe, or “Boar”, (] imerest sate collars, under whach 2 paity ses & cag and
purchades & Hodr o wide vina it an altempt ba piotect kel againat interedt
rale moweTents errpeding gaen masimure of maximum lesels, () callable
nIEIest rale Swags, under which the buyer pags an upfon: fee in
comideration far the right fo early termimate the yevep trarsaction inwhole,
At reng 005t and aTa Flidﬂi‘l"-ﬂid date and fims I D he ﬂ'r“h-‘ﬂll B,
il spreadiocks, wheth alony te inDePesl rate Swap s 16 lock in e
Ioraard dif e ential {or sgesd) be tvesen The il est rale wwap ate and 2
spedified benchmark, o () basis swaps, under which bwe parties can
exchange varuable interest rates based on diferent segments of money
markets

7. PRINCIPAL AND DTHER RISKS

i Princigal Riska In the normal course of business, the Fundh o Acquined
Funeds}, if applicable] trade financial instruments and enter inty Snancaal
Irarractiond veheie fisk of potential ki exets due 1o such thirg & changes
n the market (mracoet risk} or tniigre or inability of the ather party joa
(rarrsction ta perform |credt snd countenpadty rrk], See balow lor a detsioed
driciiptos of selact pancipal iac

Fond of Funds To the extent that cestain Funds imvest substantially all of
their respective assets in Acguired Tund(y), the raks. assocsated with mveiting
n these Fends will be chosedy related 1o the risks arsociaied wish the securties
and other ivestments held by the Acquired Fundish. The abiity of the funds
10 ity ther despedinee mvesiitesd, objcinees may depend upon the sbeity
af the Acquired Fundis) to achies thes respective irvestment objectyves
There can be no alourance that the investment objective of any Acquined
Fursds} willl b achiewed The HAY of g0 Asquiring Fund well fluctuste n
nesponse bo changes in the respective MAY of the Acquired Fundish in which it
el

in the normal cours of bused, Aojursd Fundid] tade tinsncial mituments
and enter inta finantial ansactiond whene rek of potential loss ensts due fo
chandges in the market (market rak), oo faikite or inability of the oter party o
a traviaction to perform {credit and counterparty risk)

Market Rishs A bund's imvestments in fmancial dervative inssrumants and
ather Tresd o inativmenls sxpiie this Ford 10 varous isks such &, Bl et

imited to, Frisest e, leoesgn inon-1L 5] currendy, equity &nd commodity
ritk

irie st ralo nk is e ik chat el mdome securibes and olhar maiesents
Pl by & Fund may dedine in walue because of an increase in ineest rates. |f
nomanal interead rabes tive, the value of certain fimed income secunties bield by
& Fund veould oty decrease. A nominal svierest rate can be decribed as the
s of a real interest rate and an espacied inflation rate. Intesest rase
changes can be sudden and unpredsctatde, and & Fund may lose maney o
these changes are not antiopated by Fund managemant. A Fund may nat be
e o Pusdge #]aif‘-'l-l Ehashiped i inbenet] rates of may chbose not to do so et
oSt of ather ieasans. In additon, sy hediged may sol veoik a3 nlended

Duration is 8 meavure used fo determine the sersginty of o securty’s price o
changes i intetest rates that inoopeeates a secunity's yield, coupan, fral
mmatunty and call ipstures, irmong other charactansscs. Convexity s an
acdditional measure wed bo undentend a secaity’s o Fund’s inieresd rade
sersifenty that measures she eate of change of duraten in response 1o
changes i ekt rates, Fooed income securitivs with longer durations: 1end
o be mone sensitive t changes in intarest rates, waally making them mane
wolsile than securites with sheorter dutations. A wide varety of facton can
e mloresl rates of yinids of U5 Treasury securities (or yiekds af other
fynes of bongs) bo e {p g |, rentral hank moretary policies, inflation rates,
gereral stonamic canditions, etc ], This i ewpedally true under oent
gondiions because intenest rates and bond yaelds ane near Ristoncally kowe
Bevels. Thus, the Funds curmently face a heigriened lavel of risk associated
with Frimg iletest fates endioe bond peddy Thas could be diiven by a vensty
ol factors, inciuding but not Bmited to centrad bark moretary policies,
chingirs inflation or real grawth rates, gerers] ecceemic conditians,
reieasing band istuances of redoted madket demand lof fow yielding
rvestmants. Further, while LS. bond markets have steadily groan over the
pad theee deades, dealer “market making” abskty has rerrained relatively
slagnant Given the impotance of intermediary “market maling” in oreating
& robasst and acine madket, fead moome sexunties. are rusTEnty

fating noreased volatility and Rquidsty rsis A0 of these facmoes, ooliectively
ardior mdividually, coutd cease o Fund bo bose valoe i the Mond kosd enough
walug, the Fund coubd face increased Uniiholder redemphisnd, which could
Surther smpae s pertatmance. Alvo, B Fund may be adverusly sfieched
when a lage Unithdder purchases or redeems lainge amounty of units, which
N DOcue At any time and may impadt te Fund in the same manner as a high
wolume ol redomption réquests. Lasge Uinitholder tramactions may rmpact
the Fend's bauidity and net asset vebee. Such transactons may also increase
the Fard's inerraction consts of othenwise cause the Fund io periom
dffeently than intended. Mongowrs, the Fund i subyect 1o Bhe rik that
ather Linithalders may make nvestrent decisioms basec on the choices of &
Range Usatholder

oMy Fund may Bave sgnifcant expodure 1o issuens in the Usrted Kingdam, The
United Kingdom's withdrawal fram the Ewopsan Union may impact Ford
deunte Thd dicrlon may (ke sibstan tal volabhity n ionegn exhangs
rmarkets, bpad to weakness in the pctangs rate of she Britiih pound, et m
@ sustained period of market wnoertainty, ard destabikoe some or all of the
othar Eunapean Usioe member couninies andler the Eurazoni

Foreagn (Aas-U5 ) iediafiDes 15 1he réper ank dasufied iy thie enunitry of
rooeporation of a hr,{ﬂ:-'& In ceriain imstances, & secyriy’s countny of
roed poration may be different from it country of economes exposune.

I & Frared irvogsits directly on 1oregn [roe-LE 5. ) oummendss, or i Secunimies thd
rade i, and redene niveduid in, batesga (non-) S ) curiencies, o in fnencsl
derraiive iInstrumesis Thal provide saposure 5 |I}'fgl'| (=R T ) outrences,
il be subjitl i the ek that thene catrencnes will decling i vikoe relatree
1o the base curmncy of the Fund, or. iv the case of hadging pesiticrn. 1hat
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the Fund's base curency will dedling i value relatiee 1o the curency baing
hedged . Cusrency rates in foreign coaninies may foctuate scnificantly aver
shor periods of time for a namber ol reasons, inchuding changes in mbsredt
rabes, intervention for the falune 10 interverse) by U5, or foreign governments,
et Basks of supranatioral enlites wach &4 the International Monétany
Fured, &t by the Engosition of oumency controls of ather pefitial develapments
fithe United States of abrosd. A & result, 8 Fund 5 invest=ents in loeign
cunmEy-tenomingbed scaities may mduce the Fund™s seluim,

T mariet values of equities. such as cemmon stocts and prefemed seowiics
o equity related irvesiments wich as futwes and opeed, heve historicaly
i and fallen in peraadic opled and may decline due 1o goneal maiket
conditions which are rof specifically related to a particular company, such as
toal of percehved advecie econamic conditnns, changis n Tha genetal
aulloek for comarte samings, changes ininterest or urmendy rates, publs
hialth emargencies, such as the spread of infectious illness o disease, or
atherde imeestat sentiment generally. They may also decline due to faciors
which atfect & particular indmitry o industries, such ag labar thortages or
nTeased prosSacion [osls and Comganitee condiians wilhin an industry
Ditfeent types af equity secuniies. may react dilferently (o thewe
doewlopments. Bquity securitics and equity related invwestments gen craly have
greater muarket price valandity than faed incoee sarurities

Certaih Fumds may ifest in certain imstruments that rely In some fashion
upon LIBOA UROR & an marage intenest iate, determned by the ICE
Benchmaric Adminisiration, that banks change cne ancther for the use of
sha-am money. The Unded Engiom's Hnahisl Condud Autkarty, which
requlates LEEOR, b srnoesrd plam 1o phase out the use of LIBOE by e
erd ol 2021, The warniass may resilt in-g redartion in the vahes of cerain
rutrumeniy held by & Fusd o a redaction in the offectwenen of related Fund
tramsactions sedh as hedges There remaing uncerlainty segarding future
utilization of LIBOR and the natwe of any reslacement rate (2.g, the Seamed
Ohvem 9'*-1 Financing Rate, which & intonded fo replace LS, dolle LIEEOR and
measares the cost of cvernight bormawings teough repurthase agreement
trarsactions collaeralized with U5, Treasury securities), and any patential
etiects of the ansition eway from LIBOR on a Fund or on coriem mstuments
o whiich & Fund imeests are not krawn and could seult in losses 1o 2 Fund

Hegmnisg & lanuary M0, QH:".I&;.'I"-EI'J'J-!| mafkets have axpenenoed and
may tonkine to eapenence signidiant volstiity resulting lrom e sgresd ol &
niove| corgnaings known a5 COVD- 1%, The outkreak of COVID 19 has

i iad if o Snd boider fetimiUons, quarinline, '|.u:lphl chain
diwruptionn, lower consumer demand and general market uncertainty, Tha
globad ecoremy, the econcasies of certain nations and individual tssuers have
bwent ancd ey continue to be sdversely affected by COVID- 19, particulady in
it ol the misitonne ity Befason sconomist and fmanoid madets, f of
wiich eray negatively impact the Funds’ performance. I addtion, COVID-19
and goverrrendal responset 1o COVID-19 may negatheely impact the
capabilties of the Funds” sonvice providens and disrupt the Funds” operations

Coadit and Cosntarpanty Riaka A Fund wil be anpoded to oredit risk 1o

o R with wehom it Brades and vall also Bear the risk ol seltement delsult
A Funad minimizes concentrations of credit risk by undenaling iransactons
with & lasge numbses of qustomans asd countarparties on eyl wd
ieputable eachanges, wheie appistabls. OTC dedhvale transsctions a
subjfect o the 1k thal a courtepaity to the tramsaction will rot Tulfill 45
centractual obligations 8o the ather party, a5 many of the protections aforded
o cenrally cheed do‘vatiee trardactions might rod be aeailable bor OTC
desivative transactions. For derivatives traded on an axchange or thiough 2
central counterparty, oedil i retades with the cediwort s of

the Fund's dearing broir. o the dearingheume jtvelf, rather than with a
counterpaty in an OTC dermative transacton Changes in regulation nelanng
1o i Fund's wie of derivatmes and refabed inmtuments could potentally limd

& impadt the Fund's sbdity 1o imvesd i derrvatoees, bmit the Fund™s atshiy 1o
employ certain statagees that use dervatives andior adweruely alect v valee
o parfcemance-of cemvatroes and the Fund. A Fund could lose money if the
iy o paaraniny of a fised income securiy, or the counterpany 1o a
financial derivartive instruments condract, mpurchase ageement of o lpan of
portioks searities, B unable or unwaling to maie omely prindgal andrer
irbevEst paymenty, of to otherase honor i3 obligatians, Securites and
finarwied dermvative mstruments ane swbject 1o verying degiess of coeds sk,
which may be reflected in crodit eatings.

Simila to c1edit ik, 2 Fund may be axpouad b countedparmy gk, of the nik
that an indtifution er ather engity with which a Fund has unsemled or open
gransactions will detnul, AMC0, s the Mz'mrr T mi;\gin;n}.-molmn'
ritks 10 the Funds theough & rumbe of ways. Prar to esteding intg
transactions with a new counteiparty, the PIMCO Counterpasty Risk
Committes conducts an extenshe redit revew ol such COUTTIE parTy and mas]
axprove the wie of such counterparty. Fuithermaone, parsuant to the terms of
tho undethying contract, 1a the satent that urpaid amaounts owed 10 Fund
Eoceed A precetaimmed Threshold, wuoh counsenpanty shall acvance collateral
\o- i Fund in the form af cash o securtics equal in value 12 the unpad
amour owved 102 Fund, A Fund may imwest such collateral in securities or
ather instrumants and will fypically pay infenest o the counterpay on the
colateral recoeed. M the unpaid amount owed 8o a Fond suiregoently
decreaves, & fund would be required to retum te the counterparty afl or a
it of tha collataral prevesuthy Bdwanced. PIMTO'L S108MPES 1 Mafif 2
dountempurty tisk may, hovwseeed, be unsuctesitul

All mansactions in lisbed sscurities se setled’paid [or upon deley using
ecproved courtemparties. The risk of delaub is considerad minimal, as delivery
ol sntuntsed eold = only made once a Fund has recewed paymant. Payment s
made on a purchase once the seoies have been defivered by the
counterparty. The tade will Tail if etther parry fasls to meet i obligation

) Ouher Risk. In goengral, gach Fund may be subect 1o additional ks,
irchading, Bat g Bemited 80 risios refated b QuveIrEent mguulim and
insenentos in Bnancal marke(s, operational sisks, ks associated with
fingncial, economic and globel market cewuptions, and oybersecunity niks
Paase 1eler 10 each Furd's affedng dotuments fo: & mene detasled
deisrphon of the ke af mwidtng & The Furd

Markei Disruptions Risk The Funds ane somc o investment and
aperational ks associated with financial, economic and ot*er global market
direfiopmants and dinuptions, ncloading those atising rom war, enomm
marbet manpuiation, govemment menentons, defaults and shubdoars,
pohial dhanges of ihpkamatic develogmenits, pabhe health emeigenoes
{such as the sprepd of infoctious diseases, pandamics and epidemics) and
maturaliemironmental ersasters, which can all negatively impact the secutities
rrcets, lerest fales, aurhans, secondany Trading, ratings, ciedin ek,
rBation, dedlation and other iactors relating o the Fund's investrments o the
Manager's operatiors and causa a Func 1 lose value. These events may have
it long-tevm elfeets on the LS. and waoild scordmiss and markels
gererally. These gvenis can also impair the technology and other operational
systems upon which 2 Fund's serdce providers, sncludeng PIMCD as the
Fundy' invweitment adviter, toly, and cocld othersvde disiunt a Fund's tendce
provaders” abdity 1o fullil their obbigabons to the refevart Fund. For example,
the spread of an misctions iespretony llness caused Ly a novel stiain of
oorondyirus [known as COVID- 11 Fas cauvsed volatilfy, severe mariet
dislacations and Fquidity constraints in many markets and may adversaly
afect @ Fund's invesiments and operd torn

Davernment Intervention in Finmssial Markets Fecenal, state, and ot
ganemments, their regulabory agencies, or self-requlatony organizatns may
Takoe achond that sect the requlahon of the @iiruments & whed b Fund
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enreesit, o the istuers of such indtruments, o wiays that are unlpresepable
Legitlation of regulation may aka change the way in which a Fund iself i
regulated. Sach legnlation or requiation could kmit or prechade & Fund's

ahe ALy 10 ACPREVE | IFvESTIMEN I}E|L‘{|.-"'t Furthasmene, wnlatile financial
maroets can expoye & Fund to gieater market snd hgudity ik and potental
ditfinaty in waluing portiole srsinaments heid by the Fund. The wvalue of 2
Fured's holdings & ako generally subject 1ot risk ol future local, nabonal, or
global scoromic daturberces besed oo unkngwn weacnessrs in the market
n which 2 Fund invesss. In addition, it & nat certain that the U.S. Government
woll irrtervene in redpovie fo .4 (utue madket detunhance and the elfect ol any
wuch Eature mtervention carmot be predicted. i it difficult lor s o
prepare fes the impect of future financial downtures, although comparies tan
coek ta wantdly and manage lubee uncerintes through rsk mansgement

:'III'!I]I'I-"'."‘

mlﬂlhq' Bhak Financisd ennties, such as invesiment companies and
mraeitmant advizers, ane ganely subject 5o extensive govertment regulation
and intenartion. Government requbation andier intenantion may change the
way & Fund 5 regulsted, aflect the expiried incufed duectly by & Fund and
the vy of ity imersiments, e Bmil andéor proeclade a Fund's ability o
athiewe its imesirent abjective. Government requiation may change

{reg ueitly and may hive :.eg-lrhr.ar-l Adyerie consbguenies Moreovi,
goveimemaent mequlation may have engeedictable and urantended effects

Dypmratiensl Rink An Freestiment i a Fund, ke any fund, can nvolve
aperational fisks ansing from factors sach a8 pocessirg errors, human efioe,
madequate o failed irteenal o ecternal processes, Lailues in wsipms and
lechnology, changes sh personned and erors Caused by thed-parny serace
praders. The oocuresce af .11rn‘ these failkoe, emors or breaches coold
vesult in a loss of imformation, regulatony smating, reputational damage or
ather sveats, any of which could have & material sdverse effect on a Fund
White a Fend seeks to minimire such everns theough controb and cversight,
thare may sull be falures that could caune losses to the Fusd

Cyber Security Risk As the iso of technalogy has becomd mone poevalent in
the toese ol business, the Funds have becare pobentially moee susceptible
1o operetionsl and information seduily rsks resuliing from bieaches in cybe
wocutity, A breach in cyber socurity refers 1o both imlentional and
unerientional rybeer ayenits: that may, among other Ii'-n:ﬁ rause a Fund i
BOSE PYOQNELET i DNMAToN, sufes dala CefTuptian and'or desauonos of lose
aperational capacity, result in the enaethonzed refease or other misise of
confidential information, o athenvise dsrupt aormal butiness operations
Cyted setunty failutes of Bteaches may eaudl i Srancal losses 1o & Fund and
ils Linaticagichers. Thesr Fadlunes or eeaches may aba resull i daruptions fo
business eperations, potestially resulting in Tinancial keses; sierference with
a Fund's shifity 1o caloudate & net asset value, procous Linitholde:
transactans o othenwtse fransact business with Unitholders; imgediments to
traschrey: winlations of applicable mvacy and athes laws; regqulatory fines;
pinalted; repulatonal damage; ievmboriement of ather comperdation coid;
additional compliance and cpber securty risk management costs and otfar
Sfheise (ofdeguences In acditon, subsiantal ot may be incuried in ander
1o peeant any cyber incidents in the futere

8. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may b wubject 1o vasnious nettieg acrangemens [ haster
Agrepments” | with select counterparties. Maiter Agiesments qovem the
1emes of ceran ransaciony, and arz intended ta teduce e B palty ritk
awocated with melevant transactions by specifying crodil protecton
mechanisms and provedng standardzaton that & intended to wmpiove legal
cetanty. Eath bype of Made Agiesment govens ceiain ypes of
tramsactions, Differend types of ramactions may be vaded out al different

Beggal entities or affikates of & partodlar orgamnzation, resufting i the nesd for
mukiphe agreements with a single countecpaity, A the Matin Agredments
are speitc 1o urmque operafions of different asset types, they allow a Fund 0
horie oot and net (5 toaal exposuie 1o & counterparty o the event of a defach
with Pespect b0 al the trassactions governed under 8 single Mater
Agpeemant with 2 counterparty. Foe financial reporting purposes e
Sraiements of Astels and Liabikoes generally present dernalne assets and
Gabikties oo & gross basis, which refects the lul ks and exposunes piar 1o
negting

Master Ageeements can ake help limit coursparty rivk by pecitying
collateral posling airangemdnts a pre-atranged sxpoiuie lewels Uinder most
Master .ﬁ.u}'nfr'qrm collateal is routingly transfemed i the total net expowre
1o cerlan iranssctions (et of existing colatecsl already in place) governed
wkes the relevant Magher Ag'nn'raﬂ' with & counlemarty = & goven acdount
enceeds 2 soecifed theeshold, which typically ramges from zero 1o 5.250,000
degending on the counterparty std the type of Master Agressent United
Seates Treasury Bils and U 5. doflar cash ato gentrally the prefoimed forms of
«ohacesal dll:h'.ugll DOner SeCilibes may Be used dEDE"IﬂI'-g on ihe eems
oullred i the apgliceble Maiter Agreement, Securitees and cash pledged as
collateral are refleciod a5 assots on the Statements of Assets and Liabilitics as
wither a component of Imestments t value (securities) or Deposits with
counterparty. Cash collatersd recevved B not typically beld in a segregated
acount and as such is eflected an & Rability on the Statements of Assats and
Liwell ties. &5 Despertits frnm eountédpaity. The Safket valie of any seduribi
ecerond &4 collateral m not refected 44 & componit of MAY The Ford's
averall exposure bo counterpacty visk can change subsiantialy within g short
period, & 1 i affected by each iramaction wobject 1o the relevant Maater

Acpesment

Master Repurthase Agreemerts and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
findiidoally and colecnvedy “hissner Repo Agreements ™) gowerm sepurchase,
s repurchase, ond sale-buykaci transactions beteseen the Funds and
selert countempartios. Mader Repo .!u_',r\n:mnnn rrainsn peovisins for,
AT ot [|¥"ig'L INTENON, MM PayFMments, Sents I:Ifﬂ\!'!-ﬂ."l', and
manberance of collateml. The mariet value of ronsactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collxieral pledged o recaived, and the net exposure by
counterparty 44 of penod end are declosed in the Notes 1o Schedube of
Irnersimen|s

Master Securities Forward Trarsacbon Agreements | Master Forwaed
Mgpeements” | gevern cesn fonsad witing trarsactions, wuch & TRA
secwitios, celepsd-delivery or sale-buyback rantactons by and

between the Funds and seleqt courreipanties The Master Forwang
Aopemen [ MBRLEA PirEicns for amang othes thindgd, i Blteon and
canhmaton, paymind and tramher, svents of defacdt, teimination, ard
maintemande of collateral The market value of forsard settiing ransactions
callatesal pledged or reterred, &nd the net expodane by countepanty as of
perad erdd are disclosesd i the Hotes o Schedu'e of bvesiments

Cusnomes At Agrepments and related addenda govem Ceaned
deinialives, aisacbors such as Puluies, oot on lutudes, and desied OTC
derraatives. Such transactians iequire postrg of inftial marge as detomined
By eacch relevant dearing agency which is seqregabed in an acoount at a
futiine commetatn meschant | " FCMT) regianesad with the Commbdiy
Futeres Taading Comenivsion (" CFTC" ] Inthe Unined Sates, cossviespariy rk
rmay be reduced & crecinges of an FOM cannot have @ chaim o Fund assats in
tha srgingatied attoud Portahlty al pupdriuie i the ment o an FCA
defauit seenatio further reduces risk 1o the Funds, Yarasion masgin, of
changes i market value, are generaly sxchanged dady, but may rot be
netiod botwesn futures and Ceared OTC dervatiers unbiss the partses buns
agreed 10 @ separate arangemend in respect of fund margining. The markat
walue o egcumulated unredized appredation (degreciation), mitial maigin
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Lt foslbcrwney fees. payabie an the felowing annual rates (staed as 3 perceraage of the average daly met asiets of each Fund, or Class, |f
Jpn W
Fean

Fund Management Advizsny Adminintrative Apgency Digtribution
PBCD Bermuda Foreiga Low Daration Fund i - - = =
PBACD Bermuda W.5. Low Duratian Fund 12E% - - = =
PBCD Eura Total Retuin Fasd - a45 025 il 0%
PBACO Real Return Fund - &5 N4 nid na
PRCO Shan-Term Strategy

= b & g = ol ne

= CluSh - = L 2 5

w L - - ~ = -

= JSD|

DR L | i

. D 045 3 5 DETS
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Motes to Financial Statements
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advizory and administrativg foes, § applcable, sro pasd monthly in amears 1o PIMCD for provding e 1'rr.:_|.'-: Hor the proveion of adwory,

s The agency and
o reimbure frarcisl interredianes that provide wervices and distritsdtion nelating bo th % ol e

uda Foreign Low Dueation Fund and MMWC0 Sermuda LS. Low Duration Fund, PRACO,
aut of i3 managemen Tag, wall haar e COSIS Assorafed willh aavanly and aammistraimne senaces, [ CoveT AimInEtratve Epenses in
exchange lor th fee, PINKCO will bear the Costs of cérain thind-pany e quited by the Funds, inducing sudit, cushodisl, pusiee, poriolo s(counting, legel
trarvfer agent and printing senices. PIMCO, and net Unitholders, would benedit from any price decrease in the cost of such thisd-party senices, incuding deoeases
resuliing Fom an incéase i niet asaels. b sddnon, with respert 1o Fusds thal a'e subgect 1o &5 5d mirwsira e e, PIMCO generaly mates & prefit on wech & e

g noled in o ble aboie, certam Funds and Classes of Funds ane 5ot ubyedt 10 management, advisory, adminismsive, agency of distrbuton lee, PIRCOD lapan
Lad, PINBCEY's afiilate inv Jmpan, 15 pavd & fee from the Japanese bvesiment Travts or ather invesimend vehicles. that invest in such Fends or Classes and a jportion of
such few is then aliocated o PIMCO to compencate it for it sennces

distritaation fees, i applicable, ane paid monthly @ ate
applcatie Fund (or Class thereod, a5 applicable). In tha case of the PRICO Benes

e Funds [or Claces theseal, 31 apabicable] may beas in pered fEated 10 Thsr upe-'arm that are nod covered by the managemeni, advsory, admmisiiatmg,
apengy or detibution fees, inchuding bt nof lmibed to: | (=) biokerage fees and commivsion
1) costs of borow g maney, including imerest exparse; | ragid ary eapenses, ncluding costs al ||I|:||,|||:|| and i
aliocaned of allacahle to a specihie Clis ol units, & spplcable r|r."|}m.p| § the aeganitational expiente Fiaocialed with FIMCO She

ap

d otfer portiolio e ton mpenses;
nses) and (v any expensas
n Saraneqy’s witial wet-

e mii e

PIMCO has. pald the ceganizational expentes ausodiated with the meation of the Tt if further Fumds ate lsanched, such costs direatly attibutable ta the releant
Furd may be batne by the teecsnt Fund
. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIOMS

The Inwesiment Advier & selated party do the Tunds and Is a majonty-taned wbsidiary of A
dischosed i Mote 9, and scctied related party fog amounts, 4 any, ane disclosed on the S2ateme

1 haist Managessent AG. Fess paid to the relaed paity, if any, &
15 of Advets and Liabibties

Crtain Funds gie peimitted 80 purchase o Soll wecuribes Inam of to certair related fiiated hunds under ipecified condito autlined i ceocedunes. sdopted by the
Isestreent Adviser. The procedunes have been designed 1o ensure that any purchase or sale of secarities by a fard from on to arather fund that & of could be
condideied an alfhate by wiis of hivesg & common adviser (of iMEated imaitmedt sthasen), & eHectad at the turtedt market price. Duting the percd ended May
A1, K021, the Fundis) below engaged in purchases and saes of securtties among atfilisted funds [amcunts in o)

sl P b
FIMCD Barrvada Foregr Law Daritian Ford § i
PIWCD Barwals U 5. Liw Dstemsan Furd m
FICD Ererpng Marke B.-nu Furd M1 19,462

FINTO Faad Atz Ford
PIMCD $hown Term Sunmgy

141,155

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Unides e Truat's ceganizational documents, ceriain parses (ncleding the Trustes and PIMCO) ae indemnlfed aqainst ceriain labilites that may atise oul of
petformance of their duties 1o the Funds. Additionally, in the nomal course of business, the Funcs ender into contracts that cortain a varety of indemnification dauses
The Funds' maxmum expodwe under these armngamends i unknown as this would neolve heture claims that may be made againsd the Fusds that have nat yet

S Himweee, the Finds | e clares o IDs5es pUrvea] 1n thise conlrass

1L UNITS OF BEMEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trunt may [ssue up o 500,000,000,000 urts. The Funds may have & significant conventiatien ol mk, a3 certain Unitholden own more than ten percsnt of the ret
agsets of each respective Fusd Such concencration of Unitholders” incerests could have a man Fiect on the Furdh in the event these Uritholders iequest w0

withdraw substantid amounss of capitsd 32 the sama time, Sukdoiptons snd redemgtions of umety of the Funds are decommnated in the Funds” NAY cornency and
converted b the Funds” Tunicnas curenscy &1 the wpal rale on 1M Uansarnon date, Unim of esch Fund ane ssoed withoot par velee The Trusese, s
the Marager, may in the Future create and offer an sdditional Fund or Class or Classes of units

Vi consent of

et Ri1 | Mi) 31, 2220
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Motes to Financial Statements

. nits of beneficlad imesest were a5 Tollows (units and amounts in thousands®]
Viar Exded ar Eradesd Vome Evdenl Yir Ercied
My 11, 281 My 31, 20 May 11, 20 My 1, M
Uit L] Uans Brssarit Lty herunsd Usits Armnl
Facapts et gty 10 18 ¥ 1,555 H i 1,10 L] i ELORS L] L
1= s HA LE} Lo Wi £5m [} W154T
Soat of unia il ITS (pECFi 153 A T Kh
Hudk Wi Wi W& Kk |86, 14T
Mt idwma| remitng o=
Tund 1 T =" I 15887 b 1 180 AL { LR LU T 1]
Vear Eaded Youar Erolued Woar Ended Yiuar Erclied
May 11,265 May 31, 31 My T, 2011 My 1, 300

Limt wroe [0 ] Amounl Lhsy et Unta Araunt

Faceqta e v i 7 WA LT M 27 i) i TER
Hi Kid Wi (A1) ] 4003 ik L L [
R Hed HL 5 it Kl M (1Y R
Rid HA 3 L] Wik L W L)
fud L bl 1,588 L H'E L N&
LI Wi n 21 KL W NA Wk
R Wa n 1,17 Wil Ha L L]
1T T, LY LIl 1172 11835 L LET)
Lo Wi rh | .15 Wik W Mk [}
LL ik LY i 1361 Wik WA A ik
JINE a4 WA b ] K- 1] Wi L8 NA LY
L Wi 53 7508 Hid 't} M Wk
fus A oS 144, TEI Lo LY ME Lt
i Wl 58 0. K H'E L LT
Mt ririac |dmtreace
kg from Furd ure
b =t L& ¥ 152 LI 1 15 R 138 EUF 11500 i i (N
Yaar Eaded
May 31, 2831
s A

Eipompty e amein 10l

[8T4] L] ]

o 161

LIPE )

ST :

F fL

U3 EiD

o2t of iy et

AL ([=s [sel ]
174 [BEEET
| |2t rsERE

et Rt | My 31, 3120
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The fenegoing speaks onky o of the date of the nepot

T4, INCOME TRX
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(2022 )
) ( )
23,386 3,251
3,049 424
20,337 2,827
2,071,470
9.82 1,365
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(€)) (2022 )
984,456,267.25 1,364 7,517
850,000 150,000
90,932.70
850,000 150,000
250,000 1,250,000
2018 302,158,349
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
2021 1,053,391,472.93
2022 984,456,267.25
@
(Managing Member)
( ) (limited liability company agreement)
©))
2022

L
Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls
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Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy

Brett Condron

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz
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Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner

Jerome M. Schneider

Joachim Fels

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan
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Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Scott A. Mather

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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1940

BMA

BMA

BMA

60

BMA
BMA
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2022 329
684,889,434,253

113 414,465,732,000
23 14,238,370,121
13 22,287,076,299
68 161,611,584 ,606
9 7,693,238,713
31 10,175,811,515
36 17,406,081,028
13 21,506,561,014
3 670,662,587
5 2,178,659,511
15 12,655,656,861
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2022 31
138.63
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
2(c) 721,198,092 99,979,691 670,905,056 93,007,568
2(d).3 29,741,057 4,123,003 30,870,470 4,279,573
2(e) 993,957,179 137,792,284 798,701,996 110,724,058
2(e) 317,540,465 44,020,635 314,822,326 43,643,819
47,497,769 6,584,616 45,702,592 6,335,750
2(e) 21,577,432 2,991,279 23,912,871 3,315,041
23§).7(c) 32,250,845 4,470,935 19,755,282 2,738,675
6 33,463,658 4,639,067 17,306,918 2,399,258
54,848,716 7,603,677 64,128,683 8,890,159
2,252,075,213 312,205,187  1,986,106,194 275,333,902
2021 12 31
230,285,768 2020 12 31 213,677,355
2(F),4 111,294,054 15,428,695 121,111,682 16,789,712
2(i),9 173,842,283 24,099,756 195,322,419 27,077,547
2(3j),7(c) 1,140,825,289 158,152,610 855,055,452 118,536,337
2(h) 30,865,176 4,278,839 30,865,176 4,278,839
2(9).5 32,984,825 4,572,686 35,265,467 4,888,852
2(b) 36,988,617 5,127,732 14,710,139 2,039,267
8 61,620,430 8,542,440 51,541,356 7,145,178
1,588,420,674 220,202,758 1,303,871,691 180,755,733
3,840,495,887 532,407,945  3,289,977,885 456,089,634
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2021 2020
444,187,520 61,577,716 398,802,753 55,286,026
7(c) 301,432,498 41,787,587 216,289,372 29,984,196
81,689,779 11,324,654 122,043,872 16,918,942
2(i),9 31,437,762 4,358,217 33,157,779 4,596,663
6 95,602,945 13,253,436 37,379,146 5,181,871
2(r),7(c) 32,250,845 4,470,935 19,755,282 2,738,675
10,676,405 1,480,070 4,928,294 683,209
997,277,754 138,252,615 832,356,498 115,389,581
2(r),7(c)  1,140,825,289 158,152,610 855,055,452 118,536,337
2(i),9 182,746,288 25,334,118 204,137,201 28,299,540
7(c) 138,931,408 19,260,061 152,799,181 21,182,550
4,046,469 560,962 4,306,979 597,076
1,466,549,454 203,307,751 1,216,298,813 168,615,504

2,463,827,208 341,560,366 2,048,655,311 284,005,086

850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841)  (103,214,782)  (14,308,665)

150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033 1,308,035,518 181,332,964

2021 12 31 74,205
2020 12 31 58,608 69,610,604 9,650,118 43,399,986 6,016,540

2021 12 31 102,231

2020 12 31 148,726 7(a) 32,693,374 4,532,282 37,843,422 5,246,234
2(0) (52,708,748) (7,307,014) (44,741,570)  (6,202,524)

1,376,668,679 190,847,579 1,241,322,574 172,084,548

3,840,495,887 532,407,945  3,289,977,885 456,089,634
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2021

2(e)
2(e)
2(e)
2(e)
2(e)

2(s)

4,9

2(n)

2(i), 9
2(b)

2(0)
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2020 12 31

2021

2020

4,520,575,834
1,166,893,208
1,272,072,660
350,424,117
32,477,418

626,687,428
161,766,405
176,347,433
48,579,295
4,502,344

4,012,403,139
1,095,151,513
1,155,727,878
360,487,808
46,057,465

556,239,447
151,820,854
160,218,556
49,974,425
6,384,946

7,342,443,237

1,017,882,906

6,669,827,803

924,638,228

2,695,488,619
666,590,135
633,462,121
233,154,167
179,499,423

105,285,247

47,627,284
48,672,649

373,675,587
92,409,390
87,816,854
32,322,162
24,884,005

14,595,694

6,602,570
6,747,489

2,283,500,614
777,771,809
605,822,180
235,901,474
168,804,503

108,835,693

43,316,136
44,512,301

316,561,690
107,822,506
83,985,129
32,703,021
23,401,368

15,087,892

6,004,916
6,170,740

4,609,779,645

639,053,752

4,268,464,710

591,737,263

2,732,663,592

378,829,154

2,401,363,093

332,900,966

126,921,569
(5,545,277)
(1,327,780)

17,595,137
(768,742)
(184,070)

52,168,123
(6,676,919)
(1,321,069)

7,232,067
(925,621)
(183,140)

2,852,712,104

107,478,838

395,471,479

14,899,791

2,445,533,228

103,991,820

339,024,271

14,416,386

2,745,233,266

(7,967,178)

380,571,688

(1,104,490)

2,341,541,408

13,877,124

324,607,885

1,923,786

2,737,266,088

379,467,198

2,355,418,532

326,531,671
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2021 2020 12 31
2019 12 31
850,000 (683,902,349)  (94,809,383) 150,000  1,288,040,853 178,561,103 48,876 28,952,832 4,013,731
1,694,470,162 234,904,399 520,315,348 72,131,317 126,755,898 17,572,170
(1,133,305,426)  (157,110,131) (500,320,683)  (69,359,456) (116,146,639) (16,101,409)
12,785,179 1,772,409
PINCO
6,737,652 934,041 3,837,895 532,047
2020 12 31
850,000 (103,214,782)  (14,308,665) 150,000  1,308,035,518 181,332,964 58,608 43,399,986 6,016,540
1,942,092,906 269,232,340 614,678,821 85,212,925 188,461,539 26,126,423
(1,861,825,611)  (258,104,884) (589,207,643)  (81,681,856) (171,157,203)  (23,727,523)
8,451,432 1,171,622
PINCO
8,062,808 1,117,747 8,906,282 1,234,678
2021 12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841) 150,000  1,333,506,696 184,864,033 74,205 69,610,604 9,650,118
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2020 12 31

PIMCO

2021 12 31
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2021 2020 12 31
153,400 32,591,945 4,518,221 (58,618,694) (8,126,310) 607,064,587 84,157,364
2,341,541,408 324,607,885
(1,749,772,748) (242,570,996)
12,785,179 1,772,409
15,827,024 2,194,100 - 15,827,024 2,194,100
(10,575,547) (1,466,088) - -
- 13,877,124 1,923,786 13,877,124 1,923,786
148,726 37,843,422 5,246,234 (44,741,570) (6,202,524) 1,241,322,574 172,084,548
2,745,233,266 380,571,688
(2,622,190,457) (363,514, 263)
8,451,432 1,171,622
11,819,042 1,638,474 - 11,819,042 1,638,474
(16,969,090) (2,352,425) - -
_ (7,967,178) (1,104,490) (7,967,178) (1,104,490)
102,231 32,693,374 4,532,282 (52,708,748) (7,307,014) 1,376,668,679 190,847,579
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
2,745,233,266 380,571,688 2,341,541,408 324,607,885
11,600,078 1,608,119 15,508, 853 2,149,992
65,880,266 9,132,981 65,464,604 9,075,358
5,545,277 768,742 6,676,919 925,621
1,327,780 184,070 1,321,069 183,140
1,665 231 12,114 1,679
29,028 4,024 (44,308) (6,142)
4,206,963 583,211 14,256,907 1,976,435
15,036,589 2,084,522 15,010,423 2,080,895
(13,788,912) (1,911,557) (11,695,316) (1,621,322)
(108,645,764) (15,061,562) (146,673,050) (20,333,285)
(5,545,277) (768,742) (6,762,761) (937,522)
(194,961,547) (27,027,519) (130,819,174) (18,135,462)
(18,406, 245) (2,551,658) (25,708,793) (3,564,010)
180,065,741 24,962,514 103,679,079 14,373,031
63,479,303 8,800,136 10,538,563 1,460,961
2,751,058,211 381,379,200 2,252,306,537 312,237,255
(144,367) (20,014) _
- 6,500,203 901,123
(17,229,114) (2,388,472) (7.,078,726) (981,324)
(4,902,545) (679,640) (13,730,247) (1,903,424)
(23,500, 150) (3,257,826) (18,000) (2,495)
(45,776,176) (6,345,951) (14,326,770) (1,986,120)
337,000,000 46,718,310 416,000,000 57,670,080
(337,000,000) (46,718,310) (644,000,000) (89,277,720)
(2.622,190,457) (363,514, 263) (1,749,772,748) (242,570, 996)
8,451,432 1,171,622 4,984,931 691,061
(33,282,796) (4,613,994) (30,720,464) (4,258,778)
(2,647,021,821) (366,956, 635) (2,003,508,281) (277,746,353)
(7,967,178) (1,104,490) 13,877,124 1,923,786
50,293,036 6,972,124 248,348,610 34,428,568
670,905,056 93,007,568 422,556,446 58,579,000
721,198,092 99,979,601 670,905,056 93,007,568
2,547,664 353,183 1,300,045 180,225

304/404



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding
250,000
PIMCO 2021 12 31
74,205
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding

PIMCO PIMCO Pl LLC

305/404



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

P1 LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
Pl LLC 1934
FINRA
2021 2020 12 31
0.00319 0.00206
PIMCO
PGA
FINMA
PIMCO 2021

PEG
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PIMCO

AREOA

1ASB IFRS

IFRS

2022 25

PIMCO
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AAM LP
2021 2020
12 31 323.9 347.1
2021
2020 12 31 807 2.3

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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2021 2020
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12

IFRS

PIMCO
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2021 2020 12 31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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2021 2020 12 31 29.7 30.9
2021 2020 12 31
NAV
2021 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
2021 2020 27.0 27.8
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5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 13,838,448
(5,879,698)  (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467

4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015)  (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825

2020 7.2 8.7

AAM LP AAM LLC

2021
23.6 24.7
AAM LP AAM LLC PINCO
PIMCO
2021 2020 12 31 21.5
LIBOR 0.2 90
AAM LP PIMCO 2021 2020 PIMCO
AAM LP
2020 12 31 PIMCO
2020 102 373
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PEG
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2021
2020 147.3 PEG
PEG 2021
2020 41.3
2021 12 31
PEG 74.1 2020 28.8

316/404



AAM LP

2021 12 31 0.264

AAM LP PIMCO

2020 12 31
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 12 31

74,205

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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2021 2020
2020
17,806
3.84
25.1
11.1
0.6
2021
2020
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5,478) (5,478) 15,218
2021 12 31 102,231 102,231 15,330
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 11,804 17,806
1.99
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247

201 301 401
2021 2020 12 31
12
12 31
2021 2020
81,038 29,332
3,988,116 3,432,731
115,094,758 121,394,722
119,163,912 124,856,785
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)
107,478,838 103,991,820
32.8 23.2
2021 2020 12 31
44.8 2021 2020 12 31
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12 31
2021 2020
31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123
2021 2020 12 31
40.9 39.8
2021 12 31
12 31
2022 35,796,969
2023 37,499,114
2024 23,189,168
2025 34,006,401
2026 33,302,410
69,700,751
233,494,813
(19,310,763)
214,184,050
2020 12 31
12 31
2021 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
96,750,859
261,441,267
(24,146, 287)
237,294,980
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PIMCO
covibD 19
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2020 3.3 731
12 31
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2,408,685,532 582,606,016

567,143 222,021
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Note 2021 2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 721,198,092 670,905,056
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 29,741,057 30,870,470
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 993,957,179 798,701,996
Private accounts 2(e) 317,540,465 314,822,326
Prepaid expenses 47,497,769 45,702,592
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 21,577,432 23,912,871
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Receivables from affiliates 6 33,463,658 17,306,918
Other current assets 54,848,716 64,128,683
Total current assets 2,252,075,213 1,986,106,194
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $230,285,768
and $213,677,355 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 2(f), 4 111,294,054 121,111,682
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 173,842,283 195,322,419
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 32,984,825 35,265,467
Investments in associates 2(b) 36,988,617 14,710,139
Other noncurrent assets 8 61,620,430 51,541,356
Total noncurrent assets 1,588,420,674 1,303,871,691
Total assets $ 3,840,495,887 3,289,977,885
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 444,187,520 398,802,753
Accrued compensation 7(c) 301,432,498 216,289,372
Commissions payable 81,689,779 122,043,872
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,437,762 33,157,779
Payables to affiliates 6 95,602,945 37,379,146
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Other current liabilities 10,676,405 4,928,294
Total current liabilities 997,277,754 832,356,498
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 182,746,288 204,137,201
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 138,931,408 152,799,181
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,046,469 4,306,979
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,466,549,454 1,216,298,813
Total liabilities 2,463,827,208 2,048,655,311
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (6,433,247) (103,214,782)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,333,506,696 1,308,035,518
Class M members (74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021
and 58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020) 69,610,604 43,399,986
Class M unit option holders (102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and 148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020) 7(a) 32,693,374 37,843,422
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(0) (52,708,748) (44,741,570)
Tota capital 1,376,668,679 1,241,322,574
Total liabilities and capital $ 3840495887 3,289,077:885

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues: Note 2021 2020
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 4520575834 4,012,403,139
Private accounts 2(e) 1,166,893,208 1,095,151,513
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,272,072,660 1,155,727,878
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 350,424,117 360,487,808
Other 2(e) 32,477,418 46,057,465
Total revenues 7,342,443,237 6,669,827,803
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,695,488,619 2,283,500,614
Commissions 666,590,135 777,771,809
General and administrative 2(s) 633,462,121 605,822,180
Professional fees 233,154,167 235,901,474
Occupancy and equipment 4,9 179,499,423 168,804,503
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 105,285,247 108,835,693
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 47,627,284 43,316,136
Other 48,672,649 44,512,301
Total expenses 4,609,779,645 4,268,464,710
Operating income 2,732,663,592 2,401,363,093
Other income, net 126,921,569 52,168,123
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (6,676,919)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,327,780) (1,321,069)
Net income before income taxes 2,852,712,104 2,445,533,228
Income tax expense 8 107,478,838 103,991,820
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(0) (7,967,178) 13,877,124

Comprehensive income $ 2,737,266,088 2,355,418,532

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members ClassM members holders trandation Total
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31,
2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000  1,288,040,853 48,876 28952,832 153400 32,591,945 (58,618,694)$ 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 — — 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) — —  (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 — — — — 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense — — — 15,827,024 — 15,827,024

Reallocation of basison

vested options 6,737,652 — 3,837,895 (10,575,547) — —
Other comprehensive
income — — — — 13877124 13,877,124
Balances at December 31,
2020 850,000 (103,214,782) 150,000  1,308,035,518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 37,843,422  (44,741,570)  1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 — — 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) — —  (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 — — — — 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense — — — 11,819,042 — 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 8,062,808 — 8,906,282 (16,969,090) — —
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December 31,
2021 850,000 $ (6,433,247) 150,000 ¢ 1,333,506,696  74,205¢% 69,610,604 102,231 ¢ 32,693,374 $ (52,708,748)$ 1,376,668,679

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 11,600,078 15,508,853
Depreciation and amortization 65,880,266 65,464,604
Finance costs 5,545,277 6,676,919
Equity inloss of associates 1,327,780 1,321,069
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,665 12,114
Unrealized and realized net loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 29,028 (44,308)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 4,206,963 14,256,907
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,036,589 15,010,423
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (13,788,912) (11,695,316)
Income taxes paid (108,645,764) (146,673,050)
Interest paid (5,545,277) (6,762,761)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable (194,961,547) (130,819,174)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (18,406,245) (25,708,793)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 180,065,741 103,679,079
Other liabilities and payablesto affiliates 63,479,303 10,538,563
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,751,058,211 2,252,306,537
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired (144,367) —
Cash acquired through acquisition — 6,500,203
Purchases of property and equipment (17,229,114) (7,078,726)
Purchases of intangible assets (4,902,545) (13,730,247)
Purchases of investments in associates (23,500,150) (18,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,776,176) (14,326,770)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 337,000,000 416,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (337,000,000) (644,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,622,190,457) (1,749,772,748)
Contributions received 8,451,432 4,984,931
Principal elements of lease payments (33,282,796) (30,720,464)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,647,021,821) (2,003,508,281)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7,967,178) 13,877,124
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 50,293,036 248,348,610
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 670,905,056 422,556,446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 2,547,664 1,300,045

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(D Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLP. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of America LLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding Il). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2021, 74,205
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell as international subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financia Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00319% interest and 0.00206% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUS L P. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.
PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.

PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain globa payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC is aholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. (PIMCO Luxembourg) administers and manages investment
funds under the laws of Luxembourg. On July 1, 2021, PIMCO purchased Allianz Investment Real Estate
Solutions S.a r.l, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO Europe GmbH (PEG), which was
immediately merged into PIMCO Luxembourg as the surviving entity.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Services LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of America LLC (AREOA) is a captive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrua basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 25, 2022.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and

key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $323.9 million and $347.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $807 thousand
and $2.3 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Management considers investments in money
market accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining
cash and cash equivalents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each
institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar
federal foreign programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage.

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on atrade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behalf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generaly three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.
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(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2021 or 2020.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of |ease liahilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these |eases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes
The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share

of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.
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Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(I) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promoational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees as incurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been trandlated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of trandating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financia
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financia condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(r) Deferred Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(s General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recogni zes these costs on a gross basis.

(3 Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 — Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 — Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $29.7 million and
$30.9 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2021 or
2020.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.
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(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) — — (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) — (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) — — (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) — (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.0 million and $27.8 million during 2021
and 2020, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Devel oped Trade
Software Relationships  Technology Name Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 5711545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 — — — 13,838,448
Disposals — — — — —
Amortization (5,879,698)  (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 — 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 — — — 4,902,545
Disposals — — — — —
Amortization (4,948,015)  (2,080,000) (155,172) — (7,183,187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 13,624,825 19,360,000 — — 32,984,825

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.2 million and $8.7 million during 2021 and 2020,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $23.6 million and $24.7 million
during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $21.5 million and $8.6 million as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2021
and 2020, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term
loans. During 2021 and 2020, PIMCO incurred $102 thousand and $373 thousand, respectively, in interest
expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees — pooled funds, administrative fees — pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1.0 hillion
(2020: $822.6 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $55.9 million and $52.4 million during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees — private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.3 million and $7.8 million during
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO'’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2021, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $400.4 million (2020: $147.3 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $41.6 million (2020: $55.1 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees — pooled funds and investment advisory fees — private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2021, costs allocated to PEG
were $85.8 million (2020: $41.3 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a $26.2 million (2020: $13.5 million) receivable from PEG and a
$74.1 million (2020: $28.8 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.264% as of December 31, 2021) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2021 and 2020.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)

341/404



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(7) Benefit Plans
(@ ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(c), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, 102,231 and 148,726 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 74,205 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2021.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2021. The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of the M unit options granted during 2020:

2020
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1%
Expected dividends 11.1%
Risk free rate of return 0.6%

A summary of the activity in 2021 and 2020 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Total fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 — 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted — 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) — —
Exercised (27,775) — (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited — (6,701) (6,701) 14,146
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 — 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted — — — —
Vested 41,017 (41,017) — —
Exercised (41,017) — (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited — (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 — 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2021 — — — $ —

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2021 have an exercise price between $11,804 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 1.99 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $20,924 for 2021 and $17,806
for 2020. M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 15,597 M Units. As of December 31, 2021, 73,774 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2021 and 2020 was $11.6 million and $15.5 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2021, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $12.7 million.
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(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially al
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generaly eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2021 and 2020 was $59.1 million and $55.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2021 and 2020 was $1.2 hillion and $874.8 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-consolidated
deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition.

(8) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2021 2020
Current:

Federal $ 81,038 29,332
State 3,988,116 3,432,731
Foreign 115,094,758 121,394,722
Tota current 119,163,912 124,856,785

Deferred:
Foreign (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total deferred (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total provision $ 107,478,838 103,991,820
(Continued)
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The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, income taxes payable amounted to $32.8 million and $23.2 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred tax assets amounted to
$54.8 million and $44.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, amounted
to $285 thousand and $247 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Year ended December 31

2021 2020
$ 31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $40.9 million and

$39.8 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021:

Year ending December 31:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813
(19,310,763)

$ 214,184,050

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020:

Year ending December 31.

2021 $ 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
Thereafter 96,750,859
Total operating lease payments 261,441,267
Lessimputed interest (24,146,287)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 237,294,980

(10) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

(Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financia strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2021.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The magjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniquesto limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

(Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2021, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any materia differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2021 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. Given the inherent
uncertainties, it is not practical to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive remova or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle.

The Company earned $3.3 million and $731 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during
2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees — pooled funds and investment
advisory fees— private accounts in the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive

removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

(Continued)
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December 31
2021 2020
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,408,685,532 $ 582,606,016
Investment advisory fees
receivable — pooled funds and private accounts 567,143 222,021

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 25, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 38,253 vested subsequent to the date of the consolidated statements of financial
condition. On March 31, 2022, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided
inthe M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 16,727 M units.

On February 1, 2022, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) has replaced LIBOR for AAM LP's
revolving credit facility with Allianz SE (as discussed in note 6).

In late February 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities between the
two countries could result in more widespread conflict and could have a severe adverse effect on the region and
global supply chains. In addition, current and future sanctions imposed on Russia by the global community could
have a significant adverse impact on the Russian and global economy. The extent, duration, or repercussions of
such military actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant market disruption. As a result of
such events, the Company has experienced negative portfolio returns on managed assets, but the events have not
resulted in a material adverse impact to the Company. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine the overall impact to the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of any future impact.
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2022 30

1,117,718,214 154,949,276
22,187,248 3,075,818
583,419,002 80,879,376
296,058,867 41,042,641
48,191,354 6,680,767
16,822,230 2,332,066
24,264,674 3,363,812
32,472,086 4,501,605
86,134,876 11,940,878
2,227,268,551 308,766,239
240,661,783 102,056,187 14,148,049
158,562,406 21,981,506
1,006,816,397 139,574,957
30,865,176 4,278,839
29,986,888 4,157,082
32,907,785 4,562,006
58,124,696 8,057,827
1,419,319,535 196,760,267
3,646,588,086 505,526,506
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419,088,130 58,008,187

578,771,182 80,235,049

64,870,656 8,993,019

33,834,936 4,690,537

81,830,157 11,344,115

24,264,674 3,363,812

4,490,265 622,485

1,207,150,000 167,347,205

1,006,816,397 139,574,957

164,933,641 22,864,751

115,010,504 15,943,906

3,615,936 501,277

1,290,376,478 178,884,891

2,497,526,478 346,232,096
850,000 (133,718,082) (18,537,338)
150,000 1,281,455,256 177,648,142
90,933 71,204,614 9,871,096
60,434 21,195,975 2,938,398
(91,076,155) (12,625,887)

1,149,061, 608 159,294,411

3,646,588,086 505,526,506
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1,918,013,768 265,894,249
538,043,676 74,588,995
607,567,041 84,227,019
150,045,251 20,800,773

20,791,015 2,882,258

3,234,460,751 448,393,294
958,156,841 132,829,283
239,330,399 33,178,373
321,577,100 44,580,233
117,015,533 16,221,863

90,846,357 12,594,030
55,319,442 7,668,934
17,426,195 2,415,793
21,870,339 3,031,885

1,821,542,206 252,520,396

1,412,918,545 195,872,898
(175,838,837) (24,376,538)

(2,646,132) (366,833)
(4,080,832) (565,726)
1,230,352, 744 170,563,801
49,153,693 6,814,176

1,181,199,051 163,749,624
(38,367,407) (5,318,874)

1,142,831,644 158,430,751
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2021
12
31

850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841) 150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033 74,205 69,610,604 9,650,118

820,500,299 113,745,956 263,510,464 36,530,456 97,188,288 13,473,212
(954,645,277) (132,342,475) (315,561,904) (43,746,347) (105,822,415) (14,670,161)
2,254,593 312,554
PINCO
4,605,550 638,467 10,228,137 1,417,927
2022
30

850,000 (133,718,082) (18,537,338) 150,000 1,281,455,256 177,648,142 90,933 71,204,614 9,871,096
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2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,532,282  (52,708,748)  (7,307,014) 1,376,668,679 190,847,579
1,181,199,051 163,749,624
(1,376,029,596) (190,758,983)
2,254,593 312,554
PINCO
3,336,288 462,510 3,336,288 462,510
(14,833,687)  (2,056,394)

(38,367,407)  (5,318,874)  (38,367,407)  (5,318,874)

2022 30

60,434 21,195,975 2,938,398 (91,076,155) (12,625,887) 1,149,061,608 159,294,411
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1,181,199,051 163,749,624
3,290,743 456,196
35,746,934 4,955,597
2,646,132 366,833
4,080,832 565,726
1,007,455 139,663
13,890,086 1,925,583
(7,530,911) (1,044,010)
(73,464,851) (10,184,432)
(2,646,132) (366,833)

0

436,774,977 60,550,115
(27,259,715) (3,779,014)
284,964,118 39,504,576
(20,389, 461) (2,826,591)
1,832,309,258 254,013,032
(5,216,311) (723,137)
(636,025) (88,172)
(5,852,336) (811,309)
579,000,000 80,266,770

(579,000, 000)
(1,376,029,596)
2,254,593
(17,794,390)

(80, 266,770)
(190, 758,983)
312,554
(2,466,836)

(1,391,569,393)

(192,913, 265)

(38,367,407) (5,318,874)
396,520,122 54,969,585
721,198,092 99,979,691
1,117,718,214 154,949,276
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2021 10 29 ( 19 )
2022 28 (20 )
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively referred
to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May
31, 2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the
periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as
“financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2021

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2021

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of each of
the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the changes in each of
their net assets, and for PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Rea Return Fund each of their cash flows, and each of
their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 12, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Bermuda
U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (J TF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M), PIMCO
Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 1I, PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund,
PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (collectively referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the
statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31, 2022 and the related statements of
operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash
flows, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for the year then ended (collectively referred to as the "financial
statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of each of
the Funds as of May 31, 2022, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO
Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, and each of the financial highlights for the

year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAYS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the

financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

Statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we;

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, aswell as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt

about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
August 17, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and
its subsidiaries (the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital and of cash

flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to asthe “ consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our
other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financia statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as agoing concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered materia if thereisa
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial

doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 25, 2022
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